Public Document Pack

WOKINGHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL

A Meeting of the HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD will
be held in David Hicks 1 - Civic Offices, Shute End,
Wokingham RG40 1BN on THURSDAY 9 AUGUST 2018
AT 5.00 PM

Manjeet Gill
Interim Chief Executive
Published on 1 August 2018

This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.

Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.






Our Priorities

Enabling and
empowering

resilient
communities

Promoting
and
supporting
good mental
health

Reducing
health

inequalities
in our
Borough

Delivering
person-
centred

integrated
services




MEMBERSHIP OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Richard Dolinski Executive member for Adult Social Care

Dr Debbie Milligan NHS Berkshire West CGC

Nick Campbell-White Healthwatch

Charlotte Haitham Taylor Leader of the Council

David Hare Opposition Member

Pauline Helliar-Symons Executive Member for Children's Services

Lisa Humphreys Assistant Director People Services (Children)

Tessa Lindfield Strategic Director Public Health Berkshire

Nikki Luffingham NHS England

Angela Morris Director Adult Services

Clare Rebbeck Voluntary Sector and Place and Community Partnership

Representative

Katie Summers Director of Operations, NHS Berkshire West CCG
Shaun Virtue Community Safety Partnership

Dr Cathy Winfield NHS Berkshire West CCG
ITEM PAGE
NO. WARD SUBJECT NO.
17. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence

18.  None Specific MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 7-14
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on
14 June 2018.

19. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

20. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.

The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of this Board.

Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Board or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions



http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

20.1 None Specific Anne Marie Gawen has asked the Chairman of the
Health and Wellbeing Board the following question:

Question

We understand that Councils appoint an elected
Member as a "Mental Health Champion" and we would
like to know who that is in Wokingham and also each
Council identifies a member of staff within the Council
as "Lead Officer" for mental health - again we would
like to know who that is please?

21. MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions

22. None Specific GET ACTIVE: CREATING PHYSICALLY ACTIVE 15-18
COMMUNITIES IN WOKINGHAM
To receive a presentation on Get Active: Creating
Physically Active Communities in Wokingham. (45
mins)

23. None Specific HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD REFRESH 19 - 22
To receive the Health and Wellbeing Board Refresh
(20 mins)

24. None Specific BERKSHIRE WEST INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM 23 - 86
OPERATING PLAN
To receive the Berkshire West Integrated Care System
Operating Plan. (15 mins)

25. None Specific BETTER CARE FUND QUARTER 1 SUBMISSION 87 -104
To receive the Better Care Fund Quarter 1 Submission
(10 mins)

26. None Specific UPDATE FROM BOARD MEMBERS 105 - 106
To receive updates on the work of the following Board
members:

Place and Community Partnership;
Voluntary Sector;

Community Safety Partnership;
Healthwatch Wokingham Borough.

(20 mins)

27. None Specific FORWARD PROGRAMME 107 - 110
To consider the Board’s work programme for the
remainder of the municipal year. (5 mins)

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 18.

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
HELD ON 14 JUNE 2018 FROM 5.00 PM TO 7.05 PM

Present

Richard Dolinski
Darrell Gale

Charlotte Haitham Taylor
David Hare
Clare Rebbeck

Katie Summers

Martin Sloan

Jim Stockley (substituting Nick Campbell-
White)

Graham Ebers (substituting Shaun Virtue)

Also Present:
Madeleine Shopland

Manjeet Gill
Julie Hotchkiss
Nicola Strudley
Chrisa Tsiarigli
Rhian Warner
Rosie Rowe

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 2018-19

Executive Member for Adult Social Care
Acting Strategic Director of Public Health
for Berkshire

Leader of the Council

Opposition Member

Voluntary Sector and Place and
Community Partnership Representative
Director of Operations, Berkshire West
CCG

Assistant Director Adult Services
Healthwatch Wokingham

Director Corporate Services

Democratic and Electoral Services
Specialist

Interim Chief Executive

Interim Consultant in Public Health
Healthwatch Wokingham

Public Health Intelligence Specialist
Better Care Fund Programme Manager
Programme Director Bicester Healthy
New Town Programme

RESOLVED: That Councillor Richard Dolinski be elected Chairman of the Health and
Wellbeing Board for the 2018-19 muncipal year.

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED: That Dr Debbie Milligan be elected Vice Chairman of the Health and
Wellbeing Board for the 2018-19 municipal year.

3. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were submitted from Nick Campbell-White, Councillor Pauline
Helliar Symons, Lisa Humphreys, Dr Debbie Milligan and Dr Cathy Winfield.

4, MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 5 April 2018 were confirmed as a correct

record and signed by the Chairman.

5. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.



6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Chairman invited members of the public to
submit questions to the appropriate Members.

6.1  Bill Luck had asked the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board the
following question. Due to his inability to attend the following written answer
was provided:

Question

With the concerns being expressed by local residents about delays in getting to see a

doctor, are there sufficient numbers of doctors in general practice in the Borough to serve

all the current residents and are there any new surgeries planned to serve the significant
new development in the Borough, or any shortfall in the current provision, and, if so, are
any CIL funds earmarked for such provision?

Answer

Some surgeries in Wokingham are carrying GP vacancies but on the whole the Borough
has sufficient numbers of doctors to serve its population. There is a national shortage of
GPs and as such NHS England is looking to recruit GPs from overseas. BW CCG has
submitted a bid to be part of this programme, which if successful, will see four additional
GPs working in Wokingham by the end of 2019. Other initiatives are also in place to
support GP recruitment and retention. Alongside these, practices are also increasingly
working with a more diverse clinical workforce including pharmacists and paramedics.

A number of surgeries have recently been given NHS funding to enable them to extend
their existing premises to provide additional clinical capacity in response to the planned
housing developments. These are: Finchampstead, Swallowfield, Brookside and Chalfont.
The CCG continues to work with Wokingham Borough Council to plan for future housing
growth with a view to funding being made available to support health care provision.
Section 106 monies have been set aside for this purpose.

There are no plans to use Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) for healthcare facilities.

7. MEMBER QUESTION TIME
There were no Member questions.

8. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD REFRESH
The Director Corporate Services presented the Health and Wellbeing Board Refresh.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

e A Health and Wellbeing Board Manager had been appointed and would be starting
on 25 June.

e With regards to training the Local Government Association Self-assessment
process “Stepping up to the place: Facilitated integration workshop” had started.
An initial scoping call had taken place with LGA representatives and further calls
would take places calls with key individuals. A half-day workshop would be held on
2 July 2018.

e A separate Berkshire West wide workshop, including the Health and Wellbeing
Boards of West Berkshire and Reading Councils, was being planned by Julie
Hotchkiss and Dr Cathy Winfield, and a facilitator recommended by the LGA. The
date would most likely be in September. Councillor Haitham Taylor asked that the
weeks of the political party conferences be avoided.

8



The Board discussed public engagement and branding. Councillor Hare asked
about the sub partnerships which fed into the Health and Wellbeing Board; the
Community Safety Partnership was co-chaired by Graham Ebers and
Superintendent Shaun Virtue, the Children and Young People’s Partnership was
chaired by Lisa Humphreys, Assistant Director Children’s Services, Clare Rebbeck
chaired the Place and Community Partnership and the Wokingham Leaders
Partnership Board was co-chaired by Martin Sloan and Katie Summers.

Katie Summers, Director Operations Wokingham, NHS Berkshire West CCG, stated
that West Berkshire Health and Wellbeing Board had invited a planning officer to
participate in the Health and Wellbeing Board in order to better connect the health
and planning processes. She suggested that similar be investigated for the
Wokingham Health and Wellbeing Board.

Graham Ebers outlined which Officers and Members had been allocated which
specific priorities to progress.

RESOLVED: That the actions to refresh the Health and Wellbeing Board Agenda be
supported and noted.

9.

BICESTER HEALTHY NEW TOWN PRESENTATION

Rosie Rowe, Programme Director Bicester Healthy New Town Programme, provided a
presentation on the Bicester Healthy New Town programme.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

Bicester had a population of approximately 39,000. This was set to double by 2031.

The programme was about growth and the challenges and opportunities that this

brought. It was an opportunity to promote the health and wellbeing of the whole

local population.

The programme promoted behaviour change; becoming more active; being good

neighbours; and eating healthily. It was appreciated that sustaining individual

behaviour change could be difficult.

A systems based approach and partnership was vital. Board members were

informed of an event which a number of partners participated in. Talks had been

given around exercise for diabetics, health walks and the Bicester Healthy New

Town Programme, amongst other topics. After the event 27% of attendees had

signed up for some form of structured education and support.

The programme’s key objectives had been consulted on with experts and residents

and were as follows:

o To increase the number of children and adults who are physically active and a
healthy weight.

o To reduce the number of people who feel socially isolated or lonely in order to
improve their mental wellbeing.

There were three programme workstreams:

o Bicester’s built environment - making best use of the built environment to
encourage healthy living.
Community Activation — enabling local people to live healthier lives, with the
support of local community groups, families and schools, and employers.

o Health and care services -delivering new models of care that are focused on
prevention and care closer to home which minimises hospital based care.

Board members were informed that the programme had taken a year to set up and

had been just over a year in delivery.

9



The built environment was discussed. The relationship between health colleagues
and planners had improved and there was a better understanding of each other’s
needs and constraints.

The built environment could help encourage an active lifestyle. Digital innovations
were also helping to address social isolation. Three safe and accessible 5km
health routes had been marked out by a blue line in the old part of town. This
encouraged people to meet up and walk the ‘Bicester Blue Line.’

On the Bicester West Health Route, the daily average footfall prior to installation of
the Health Route was 557 people: this had increased to 708, a 27% increase.
Work was being carried out with community groups, leisure providers, schools and
businesses, to encourage the use of walking routes and cycle paths. There were a
lot of micro businesses in the area.

New models of care enabled through use of technology were being developed and
tested with Bicester acting as a ‘demonstrator site.’

Rosie Rowe outlined the benefits of healthy place making at the 2 year point,
including the fact that 2,000 primary school now ran a mile a day at school and 469
more people were participating in health walks.

Healthy place making required a whole systems approach; policy, physical
environment, organisations and institutions, social environment and the individual.
It was important to build into Integrated Care Systems.

Councillor Haitham Taylor asked how much resources had gone into the
programme prior to its start. Rosie Rowe commented that the Healthy New Town
programme was an NHS England funded demonstrator programme. Ten sites had
been selected across the country. It was three year programme and funding had
been provided from 2016. Approximately £900,000 would be provided over the
three years. Rosie Rowe felt that results could potentially be achieved with
approximately £150,000 per year. She went on to emphasise that it was important
to have the dedicated resources in place to engage people and to make the
necessary connections.

RESOLVED: That the Bicester Healthy New Town programme presentation be noted.

10.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH’S ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The Board received the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report for 2018.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

It was a statutory requirement of the Director of Public Health to produce an annual

report.

The 2018 report focused on creating the right environment for health.

The report, ‘Creating the Right Environments for Health’ recommended the

following;

o Local authorities and other agencies should continue to encourage community
initiatives that make the most of natural space available, with the aim of
improving mental health, increasing physical activity and strengthening
communities.

o Existing green space should be improved and any new developments should
include high quality green spaces. The use of professional design and
arrangements to ensure the ongoing management of natural environments
should be considered if spaces are to be sustainable.

o Opportunities to increase active transport should be considered when designing
new green spaces and in the improvement of existing space.

10



o Planning guidance for new developments should specifically consider the use of
green and blue space to improve the health and wellbeing of residents and
others using the space.

o Local Authorities and their public health teams should foster new relationships
with organisations aiming to improve the natural environment and its use.

Councillor Haitham Taylor asked how the document would remain live. Darrell

Gale, Acting Strategic Director Public Health Berkshire, commented that next year’'s

report would include an update on the progression of the recommendations. The

report would be circulated widely to schools, the voluntary sector and GP surgeries
amongst others.

Katie Summers commented that a group should be established to progress the

report. Clare Rebbeck stated that this was something which the Place and

Community Partnership could assist with.

RESOLVED: That the Board note the Director Public Health Annual Report and its
conclusions and share it widely within their respective organisations and local
communities.

11.

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA) 2018 UPDATE

Chrisa Tsiarigli, Public Health Intelligence Specialist and Julie Hotchkiss, Interim
Consultant in Public Health presented the draft Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
2018 updates.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

The document represented a refresh of the current JSNA. It was split into 6
chapters, starting with the Borough profile for general background. The next 4
chapters were arranged across the life course. The final chapter, ‘People and
Places’ provided information on the wider determinants of health and intelligence on
specific groups of people.

A blank matrix had been circulated which Board members were encouraged to
complete and return to Public Health, identifying key services, key service
achievements, key service gaps and future recommendations.

Chrisa Tsiarigli indicated that the draft JSNA was being finalised with a Steering
Group. Six different groups had reviewed the different chapters.

Manjeet Gill, Interim Chief Executive commented that it was a valuable document
but that how Wokingham would help its most vulnerable residents needed to be
further highlighted. More feedback was required, the data analysed and the key
priorities identified.

Clare Rebbeck indicated that a charity had undertaken research which provided
information regarding deprivation in specific wards, which could be useful to the
development of the final JSNA.

Katie Summers commented that Public Health England had recently provided
information to the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West footprint which
was at individual ward level and highlighted gaps in inequalities. Board members
were informed that the gap between life expectancy for those with and without
mental health problems was approximately 25 years in some areas.

Councillor Haitham Taylor emphasised that the key outliers needed to be
highlighted and addressed.

Clare Rebbeck commented that food bank usage figures were a good indicator of
deprivation.

11



RESOLVED: That the draft [JSNA] chapters be reviewed.

12. HEALTH AND WELLBEING PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD
Julie Hotchkiss, Interim Consultant in Public Health presented the Health and Wellbeing
Performance Dashboard.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

e With regards to ‘Residents’ Perception of Fear of Crime’, Julie Hotchkiss indicated
that if this was to go forward a bespoke survey of residents would need to be
carried out. A decision would need to be taken with regards to whether or not to
undertake this survey and if it were to go ahead, who would run and fund it.

e Graham Ebers, Director Corporate Services, commented that although Wokingham
had a low crime rate, the perceived fear of crime was high.

e |t was suggested that ‘Gap in employment rate between those with a learning
disability and the overall employment rate’ and ‘Gap in employment rate between
those in contact with secondary mental health services and the overall employment
rate’ be selected as priority indicators.

e Julie Hotchkiss proposed that ‘Self-reported: high anxiety score’ be considered as a
priority indicator.

e With regards to the ‘Health-related quality of life for people with long-term
conditions’ it was noted that Wokingham was performing well but improvements
could still be made.

e |t was suggested that ‘Dementia: Indirect Age-Standardised Recorded Prevalence
(aged under 65years) per 10,000’ not be included as a priority indicator.

¢ In response to a question from Councillor Haitham Taylor, Julie Hotchkiss indicated
that an action plan would be developed around the agreed key priority indicators.
The Board would be informed if measurable actions could not be produced. If this
was the case the inclusion of the particular indicator would be relooked at.

RESOLVED: That

1) one or two of the new proposed indicators be substituted for the existing two in
Priority 1;

2) a small group be convened to assess the value of and the cost-feasibility of
commissioning an annual survey to assess the community’s fear of crime;

3) support be given to the analysts working on the 5 Year Forward View to produce
the synopsis statistic;

4) the specific changes to the indicators in Priority 2B, C and D be approved;

5) Priority 3 indicators be adjusted so that they measure inequality, and that the
recommendations with regards to these indicators be accepted.

6) support be given to Wokingham Integrated Service Partnership analysts to produce
the synopsis statistic for Priority 4.

13. BCF KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 2017-18
The Board considered the Better Care Fund Key Achievements 2017-18.

12



During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

e The report provided a summary of Wokingham’s Better Care Fund Programme
performance for 2017-18 (financial year), including progress of integration,
milestones, challenges, performance metrics and finances.

e Katie Summers, Director Operations Wokingham, NHS Berkshire West CCG,
informed Board Members that Wokingham had done well with regards to keeping
over 75’s fit and healthy in their own homes.

e Although Non Elective admissions had performed less well Board members were
assured that there were no particular issues in this area.

RESOLVED: That the performance of the Better Care Fund in 2017/18 be noted.

14. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18
The Board considered the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2017-18.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

e Martin Sloan, Assistant Director Adult Services, went through the report which
covered work undertaken by the Board in the 2017-18 municipal year.

e Board members asked that greater reference be made to wellbeing aspects. Clare
Rebbeck asked that in particular reference be made to the Wokingham Health and
Wellbeing Board community engagement and hashtag. (#WokinghamHWBB)

¢ Afinalised report would be presented to Council.

RESOLVED: That the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2017-18 be noted.

15. UPDATE FROM BOARD MEMBERS
The Board was updated on the work of the following Board members:

Healthwatch Wokingham Borough:

¢ Nicola Strudley informed the Board that the Healthwatch service contract was out
for tender and the results were due shortly. The new service would begin in
October.

¢ Healthwatch Wokingham Borough had produced its annual report which would be
published shortly.

e Board members were informed of a particular case study. It was clarified that
Healthwatch should in future inform Martin Sloan of concerns that they received.

Place and Community Partnership:

e Clare Rebbeck encouraged Board members to participate in the Health and
Wellbeing Board social media engagement.

Voluntary Sector:

e Clare Rebbeck referred to an engagement session between the Clinical
Commissioning Group and the Voluntary Sector and the need for further work.

13



Community Safety Partnership:

e Board members were informed that the Group were currently working to reduce
anti-social behaviour and a reported increase in substance misuse in Wokingham
particularly in the Woosehill area through the implementation of Operation Orca.

e Following reports of young people using bags of dog mess from bins to throw at
resident’s properties, a problem solving task group were looking at whether tamper
proof dog fouling bins could be installed in high risk areas to stop access to the

contents of the bins.

¢ In response to a Member question, Graham Ebers explained what was meant by
‘County Lines Dealing.’

o Katie Summers referred to the fear of crime and the recent incident of a bomb scare
at The Oracle in Reading. Board members were assured that lessons would be
learnt and shared across Thames Valley.

RESOLVED: That the update from Board members be noted.

16. FORWARD PROGRAMME
The Board discussed the forward programme.

During the discussion of this item the following points were made:

e The Chairman would write to Rosie Rowe on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing
Board, thanking her for her presentation regarding the Bicester Healthy New Town
Programme.

e |t was noted that it was Darrell Gale’s last Health and Wellbeing Board meeting.
The Board thanked him for his hard work and wished him well for the future.

RESOLVED: That the forward programme be noted.

14



Agenda Item 22.

TITLE Get Active: Creating Physically Active
Communities in Wokingham

FOR CONSIDERATION BY Health and Wellbeing Board on Thursday, 9 August
2018

WARD None Specific;

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER Julie Hotchkiss, Interim Consultant in Public Health

Health and Wellbeing Enabling and empowering resilient communities,
Strategy priority/priorities Promoting and supporting good mental health
most progressed through | Reducing health inequalities in our Borough

the report
Key outcomes achieved This item will showcase existing work to increase
against the Strategy physical activity and all the benefits that brings to the
priority/priorities priorities list above.

Reason for consideration
by Health and Wellbeing To allow Board members to see current programmes
Board and input into the design of future programmes.

Partners may consider how their own organisations
might increase their involvement in promoting physical
activity.

What (if any) public
engagement has been None specific to this item, although all the programmes
carried out? area carried out with members of the public.

State the financial
implications of the decision

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board watch the presentation, participate in the activities and give feedback to
the development of new programmes.

SUMMARY OF REPORT

The report briefly summarises the numerous benefits of physical activity and the harms
of physical inactivity. It describes the scale of the issue of physical inactivity. It then
very briefly outlines some of the assets that we have in Wokingham to help the
community be more physically active. These will be expanded on during the
presentation.

15



Background

Benefits of physical activity

Regular physical activity can reduce the risk of many chronic conditions including
coronary heart disease, stroke, type 2 diabetes, some common cancers (breast and
colon), obesity, mental health problems such as depression and dementia, and
musculoskeletal conditions. Even relatively small increases in physical activity are
associated with some protection against chronic diseases and an improved quality of
life.

Activity also provides benefits for wellbeing, for example improved mood, a sense of
achievement, relaxation or release from daily stress. Many activities provide scope for
companionship and are a way of reducing social isolation.

The importance physical activity goes across the life course, from the youngest children
to the oldest adults, and even severely physically disabled people can benefit from
some form of physical activity.

These benefits can deliver cost savings for health and social care services. Moreover,
the benefits of physical activity extend further to improved productivity in the workplace,
reduced congestion and pollution through active travel, and healthy development of
children and young people, including diversion from anti-social behaviour.

Scale of physical inactivity

We consider “physical inactivity” to be when a person is active for less than 30 minutes
in a week.

This is now considered to be one of the top 10 risk factors for poor health worldwide. In
England one in four adult women are physically inactive, and for men it is one in five.
And nearly a half of adult women and a third of men are not active enough to promote
good health. Even so there is a 3 year gap in life expectancy in those who are inactive
compared to those who are minimally active.

The figures for children are not much better — only 21% of boys and 16% of girls aged 5
to 15 achieve recommended levels of physical activity.

Only 18% of disabled adults regularly take part in sport, compared to 39% of the non-
disabled.

Sedentary behaviour, that is sitting or lying for a long period of time (a low energy
posture), is also associated with poor health outcomes even in people who meet the
recommended weekly activity thresholds. 40% of women and 35% of men spend 6
hours a day desk bound or sitting still. This is the case as much for 16 to 24 year olds
as for 64 to 75 year olds.

Sitting is the new Smoking!

16



Recommended levels of physical activity

The level and type of activity varies with age, unsurprisingly — children need to be able
to run around — they should be active for at least 3 hours a day from when they can
walk. School age children should have at least one hour a day of moderate or vigorous
activity to adults who should have at least 150 minutes of moderate physical activity per
week, including strength building activities (even carrying heavy shopping) to older
people whose activity should include something which promotes balance and “core
stability” to help prevent falls.

Unless one is a professional athlete, it is likely that one would benefit from more
physical activity. We need to get more people moving more often.

Analysis of Issues

The UK performs poorly in terms of international comparison of physical inactivity (using
in a different measure to that used in the UK).

Country Physical inactivity ages
15 and over
Holland 18%
Germany 28%
France 33%
Finland 38%
Australia 38%
USA 41%
UK 63%

The results of the 2014/15 YOUth Survey, showed that only 16% of Wokingham’s
young people were physically active for 1 hour per day.

Not physical activity per se, but we have height and weight data for children. In
Wokingham over 6% of reception age children (4 — 5 years) are obese, and by the time
they leave primary school at age 11, this has risen to 14%. In adults we don’t have
good quality on weight at the local data, but the national figure for adult obesity is 27%,
with over half of women and two thirds of men being overweight.

In 2016/17, 71% of adults aged 19 and over in Wokingham reported that they had at
least 150 minutes of physical activity per week in accordance with the recommended
guidelines. This was significantly better than the England figure of 66% and similar to
other boroughs with a similar low level of socioeconomic deprivation.

There are factors in Wokingham which mitigate against physical activity. Car is king.
The Borough has the second highest car ownership in the country, and the layout of the
settlements is often not conducive to walking. However in the early stages of the design
and layout of the new housing and roads in the Strategic Development areas there is
scope to build in pedestrian and cycle routes. A great asset is the My Journey
programme, which encourages new residents to start out using active travel by
providing them with information on getting about in their local areas.

Another two great assets are Wokingham Borough Council’'s Sport and Leisure Team
and Countryside. The former have developed and run bespoke offers for people with

17



various long-term conditions, as well as the programme of Health Walks around the
Borough. The Countryside team look after the leisure offers at Dinton Pastures, and
generally ensure that areas of natural space are protected, to enhance people’s
experience of being active out-of-doors.

And finally Get Berkshire Active is the county-wide Sports Partnership which supports a
very wide range of local sports clubs at all levels, runs campaigns and programmes and
organises annual awards.

Partner Implications

All partners should be looking for ways to maximise activity in their staff and clients.

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2

N/A

List of Background Papers

Infographic of Benefits of Physical Activity
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmen
t datal/file/541233/Physical activity infographic.PDF

Everybody Active, every day. An evidence-based approach to physical activity. Public
Health England, October 2014. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/everybody-
active-every-day-a-framework-to-embed-physical-activity-into-daily-life

Contact Julie Hotchkiss Service Public Health

Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6628 Email julie.hotchkiss@wokingham.gov.uk

18



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/541233/Physical_activity_infographic.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/541233/Physical_activity_infographic.PDF
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/everybody-active-every-day-a-framework-to-embed-physical-activity-into-daily-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/everybody-active-every-day-a-framework-to-embed-physical-activity-into-daily-life

TITLE

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

WARD

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER

Health and Wellbeing
Strategy priority/priorities
most progressed through
the report

Agenda Iltem 23.

Health and Wellbeing Board Refresh

Health and Wellbeing Board on Thursday, 9 August
2018

None Specific;

Julie Hotchkiss, Interim Consultant in Public Health

All priorities within the Strategy are being addressed.

Key outcomes achieved
against the Strategy
priority/priorities

Reason for consideration
by Health and Wellbeing
Board

Proposals on how to achieve a clearer focus on how the
Board can promote delivery of action to further the
priorities will be presented.

Following a successful development day, officers have
considered the learning and are now presenting these
proposals on the way forward. The Board’s views and
support are sought.

What (if any) public
engagement has been
carried out?

None to date.

State the financial
implications of the decision

None

RECOMMENDATION

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to comment on the proposal and agree the
approach to developing the proposed strategy and the establishment of mechanisms for

its delivery.

SUMMARY OF REPORT

The Health and Wellbeing Board has been through a process of ‘refreshing’ its activities
and operations since 2017. This report provides an update on progress following recent
developments to improve the functioning of the Board as a system leader.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note and support the actions to refresh the
H&W Board Agenda and consider some related proposals.

19



Background

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered proposals to refresh how it operated
since 14 December 2017. A detailed report of progress was presented at the June
Board meeting. Following on from that update this report captures new developments
that have taken place in July.

Analysis of Issues

System Leadership

The Local Government Association (LGA) ran a Facilitated integration workshop called
“Stepping up to the place” for Board Members on 2 July 2018. The facilitator, John
Bewick, took members through the self-reflection process, adding independent
observations based on his knowledge of the wider system and experience of observing
the work of many Health and Wellbeing Boards across the country.

Strong commitment to the Board was expressed, evidenced by how well the Workshop
was attended by existing Board members. However, it was acknowledged that if the
Board is to function as a system leader and driver for action in Wokingham membership
would need to expand bring some other key partners on board. Potential partners
suggested were the local health providers (NHS Trusts) and planners.

It was felt that the wellbeing aspect of the Board had been less developed, and that
there had been less of a focus on preventing ill health. Other gaps were in involvement
of the voluntary sector and over-emphasis on adult health at the expense of the
children’s agenda. It was suggested that being able to influence the place agenda,
particularly with the new housing and infrastructure development presented an ideal
opportunity for place-based work in Wokingham.

Overall the need for tighter strategic objectives which would then allow more direct
translation into action for specific agencies was agreed, and a small officer group was
given responsibility to take the findings away and bring proposals back to the next
Health and Wellbeing Board. The presentation to accompany this report will explore the
ideas discussed and come up with proposals for the Board’s consideration.

Leadership with the Health and Wellbeing Board

The Chair (Councillor Dolinski) attended the 2 day residential course for Health and
Wellbeing Board Chairs held in Warwick. He was able to see many examples of good
practice from other local authorities.

Health and Wellbeing performance dashboard

When the new, more focussed Strategy and Action plan are agreed, the indicators
proposed at the previous Board meeting will be refined and the new dashboard
presented.

Health and Wellbeing Board Support worker
Charlotte Seymour is now in post and spends half of her time on supporting the Health
and Wellbeing Board.

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)

Following presentation of the draft chapters of the JSNA at the previous meeting and
call for input from Board members and other stakeholders, a request was received from

20



the Place and Community Partnership to extend the deadline for input, to allow for
greater involvement of the community and voluntary sector. This was agreed and
comments will be accepted up to mid- September and the intelligence gleaned from this
and other stakeholder consultation will be incorporated into the final JSNA.

Partner Implications

A consideration of expanding Board membership to some key partner organisations is
underway.

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2

N/A

List of Background Papers

None.

Contact Julie Hotchkiss Service

Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6628 Email julie.hotchkiss@wokingham.gov.uk

21




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 24.

TITLE Berkshire West Integrated Care System Operating
Plan 2018/19

FOR CONSIDERATION BY Health and Wellbeing Board on Thursday 9 August
2018

WARD None Specific

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER Katie Summers, Director of Operations and Joe
Smart, Interim Head of Planning and Transformation,
Berkshire West CCG

Reason for The purpose of this report is to present to the Health &
consideration by Health | Wellbeing Board the Berkshire West Integrated Care
and Wellbeing Board System Operating Plan 2018/19

Relevant Health and The priorities have close synergies and align with all the
Wellbeing Strategy ambitions of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Priority

What (if any) public The Plan builds on engagement activities carried out
engagement has been over recent years, including patient and public
carried out? engagement meetings and public events

State the financial The Operating Plan aims to achieve financial stability for
implications of the the health economy in Berkshire West
decision

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY

The NHS cannot successfully implement the Five Year Forward View in separate
organisational silos. Only through an integrated, system-wide set of changes will the
NHS be sure of being able to deliver the right care, in the right place, with optimal value.
This means creating new relationships with patients and communities, seeing the totality
of health and care in identifying solutions, and working together with social care and
wider services to support sustainable services. Berkshire West Integrated Care System
Operating Plan seeks to build on Berkshire West 10 care model that break down the
boundaries between different types of provider, and foster stronger collaboration across
services — drawing on, and strengthening, joint work with partners, including local
government.

RECOMMENDATION

To note the Berkshire West Integrated Care System Operating Plan 2018/19.

SUMMARY OF REPORT

The Berkshire West Integrated Care System Operating Plan 2018/19 is the first
operating plan jointly written by the Integrated Care System (or ICS).

The ICS is collaboration between health organisations to improve services for our local
population, delivering consistent high quality and safe care, ensuring the best possible

23




outcome and experience for patients, whilst delivering financial stability across the
system. The ICS is comprised of the following constituent members:

NHS Acute Hospital Provider — Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust (RBFT)
NHS Community/Mental Health services Provider — Berkshire Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust (BHFT)

Primary Care Provider Alliances — representing general practice and covering four
distinct localities — South Reading, Wokingham, Newbury, and North and West
Reading

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group — Berkshire West CCG

The Operating Plan outlines the key requirements and deliverables for the ICS in 2018/19.
It focussed on six key areas of transformation

Outpatient services

Development of an integrated respiratory service
“High Intensity Users” programme

Development of an Integrated musculoskeletal service
Maternity

Diabetes

The first draft was submitted to NHS England (NHSE) in March 2018 and overall
positive feedback was received. This final version has been restructured following this
feedback to provide a high level narrative of the ICS plans with more in-depth
information presented in the annexes. This version was also taken through the required
governance at BHFT and RBFT prior to final submission to NHSE at the end of April

2018.

Partner Implications (how does this decision impact on other Council services and
partners, including properties and priorities?)

Solutions cannot not come solely from within the NHS, but from patients and
communities, and wider partnerships including local government and the third sector;
and effective public engagement will be essential to their success.

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2

Not applicable

List of Background Papers

None

Contact Joe Smart Service Berkshire West CCG
Telephone No Email joe.smart@nhs.net
Date 17 July 2018 Version No. 1

24




NHS NHS NHS

Royal Berkshire Berkshire West Berkshire Healthcare
NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissoning Group NHS Foundation Trust
BERKSHIRE WEST

INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM

OPERATING PLAN: 2018/19

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 1

25



Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

26



TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 Aboutus

2.2 Our aims and objectives

2.3 Our constituent organisations

2.4 Our achievements

3 DELIVERING AN INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM
3.1 Domain 1 - Five year forward view

3.1.1 Cancer

3.1.2 Mental Health

3.1.3 Primary Care

3.1.4 Urgent Care

3.1.5 Maternity

3.1.6 Learning Disabilities

3.2 Domain 2 - Local transformation priorities

3.2.1 Outpatients

3.2.2 Integrated Respiratory Service

3.2.3 High Intensity Users

3.2.4 Integrated MSK

3.2.5 Diabetes

3.3 Domain 3 - Financial Sustainability

3.4 Domain 4 - Population health management and prevention
3.5 Domain 5 - Governance and leadership

3.5.1 Integration of the ICS into the wider health and social care system
4 ENABLERS

4.1 Back office

4.2 Estates

4.3 Shared Bed Modelling

4.4  Workforce planning

4.5 Digital Transformation

5 PATIENT AND PUBLIC ENGAGMENT

6 DELIVERING AND IMPROVING QUALITY

6.1 BHFT Quality Improvement programme

6.2 RBFT Quality Improvement programme

7 SUPPORTING APPENDICES

7.1 Annex 1 - Cancer

7.2  Annex 2 — Mental Health

7.3  Annex 3 - Primary Care

7.4  Annex 4 — Urgent Care

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 3

27

© 0 ~N N

11

13

13
14
14
15
16
16
17

17
17
18
19
19
19

20
21

23
24

26
26
26
27
27
27

29

31
32
32

34
34
35
39
44



7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8
7.9
7.10
7.11
7.12
7.13
7.14

Annex 5 — Maternity

Annex 6 — Learning Disabilities

Annex 7 — Outpatients

Annex 8 - Integrated Respiratory Service
Annex 9 — High Intensity Users

Annex 10 — Integrated MSK

Annex 11 — Diabetes

Annex 12 — Estates

Annex 13 — Shared Bed Modelling
Annex 14 — Workforce planning

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

28

a7
48
50
53
54
55
56
58
59
60



1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Berkshire West Integrated Care System (ICS) is a high performing set of health and care delivery organisations
which provide outstanding services to a population of 528,000 residents. The constituent organisations have an
excellent history of collaboration and integration which are seeking to build on this in order to realise a stretching set of
aspirations. The ICS strives to deliver the NHS Constitution by uniting patients and staff in a shared ambition for high
guality care by putting these values at the heart of everything we do:

e  Working together for patients.
. Respect and dignity

e  Commitment to quality of care
e  Compassion

e Improving lives

. Everyone counts

As a nationally recognised exemplar ICS we have been developing our system wide approach to progressing shared
transformation opportunities which will also ensure our organisations are financially sustainable for the future.
Recognising that we are stronger together, this theme of collaboration underpins our system operating plan for
2018/19.

At the heart of the ICS is the delivery of consistent high quality and safe care, ensuring the best possible outcome for
patients. The commitments outlined in the ICS Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) provide the focus for our work
with our local ICS Clinical Strategy acting as the cornerstone that underpins how we will transform and improve our
services. This is supported by key enabling programmes such as digital transformation and a focus on our collective
estates and back office functions to ensure these are fit for purpose and support our objectives.

The organisations which form the ICS are united in their commitment to:

o Deliver the Five Year Forward View further, faster and beyond the priorities set out in the Delivery Plan: Next
Steps document published in 2017

. Manage our resources together, which includes our finance, workforce and physical assets as a collective
with a commitment to operating a Financial System Control Total made by each of our statutory Boards

e Develop a new approach to service improvement based on the principles of Population Health Management,
analytics and data which will inform improved planning and transformation

e  Work as a single system, with a combined leadership which values the principle of collaboration

Financial sustainability is one of the key aims of the ICS and a significant amount of shared resource has been and
will continue to be required to support this. The ICS has a forecast gap of £16.9m between what it has been allocated
and what it is projected to spend in 2018/19. To mitigate this, our system has identified £11m of efficiency
improvements which will not reduce the range or quality of services which our patients are able to access. This leaves
a gap of £6m for which further schemes are being currently being developed through the ICS as a whole.

Our approach to Population Health Management (PHM) will ensure we are better placed to understand the needs of
the local population as a whole with specific improvement actions identified through which we can improve both
clinical and financial outcomes. This work is supporting our long term conditions (LTC) transformation which will align
specialist, primary and community care in one coherent package. This will also take into consideration, along a

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 5

29



continuum of care, any palliative and end of life care needs. We plan to move towards a model which reduces
fragmentation, and underpins care and support planning (C&SP).

Delivery in 2017/18 has focussed on six key clinical areas of transformation; these packages of work were defined
during the financial year 2016/17 and have been developed for implementation during 2018/19 and 2019/20 including:

e  Outpatient transformation

e  Development of an integrated Respiratory Service

e High Intensity Users programme

e Design and development of an Integrated MSK service
e  Maternity transformation

e Diabetes transformation

These, along with other programmes of work, are supported by key enablers including a review of back office
functions and estates, understanding and modelling our collective bed base, exploring opportunities for a streamlined
approach to medicines management, digital transformation as well as workforce development.

The ICS Quality Framework sets out how the ICS will use a strength based approach to ‘System Wide Quality
Improvement.” Berkshire West is leading the way nationally to demonstrate what can be achieved when Quality is
placed at the heart of a collaborative model for service improvement. As a successful ICS we are working together
with a shared vision to achieve agreed quality goals and an openness and willingness to challenge and scrutinise
each other; to ensure examples of best practice, as well as learning from when things go wrong is shared across the
system to achieve best outcomes.

This System Operating Plan provides the detail which underpins all of the above, demonstrating the strength of our
collective system and the confidence our leadership has that we can achieve our vision and objectives.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 6

30



2 BACKGROUND

2.1 Aboutus

The ICS is collaboration between health organisations to improve services for our local population, delivering
consistent high quality and safe care, ensuring the best possible outcome and experience for patients, whilst
delivering financial stability across the system.

The ICS is comprised of the following constituent members:

e Acute Hospital Provider — Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust (RBFT)

e Community/Mental Health services Provider — Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust (BHFT)

. Primary Care Provider Alliances — covering four distinct localities — South Reading, Wokingham, Newbury
and North and West Reading Alliances

e Clinical Commissioning Group — Berkshire West CCG

Together with our Local Authority partners we are responsible for the health and wellbeing of 528,000 residents living
across three Local Authority Areas:

e  West Berkshire;
. Reading; and
e  Wokingham.

Map 1: Berkshire West Geographical Footprint
Berkshire West ICS - April 2018

North and W est Reacing locality
* OGP practe 10
« Fopdionin Apnl201€ = 110511

Newbury
. 0P

Prospect Park Hospital
~

Wolongham Hospitel
West Berkshire Community Hospital

X =Royal Berkshire NHS Foundaton Trust South Reading locality Wokingham locality
» GPpractices = 16 * GPpractices =13
: = Berkshire Heakhcare NHS Foundabon « Population in Aprl 2018 = 147 642 = Population in April 2018 = 155 520
Trust
BerksW_ICS_0418_r1.wor 26/04/2018 Sid Beauchant BHFT @ Crown Copyright and database rights - 2018 OS 100051367. Al rights reserved,
NAVTEQ data by of NAVTEQ C Licence No, NVMMOG11, NVMM0OS12)

GeoPlan data by permission of Geoplan (Licence No. GPKWS812)

The ICS footprint, with a population size similar to Frimley Health & Care STP, is a self-contained health economy with
80% of patient movement, and the majority of funding, being between the constituent organisations. There are three
main urban areas — Reading, Newbury and Wokingham alongside vast areas of rurality, particularly in the far west of
the area. The areas themselves are also quite distinct in terms of their demographic and health profiles.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 7

31



The ICS is also a member of the Berkshire West, Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire (“BOB”) Sustainability and
Transformation Partnership (STP) recognising the opportunities of working together with partners at this larger scale
and progressing initiatives to improve quality and realise financial benefits for the wider system. Through its ICS
improvement schemes and local initiatives Berkshire West contribute fully to the delivery of STP wide programmes, for
example Maternity services, Urgent Care, Workforce and Prevention.

Generally, the health of residents of Berkshire West is good; however, there are some clear differences between the
populations in each of the local authority areas and this is reflected in the differing health needs (full locality profiles
can be found in Appendix 1 — separate attachment)

For most of Berkshire West the smoking rates are lower than the national rate in England, however in Reading the
rates are higher and therefore a health priority. The number of people drinking alcohol above the recommended
levels is fairly high, particularly in South Reading, and along with smoking is an area of focus for the ICS.

Obesity levels across the area are similar to the national figure as are rates of physical inactivity. The ICS works
closely with public health colleagues to monitor and improve these levels with targeted interventions in place to
support healthy eating and promoting healthy lifestyles.

Overall the health priorities for Berkshire West include:

e  Reducing childhood obesity

e Reducing alcohol consumption to safe levels and alcohol related harm

e  Promoting positive mental health and well-being

e Preventing and reducing early deaths from cardiovascular disease, diabetes, COPD, chronic kidney and
cancer

e Reducing levels of infectious diseases e.g. Tuberculosis

. Promoting self-care and empowerment

2.2 Our aims and objectives

The commitments outlined in the MoU provide the focus for our work with our local ICS Clinical Strategy acting as the
foundation that underpins how we will transform and improve our services. This is supported by key enabling
programmes such as digital transformation and a focus on our collective estates and back office functions to ensure
these are fit for purpose and support our objectives, as well as strong leadership from across ICS parties.

Focussed on the health and wellbeing of our local population, we are working together to develop a preventative
model of working, improve outcomes and experience for patients and deliver financial stability across our system.

Our collective aspiration is aligned with our separate organisational strategic objectives, values, and vision
statements, and is supported by the objectives within our MoU.

Our overarching objectives as an ICS are to deliver:

e Animprovement in the health and wellbeing of our population
¢ Enhancements to the experience of using health care services
e Value for money to local taxpayers and financial sustainability of services

This will require us to:

e Make fast and tangible progress in urgent and emergency care reform, strengthening general practice and
improving mental health and cancer services.

e Manage these and other improvements within a shared financial control total and to maximise the system-
wide efficiencies.

e Integrate services and funding, operating as an integrated health system, and progressively to build the
capabilities to manage the health of the ICS’ defined population, keeping people healthier for longer and
reducing avoidable demand for healthcare services.

e Demonstrate to other parts of the health and care system what can be achieved with strong local leadership
and increased freedoms and flexibilities.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 8

32



We will know that we have been successful if:

e  People take more responsibility for their own health and well-being

e  Care is being provided closer to home, wherever appropriate

e Clinical pathways are better integrated across providers to improve patient experience

e  The capability and capacity of primary, community and social care is increased to provide multidisciplinary
“wrap around” co-ordinated care that efficiently meets the patient’s needs

e We have a better understanding of the clinical needs of our population and maximise the opportunity to
prevent, and to intervene early to reduce the need for more intensive on-going care

e  We have a high quality, fit for purpose acute and specialist hospital service

e We have a shared quality strategy with system wide approach to the delivery and monitoring of quality

e  We operate to single budget for the whole health care system, making the most effective use of the Berkshire
West pound and delivering financial sustainability

o  People tell us that they are having good experiences of care and, importantly, people tell us when they have
not had good experiences of care so that trends can be identified and quality improvement solutions co-
designed to improve patient experiences.

e  Staff and workplace wellbeing is improved, and we build a sustainable and highly skilled health and care
workforce in Berkshire West

e  We ensure that duplication and waste is reduced across front and back office services

o  People will only be admitted into hospital, nursing or residential homes when the services they require cannot
be delivered elsewhere

o All the services that respond to people with an urgent need for care will operate together as a single system,
ensuring that people with urgent but not life-threatening conditions will receive responsive and effective care
on the most appropriate setting and where possible outside hospital.

These commitments have been set out in a Memorandum of understanding between the members of the ICS and the
NHS national bodies (NHS England and NHS Improvement).

2.3  Our constituent organisations

Most of the programme will be delivered through our constituent organisations each of which has refreshed its
strategy and aligned to our collective vision.

Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust

Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust (RBFT) is one of the largest general hospital foundation trusts in the country.
It provides acute medical and surgical services to the local population as well as specialist services such as cancer,
dialysis and eye surgery to a wider population.

Across September — October 2017 the RBFT was inspected by the CQC and the hospital site was rated as
‘outstanding’ (overall the Trust was rated ‘good’ as the CQC did not inspect other locations at this time.) This was a
remarkable achievement from the previous rating of ‘requires improvement’ in 2014. To date, RBFT is one of only two
hospitals in the country who have achieved this; and one of only 18 acute hospitals who have been awarded an
‘outstanding’ rating nationally.

In light of our collective journey toward being a fully functioning ICS, RBFT’s strategy and its clinical service strategy
have been reviewed and updated and aligns with the ICS clinical vision. More broadly in refreshing the strategy it is
recognised that the shared nature of the causes of the challenges that the health economy faces means it will be
difficult for RBFT to remain a successful independent organisation unless it works in proper partnership with patients
and colleagues from across the ICS. This is reflected in RBFT’s new vision statement which is “Working together to
provide outstanding care for our community”

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 9

33



Figure 1 — Royal Berkshire Hospital Trust Strategy

“Working togetherto provide outstanding care for our
community”™

(;.,) Provide the highest quality care
@ Investin our staff & live out our values
= Drive the development of integrated services
(§) Cultivate innovation & transformation
@:ﬂ) Achieve long-term financial sustainability

Compassionate

QOurvision

Aspirational

Resourceful

Our strategic priorities

Excellent

Our values

o) Quality .p2) Finance

k) People 7 Research&
Development
in) Estate

(&) IT/ Digital

Transformation

What successlooks like
=A step change in the health and wellbeing of local people
=Improvementin the quality and safety of our services

=Making new techniques and technologies available to the NHS both locally and
nationally as a result of our research

*"Providing local people with the opportunity to build the skills needed in modern
healthcare

=Supporting the development of community and civic life
*"Demeonstrating the benefits of integrated care to the rest of the NHS

RBFT is well placed to deliver on its strategy through:

e The hyper-acute stroke service is in the top 10% nationally and the heart attack centre consistently
achieves the fastest treatment times in the country.

. RBFT achieved the best improvement nationally in the proportion of cancer patients receiving treatment
within 62 days.

e  Whilst the Trust has an excellent record in delivering our A&E Waiting Times significant challenges were
experienced in the 2017/18 winter — however, we continue to work collaboratively with our regulators to
return to full compliance for A&E waiting time performance.

e RBFT is valued by patients with consistently high levels of satisfaction The Friends and Family test, a
national inpatient survey, places us in the top 10% of the country

e RBFT is one of the most research-active District General Hospitals in the country. The Trust had the
second highest number of patients recruited to trials and are 21st out of 161 NHS trusts recruiting to clinical
trials nationally. In 2016/17, the Trust has more than 5,500 participants in around 100 studies.

However, to meet future challenges there is a need to continually seek to change and innovate in order to provide
health care in ways that deliver the vision and outcomes expressed above. RBFT has a strong record in participating
in research and delivering transformative change and is continuing to build upon its capability to deliver improvement
in an ever more challenging economy. To this end an approach of listening and learning in order to develop
momentum and the required engagement with staff at all levels through the development of a success model will
enable further development and continuous improvement. This will occur as part of an overall transformation
programme for the ICS.

Examples at RBFT are: good track record in LoS (Length of Stay) reductions through pathway redesign; 5 year OTIS
theatre project which has been highly successful in increasing efficiency in theatre, collaborative work with Local
Authorities and Community colleagues to reduce long lengths of stay in hospital and increasingly we will be using
benchmarked and digital data to support further developments. The Trust is proud of its achievements and continues
to be committed to being an organisation of continual learning and improvement in order to deliver outstanding care to
the community and across the ICS.

A major platform for transformation at the Trust is its position as a fast follower Digital Exemplar site linked to Oxford
University Hospitals, with a 5 year programme of development to implement full clinical digital documentation, voice
enabled EP, and the development of advanced analytics and actionable intelligence to support audit, research and
clinical/operational service provision and the progression through to proactive population and personal health
management positioning the acute services at the heart of the prevention and wellbeing agenda across the ICS.

Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust

Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust’'s (BHFT) vision is ‘to be recognised as the leading community and mental
health service provider by our staff, patients and partners’. It provides a wide range of hospital and community
Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 10

34



based services to people of all ages living in Berkshire. The Trust employs around 4,500 staff operating from many
hospital and clinic sites across the county, as well as in people’s homes and various community settings.

BHFT delivers integrated physical and mental health services, helping people to remain independent at home for as
long as possible and providing the care and support that best meets the needs of patients, from early years to end of
life, in the most suitable location. In addition to inpatient mental health and community physical health hospital
services, the Trust provides a range of specialist clinics and services aimed at young people, adults and older people
to support and treat mental health, physical health and sexual health conditions. The Trust works in close partnership
with Berkshire’s two acute hospital trusts, Royal Berkshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Frimley Health NHS
Foundation Trust, Berkshire’s six local authorities and a diverse range of community and charitable organisations.

Berkshire Healthcare’s overall CQC rating is Good, with the Trust's older people’s community mental health
services rated as Outstanding. Berkshire Healthcare is only one of two similar trusts in the country to be awarded a
Good rating, and its ambition is to achieve an overall rating of Outstanding in 2018. The Trust is in NHS
Improvement segment one, defined as “maximum autonomy and lowest level of oversight appropriate”, reflecting a
strong track record of effective financial management and its digital maturity and innovation has been recognised with
the award of Global Digital Exemplar status.

As a community and mental health service provider, BHFT also recognises the key contribution they make in providing
more care closer to patient's homes, working alongside our partner acute, primary care, community and voluntary
sector providers. BHFT is committed to partnership working over the long term — delivering many integrated services
with partner providers — and their strategic plans reflect their understanding that long term sustainability of services
requires a system wide approach. The Trust is a committed partner in the two integrated care systems, making a
major contribution to leadership and governance, as well as specific work streams. The Trust has developed
appropriate structures and systems to enable it to work efficiently and flexibly with both integrated care systems. Its
key objectives incorporate achievement of targets within national and local priorities as well as development of the
capability required to fully exploit the opportunities presented by the ICS.

2.4  Our achievements

The Berkshire West local health economy is collectively recognised as high-performing and benchmarks well
nationally on a number of key performance measures, including non-elective admission rates and prescribing. We are
recognised across Thames Valley and nationally for leading the development of innovative approaches to improving
clinical care and patient experience, for example Diabetes Care, Heart Service Stroke care, and Improving Access to
Psychological Therapy services.

Together we have a long and successful history of working together to deliver common programmes, projects and
goals. 2018/19 is the second year of a two year plan and examples of success in year one include:

Launch of Thames Valley Integrated Urgent Care Service (111)

The new Thames Valley IUC 111 service was launched in September 2017 and ensures that people can access a
wide range of clinical care through a single call, including dental, pharmacy and mental health services. This new
service is provided by South Central Ambulance Service in collaboration with BHFT, Oxford Health NHS Foundation
Trust and Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust. The procurement and mobilisation of this pioneering service was
led by Berkshire West CCG with expert opinion provided by senior clinicians in the ICS organisations.

Achievement of the Cancer 62 Day Waiting Time Target

In 2017, Berkshire West was recognised for outstanding improvements in the provision of timely access to cancer
services. This improvement was delivered collaboratively between the CCGs and RBFT, with a significant programme
of improvement within RBFT to deliver both capacity and process improvements, building on the excellent joint
working arrangements in place between the organisations. This improvement was recognised in the form of a letter
from the Secretary of State to acknowledge the progress which has been made for cancer patients in our system.

For the last 3 years improvement and robust delivery has been seen for routine patients accessing care via the RTT
18 week waiting time standard. This is involved collaborative working between the CCGs and RBFT and wrapped
around a strong improvement programme within RBFT. This included a technological solution to support clinicians
navigate the complex system of reporting RTT stages of treatment along the pathway, and thereby releasing time for
both clinical and administrative staff

A&E 4 Hour Standard and Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery incl DTOC reduction

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 11

35



Berkshire West has a strong track record in delivering improvements in urgent and emergency care and increasingly
via the A&E Delivery Board partnership working in this area has further developed. Evidence of this over recent years
is a strong system of primary and community care services providing the right care, right place and right time to avoid
attendance at hospital. In tandem, there have been steady improvements in opening up the ‘back door’ supported by
Local Authorities, across all hospital sites — both acute and community. RBFT is a strong performer locally in Thames
Valley, usually sitting in the top slot for performance for the 4 hour quality standard. However, a drop in performance
in Q3/Q4 of 2017/18 has prompted a further review of all aspects of end to end emergency care directed at returning
delivery of the 4 hour waiting time requirement to 95% by the end of 2018/19. This includes further collaborative work
following a Local Authority review to take to the next stage improvements on long stay pathways, building on
improvements in 2017/18.

Implementation of the Connected Care IT platform

Working in collaboration with Berkshire East CCGs and the Frimley Health and Social Care ICS, the Berkshire West
system has led the way in the provision of integrated digital platforms which enable the sharing of information across
health and social care organisational boundaries. As well as combining information held in different IT systems across
the county, the shared record allows care professionals to create and update care plans, creating co-ordinated multi-
agency care for individual patients and enables new ways of delivering services.

We are working in partnership with FHFT to deliver the goal of developing and deploying a Cancer Health Information
Exchange (HIE) to enable both improvements to the flow of information between provider sites and increase the
visibility of relevant information to the patient themselves.

In addition our organisations are regularly nominated for national awards which recognise the scale of our ambition,
particularly with regard to our digital innovations (Connected Care), values (Mental Health) and research (Stroke,
Nursing and Patient Involvement).

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 12

36



3 DELIVERING AN INTEGRATED CARE
SYSTEM

Set out in the section below are the five domains against which the ICS will deliver. This are:

e Domain 1 - Deliver the 5 Year Forward View

e Domain 2 — Deliver local transformation priorities
e Domain 3 — Deliver financial sustainability

e Domain 4 — Embed a population health approach
¢ Domain 5 — ICS Governance and Leadership

These domains and how they interact with each are presented below:

Figure 2: Berkshire West ICS transformation programme

the NHS Five Year
Forvward View

Deliver the Five Year
Forward view along

writh nationad Lacal Transformation

priarities

= Qutpatient
transformation

= Respiratory Service
- High Intensity
Users programme

- MSK
- 10 point e fficlency
- Diabetes plan

health approach

- Risk stratification

- Health profiling
- Prevention and self
care

Berkshire West Integrated Care System - Governance and Leadership
Enablers - Back office. Estates, Digital, Workforce, Bed modelling

3.1 Domain 1 - Five year forward view

the NHS Five Year As one of the pillars of the ICS, delivery of the Five Year Forward View is central to improving
Forward View the health of our local population. Each of the sections below sets out achievements to date as

well as how the Forward View will be delivered by the ICS in 2018/19 aligned to the expectations
»" of the MoU. Each of these areas of work has a developed project plan with clear milestones and

is overseen by the ICS governance framework to ensure successful delivery.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 13

37



3.1.1 Cancer

The approach to providing cancer services in Berkshire West in 2018/2019 continues to be delivered through the
jointly agreed Berkshire West Cancer Framework. We continue to work closely with the Thames Valley Cancer
Alliance and are fully engaged in all the emerging work streams. We have reviewed our progress against our
objectives and agreed our local and Cancer Alliance priorities for 2018/2019 to continue the momentum of
implementing the six priorities in the national Cancer strategy, the Five Year Forward View and the Thames Valley
Cancer Alliance key ambitions by 2021. Please see Annex 1 for more information.

3.1.2 Mental Health

Improving mental health is a fundamental part of our ICS operating plan. The Five Year Forward View for Mental
Health (2016) sets out a clear direction for the NHS to improve mental health and wellbeing, highlighting why change
is required and what good will look like. Some of what is needed can be brought about by the NHS itself. Other actions
require partnerships with local organisations including local government, housing, education, employment and the
voluntary sector.

Berkshire West has a strong foundation of partnership working in mental health, with well-established collaborative
approaches to strategic and financial planning. We plan to build on this through the establishment of a joint mental
health strategy function within our ICS to drive the delivery of the Five Year Forward View ambitions.

The evidence is clear that improving outcomes for people with mental health problems supports them to achieve
greater wellbeing, build resilience and independence and optimise life chances, as well as reducing premature
mortality. We recognise that putting more focus on early intervention, investing in effective evidence-based care and
integrating the care of people’s mental and physical health will have significant gains for local people and support the
achievement of ICS objectives.

Developed in partnership with commissioners, local authority partners and public health, the Berkshire Healthcare
Mental Health Strategy outlines the key areas of focus for 2016 — 2021 which are summarised below.

Figure 3: Berkshire Healthcare Mental Health Strategy

Our Connected Care Programme for our shared electronic patient record, along with the work we are doing as Global
Digital Exemplar for mental health are key enablers for us in the delivery of Five Year Forward View Targets. Use of
technology is supporting the delivery of increased access through online delivery models, and effective use of staffing
resources. Our Mental Health Workforce Plan, which will be completed in March 2018, will outline our key risks and
mitigation of these — and progress will be monitored by the ICS Workforce Group as well as by the Berkshire
Healthcare Workforce Strategy Steering Group.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 14

38



Our multi-agency Mental Health Delivery Partnership Steering Group is responsible for ensuring delivery of the Five
Year Forward View for Mental Health, and is accountable to the Unified Executive of our ICS. Full information on the
following projects can be found in Annex 2:

Increasing Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
Physical Health Check and Care co-ordination

Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP)

Psychiatric Liaison service

Individual Placement and Support services (IPS)
Reducing suicide rates

Perinatal Mental Health

Eliminating out of area placements for non-specialist acute care
Dementia

Children and Young People

Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS)

3.1.3 Primary Care

The Berkshire West General Practice Forward View (GPFV) Local Implementation Plan sets out a vision for a
sustainable primary care sector working at-scale and as an integral component of the ICS to offer an extended range
of integrated and proactive services in the community. To achieve this vision, our practices have come together into
Primary Care Provider Alliances, with all practices within them working in geographically-contiguous clusters which will
interface with other services to meet the health needs of groups of 30-50,000 patients (Primary Care Networks). At a
system-level, the alliances are working together in an ‘Alliance of Alliances’ which will look to maximise their impact
within the ICS.

The ICS’s GPFV programme for 2018-19 will include the following key components:

Primary Care Networks — the network/alliance structure is to support delivery of primary care at-scale.
Integrated health and social care teams within networks will use population health analytics to plan targeted
care and will deliver a joined-up community response to acute presentations. The range of services provided
in primary care setting are to be expanded through new ways of working with other ICS partners, e.g. through
outpatients transformation and care and support planning for patients with long-term conditions.

Access — delivery of Enhanced Access (100% of patients to have access to primary care in the evenings, at
weekends and on bank holidays) and new ways of responding to same day demand through primary care
access hubs.

Workforce — systematic workforce modelling/planning, further development of skill-mix in primary care
including clinical pharmacists, paramedics and physicians’ associates, actions to improve GP recruitment and
retention, continued professional development across the primary care workforce and development of clinical
and managerial leadership capability.

Workload — delivery of Time for Care programme with focus on active signposting, group consultations and
quality improvement. Completing implementation of workflow optimisation and online consultation and
supporting alliances to further explore sharing of back office functions. Wearable technology project as part of
work to maximise impact of self-care.

Estates and infrastructure — delivery of ETTF (NHSE Estates and Technology Transformation Fund) and non-
ETTF premises schemes and further development of primary care estates strategy (see Enablers, below).
Roll out of access to Connected Care Health Information Exchange (see Enablers, below) to primary care.

Sustainability and resilience funding — further funding to be allocated in accordance with guidance to support
future sustainability of primary care sector.

Delegated commissioning — fully delegated commissioning processes to underpin delivery of GPFV which will
be overseen by Primary Care Commissioning Committee. The approach to improving quality is to be
reviewed in 2018/19 as part of development of ICS Quality Framework (see below).

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 15

39



Please see Annex 3 for more information.

3.1.4 Urgent Care

The A&E 4 hour standard remains one of the key indicators of success for the urgent and emergency care system.
Whilst the winter of 2017/18 has been very challenging we have a strong track record of delivery across the urgent
care pathway and learning from 2017/18 has, and continues to be used to, inform plans for 2018/19 Whilst our system
is proud to be achieving over 90% performance, which is a reflection of the whole system focus on patient safety-
experience and maintaining flow through the acute site and recipient organisations, this is not sufficient. The drive to
return to compliance at 95% is strong and is being supported by the Accident and Emergency Delivery Board who
have developed a suite of improvement initiatives aimed at driving improvement against this constitutional standard.
We will do this by delivering improved service provision in support of the principles of valuing patients’ time by
providing a combination of care at home wherever possible, the avoidance of overnight stays by increasing
ambulatory options and reducing time in hospital where hospital admission is needed.

. Priorities include:

e Increased usage of ambulatory care pathways utilising the new protected Ambulatory Care area

e Increased use of hot clinics and telephone access to Consultants

e  Maximising the potential of the Primary Care streaming service with the inclusion of paediatrics

e Continued drive on efficiency through the bed base across the system with red/green actions for all patients
and a reduction in stranded patients

e A partnership model for managing bedded care across the system as a whole, ensuring right care, right place,
right time including a system wide bed management system to create visibility and smoother access

e Integrated Discharge service working with medically fit patients on a case management approach to improve
discharge flow

e Increased focus on discharge to assess and further development of the Trusted Assessor approach with roll
out of the Standard Operating Procedure and single referral form

¢ Robust use of the Choice Policy with interim placements being seen as a part of the pathway

The Thames Valley Integrated Urgent Care (TVIUC) service successfully launched in September 2017. The service is
provided by an Alliance led by South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust, working in partnership with
Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust and Buckinghamshire Healthcare
NHS Trust. The service is based on a specification designed in 2016 and refined during a period of co-production
between the Alliance and commissioners during Q1 of 2017-18. The new service incorporates a Clinical Assessment
Service (CAS) with a range of specialist clinicians including GPs, mental health practitioners, nurses, prescribing
pharmacists, dental professionals and currently 30% of calls receive advice from a clinician within the CAS. Call
streaming also ensures that vulnerable groups such as the under 5s, over 85s and those receiving palliative care can
benefit from immediate clinical advice.

Please see Annex 4 for more information

3.1.5 Maternity

In February 2016 Better Births was published and it set out the Five Year Forward View for NHS maternity services in
England. It set out a compelling view of what maternity services should look like in the future. The vision is clear: we
should work together across organisational boundaries in larger place-based systems to provide a service that is kind,
professional and safe, offering women informed choice and a better experience by personalising their care.

A national Maternity Transformation Programme has been established to take forward implementation of the vision.
However, Better Births recognised that delivering such a vision would rely primarily on local leadership and action.
Consequently, it recommended commissioners, providers and service users coming together as Local Maternity
Systems to deliver local transformation.

A Local Maternity System (LMS) was established across the BOB STP in March 2017 as recommended by the Better
Births Report: National Maternity Review published in June 2016. As a result of the capacity issues across Thames
Valley maternity services is one of the main priorities for the BOB STP. The Senior Responsible Officer for Maternity is
the Chief Executive of Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust who nominated the Chair responsibility to the Director
of Nursing for Berkshire West CCG. The membership of the LMS Board includes representatives as recommended in
the NHS E LMS Resource pack. The LMS Board meets quarterly with working groups set up to address the 5 main
priorities:

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 16

40



Improving the safety of maternity care by 2020/21
Increasing Choice and Personalisation
Transforming the workforce

Improve access to Perinatal Mental Health Services
Improving Prevention

SAEEI A

Please see Annex 5 for more information.

3.1.6 Learning Disabilities

The Transforming Care Partnership (TCP) Board comprises 14 Health and Social Care partners across the county
who hold a shared vision and commitment to support the implementation of the national service model for children,
young people and adults with learning disabilities and/or autism, who have behaviour that challenges and may or may
not have mental health issues and have come into contact with the criminal justice system. The model requires
integration and collaboration by commissioners, providers and other sectors to enable this cohort of people to lead
meaningful lives through tailored care plans that meet individual needs.

Please see Annex 6 for more information

3.2 Domain 2 - Local transformation priorities

The work of the ICS can be categorised within two distinct areas — New Care Models and New
Business Models (Enablers). These packages of work were defined during the financial year
2016/17 and have been developed for implementation during this phase of the programme. A
second phase of workstreams will quickly follow, building on the work achieved to date to enable
greater clinical transformation.

The objective of the New Care Models workstreams is to give the freedom and support to our clinical leaders for the
design of service improvements for our patients. These clinical improvements will deliver the main programme
objectives such as ensuring the requirements of the Five Year Forward View, improving the financial position and
enhancing patient experience and outcomes.

The objective of the New Business Models workstreams are to find new ways of working collaboratively which support
the infrastructure of the ICS for example contractual form and payment mechanisms to deliver better efficiencies in the
way we work.

In defining the priorities of the ICS it is recognised that there are areas of clinical variation and high demand where
transformation of existing ways of working and service delivery is required in order to fulfil our ambitions for excellent
patient care as well as support financial sustainability. These cover the clinical areas set out below:

e  Outpatient transformation

o Development of an integrated Respiratory Service

. High Intensity Users programme

. Design and development of an Integrated MSK service
. Maternity

. Diabetes transformation

These, along with other programmes of work are supported by key enablers including review of back office functions
and estates, understanding and modelling our collective bed base, exploring opportunities for a streamlined approach
to medicines management, digital transformation as well as workforce development.

3.2.1 Outpatients

Nationally and locally there are increasing demands on outpatient services with growth in referrals year on year
putting demands on outpatient facilities, waiting times and clinicians. Across England there was an increase of 9% in
referrals between 2016 and 2017, and locally the increasing volume of referrals to RBFT in some specialties has
reinforced the understanding that there is a need to review our approach to outpatients and ensure that future models
are safe and cost effective.

The vision for the outpatients transformation programme is to redesign outpatient services by:

1. Developing alternative options to complement current practice

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 17

41



2. Optimising the use of technology advances

Truly integrating working across pathways

4. Developing care closer to home to improve patient experience and reduce the reliance on the acute RBFT
site

w

The overall aim is to provide the optimum patient experience and best value for money for the Berkshire West pound.

This transformation programme is a strategic change programme delivered as a collaborative approach through the
ICS with RBFT, BHFT, Berkshire West CCG and the emerging GP Alliances working together to achieve the
changes. It builds upon an internal RBFT three year outpatients modernisation programme that started early in April
2017 and takes advantage of the ICS development to give the programme a wider perspective and gain greater
benefits.

Following extensive pathway mapping, engagement of patients and clinicians, a menu of options for implementation
have been developed which will be used in all clinical specialties at RBFT. The changes have been designed to
achieve a combination of a significant shift of outpatient appointments on the main RBFT site to locality sites across
the network so they are closer to patient’'s homes. Options include the introduction of patient initiated clinics to
support a reduction in unnecessary follow ups, the further development of virtual clinics and one stop clinics and new
offers such as skype consultations and easier access to Consultant opinions by GPs will reduce the need for
patients to be referred in. For more information please see Annex 7.

Figure 4: How outpatient services could be delivered in the future

How could patients

receive outpatient
consultations?

3.2.2 Integrated Respiratory Service

Work is under way to develop an integrated approach to managing patients with respiratory conditions. This builds on
a previous case for change to increase access to specialist consultant skills across community and secondary care
implementing an appropriate outcome based approach to meet local population needs.

The aim of the service is to reduce unplanned hospital admissions and demand for specialist outpatient services by
achieving the following objectives:

e To provide a fully integrated service for primary, secondary and community care through virtual clinics and an
MDT approach to respiratory provision in a community setting

e  To promote early identification of COPD and Asthma self-management and intervention to improve the well-
being of patients with respiratory disease

e To reduce reliance on specialist skills where alternative approaches can be adopted.

e  To upskill primary and community to ensure the potential to support the patient population is maximised.

There are a number of current work-streams which form part of the Outpatient Transformation Programme and are
focussing on revised pathways for managing both Sleep Apnoea and chronic cough. In addition work is in progress to
review existing patients with COPD/Asthma, mainly in relation to current medication. This will continue to support
discussions regarding most effective ways to meet the needs of the local population. For more information please see
Annex 8

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 18

42



3.2.3 High Intensity Users

A substantial proportion of the healthcare budget is accounted for by relatively few patients. This indicates significant
potential for reducing workload on urgent care services and the wider health economy via a targeted and proactive
intervention. Learning from Blackpool has demonstrated that an approach of empathy and coaching rather than
enforcement has the potential to reduce the volume of urgent care activity for this cohort and indeed improve
outcomes for patients.

This model of support has been replicated locally through the implementation of a High Intensity User (HIU) service
working across RBFT, BHFT, SCAS and primary care. The approach offers a robust way of working across the ICS to
reduce activity to 999, NHS 111, A&E, GP contacts and hospital admissions, freeing up front line resources to focus
on more clients and reduce costs. It uses a health coaching approach, targeting high users of services and supports
the most vulnerable clients within the community to flourish, whilst making the best use of available resources.

The service will measure the impact directly on 999 call outs, A&E attendances and associated admissions as well as
gualitative outcomes for clients. However, through the Connected Care technology the project will also have the
visibility of how the work of the coaches impacts on the wider health system, for example primary care and mental
health services. For more information please see Annex 9.

3.2.4 Integrated MSK

Musculoskeletal conditions (MSK) are one of the areas of greatest spend for Berkshire West with care currently split
across primary care, intermediate services and acute provision. With an ageing population there are increasing levels
of demand and variation in referrals and management of MSK conditions which supports an overall case for change.
Further work is required to improve the service to patients through developing and implementing a more integrated
and coordinated programme.

People with MSK conditions need to be able to access high quality support and a wide range of treatments. These
range from simple behavioural or exercise advice to highly technical, specialised medical and surgical treatments.
Multidisciplinary, integrated services are essential and need to incorporate rapid assessment and diagnosis.

The new integrated service aims to deliver the following outcomes:

1. An end to end pathway that encompasses de-medicalising MSK and promoting self-care and healthy living
such as exercise and healthy eating as enablers to have a positive impact on MSK issues;
2. A community provision where primary and community care providers work closely with physiotherapists to
provide direct access for patients with MSK conditions to physiotherapists. By ensuring all aspects of self-
management are explored to manage the condition this will result in appropriate referrals to secondary care
in line with clinical need;
Patients to participate in a shared decision making process before referral for a procedure to secondary care;
Reducing clinical variation and duplication through pathway coherence;
Ensuring that every MSK practitioner is consistent in their approach;
Addressing the issues and concerns identified by patients and improving the quality of patient experience;
Patients are given choices for treatments in line with the NHS Constitution
Providers will identify and eliminate waste from within the MSK pathway and supply chain (as outlined in the
Getting it Right The First Time report) therefore delivering commercial efficiency for the Berkshire West
system moving toward a whole-system approach;
9. Utilisation of IT solutions to provide integrated care
For more information please see Annex 10.

©No gk

3.2.5 Diabetes

The overarching BOB STP plan for Diabetes Transformation focuses on improving the efficiency of the BOB area
while bringing care closer to home and improving access to more appropriate and timely healthcare for their
population. This plan shows the commitment of all the constituent CCGs to move towards a common goal of reducing
variation in care across the whole STP area.

The projected rapid increase in numbers of people with diabetes and those at risk, combined with a transient
population places considerable challenges on the health and care systems.

Table 1: Predicted Diabetes Populations in the next 5, 10 and 15 years.

Berkshire West | 27,124 | 7.1% | 2020

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 19

43



Berkshire West 29,492 7.5%
Buckinghamshire 40,597 7.2%
Oxfordshire 37,524 8.5% | 2025

The ICS within the STP footprint is committed to enabling people with diabetes to have access to appropriate,
sustainable healthcare and support. Therefore the Diabetes Transformation fund provides us with the opportunity to
create more flexible options to improve health outcomes for people with diabetes. Additional funds will accelerate the
ability of the system to reduce variation in care delivered, increase the amount of care provided in the community and
closer to home and improve access to secondary care services when needed for people with diabetes.

Across the ICS the recorded prevalence of Diabetes for adults is lower than the expected prevalence. This
discrepancy varies across the geography with primary care management in Newbury & District, Wokingham and
South Reading sitting within the lower quartile. The whole system approach being adopted by the ICS is aimed at
reducing this variance, which we acknowledge cannot be attributed to population structures and deprivation alone. In
2012 the reports from the National Diabetes Audit of 2009-2010 identified the need for change with the 8 key
processes for diabetes care being amongst the worst in matched communities in England.

Across Berkshire West significant improvements have been made in the last 5 years to improve the outcomes and
experience, reduce variation and improve sustainability of resources. However there are still some unacceptable gaps
in provision. Plans are in place to improve this through patient engagement, collaboration with other stakeholders,
supporting Health Care Professionals (HCP) and investing in the use of technology and informatics. This includes the
recognition within our Long term Conditions transformation programme that Diabetes is rarely a single condition and
therefore holistic assessment and support is crucial. It is recognised that for many people with diabetes this is only
one of many conditions they live with. Therefore our aim is to embed a truly patient centred, holistic approach, and we
plan to continue to extend the focus of the current care and support planning to include review of other related
conditions and aim to develop a single all-encompassing care plan for people with multiple needs. This will
concentrate on what is important for the patient, enable joint decision making, to increase patient participation and
self-management. For more information please see Annex 11.

3.3 Domain 3 - Financial Sustainability

Financial sustainability is one of the key aims of the ICS and a significant amount of shared resource
has been and will continue to be required to support this. The allocations for 18/19 provide welcome
additional funding for both providers and commissioners, but from a CCG allocation perspective
Berkshire West now has the second lowest per head funding in the country.

Table 2: CCG allocation

Per Capita Funding*

Berkshire West CCG £1,059

SE England average £1,196

England average £1,254

*raw population

Compared with other CCGs, Berkshire West CCG is the 7" furthest away from target funding with a distance from
target of c£25m.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 20

44



The ICS has a Chief Finance Officers’ Group which has developed a number of work streams to support our
sustainability in 2018/19:

e New payment mechanisms (linked into national work streams) — The ICS has a shared ambition to move
away from PbR, the final arrangements for this continue to be developed alongside the work on the system
control total.

e  System control total (linked into national work streams) — This is currently subject to discussion with NHSE/I
and will be finalised post submission subject to individual Governing Body/Board approval.

e Contractual form — The ICS will be using the Standard NHS Contract which will be supplemented with an
Alliance Agreement setting out the risk share arrangements for 2018/19.

. New ways of working — enabling finance, Business Intelligence and contracting staff to have different
conversations focussed on identifying issues and solutions rather than focussing on reconciling different
datasets.

e  Group Accounts — the development of a consolidation model for group accounts giving full visibility of system
income and costs and enabling the identification of inconsistent assumptions each month, which is assisting
with contract alignment work.

The ICS system gap is calculated to be £16.9m for 2018/19. Against this gap the CCG has identified £5.6m of savings
which do not impact on the wider system and where there is high degree of confidence on delivery - this includes
prescribing initiatives, merger and contractual savings. The ICS has also identified £1.8m of savings which are the full
year effect of schemes identified in 2017/18 and other schemes that have sufficient work up to allow confidence
regarding delivery. A further £9.5m of new schemes including the opportunities identified by Right Care and linked to
the 10 Point Efficiency Plan are currently being developed by the ICS. There are a number of mitigations available to
the CCGs should it not be possible to fully close the gap with new transformation schemes in year.

Providers have the following CIPs:

o RBFT - £16m (4.6%) requirement against which there is a risk adjusted plan of £12.5m
e BHFT - £4.8m (1.9%) requirement against which there is a risk adjusted plan of £3.9m (Berkshire West's
share being 60%)

The work on system transformation is focussed on addressing both demand and cost.

The ICS management teams are working together to develop a plan for long term financial sustainability. Using our
ICS Group Accounts tool we are working with colleagues and our regulators to understand our unmitigated financial
gap for the future period and identify the issues which are causing this.

In order to generate additional transformation focus areas, the ICS will seek to work within the current Five Year
Forward View performance framework to identify areas for improvement. These services will be benchmarked against
comparators and examined in the context of our overarching Population Health Management approach to understand
where opportunities may exist to improve services and reduce their cost. However, available benchmarking data does
indicate that the system will need to be very creative and that real transformation will be required in order to close the
underlying gap while funding is below target. Furthermore, the ICS has a focus on reducing cost and maximising value
rather than shifting the gap between commissioner and provider with traditional QIPP schemes focussing on PBR.

The ICS Clinical Delivery Group which brings together our lead clinicians from across the ICS that will own this work
and drive the delivery of transformation projects through well-established system programme boards to ensure that
opportunities are realised. The ICS participants will continue to use available data and national programmes to inform
the system wide efficiency programme which focusses on both new care models and new business models.

3.4 Domain 4 - Population health management and prevention

- Population Health Management (PHM) is an approach to better understand the needs of the local
v population as a whole with specific improvement actions identified through which the local NHS can
,‘_ﬂ'";.,.v‘- & improve both clinical and financial outcomes. PHM is the aggregation of patient data across
o'.“o"‘;';;'-;'j"' multiple health information technology resources, the analysis of that data into a single, actionable
T ap . patient record, and the actions through which care providers can improve both clinical and financial
a "~ outcomes. The overarching objective of population health management is to identify, predict,
intervene and support patients to manage conditions cost-effectively, but also move the system from performance
monitoring to outcome monitoring, through:

Figure 5: Population health management approach:

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 21

45



Infrastructure Analysis Transformation

* Getting data * U=ing date to = Making Berkshire
ready to use inferm change West Integrated
Care system data
led

This approach will promote integrated care, centred on the patient, in order to provide better health outcomes and
value for money. The ICS has already begun to work on PHM, with the use of Theograph to plan and monitoring High
Intensity user patients, this approach will be adopted for New Models of Care across the system in 2018/19, through
the uses of wider data sources.

Our developing approach to Population Health Management is to:

e Build and expand on the information within the Connected Care Health Information Exchange to support
Direct Care, including effective shared care planning and to identify individuals within the population at greater
risk to and provide early invention services

e Design both an Operational Dashboard and a Planning Dashboard that focuses the ICSs clinicians,
operational and executive teams on meeting the Triple Aims moving from Performance to Outcome based
Models of Care

e Use our population health management approach to accurately segment the local population to enable better
service planning and delivery

During 2018/19, the ICS is working with NHS England as a National Population Health Dashboard Exemplar, linking
with Cerner, North East London CSU and Imperial University College. During April 2018 the Berkshire West Integrated
System will be completing NHS England Population Health Readiness Assessment and undertaking a deep dive on
Data, Information Governance and Analytics in order to understand our system strengths, what we need to adapt and
what we will need to procure to support a data led system.

Figure 6: Our population health management approach

A 25%

5% of patients . .
account for | Adwvanced illness:

50% of all 2 Requiring ongoing and
medical costs | complex case management

At-risk, multiple
., chronic conditions:
¢ Requiring ongoing care
management

Healthiest:
', Utilizing preventive and
/' wellness services, some
acute care

People with Multiple Long Term Conditions: Demand for services is predicted to continue to rise with a growing
older population and people living with more complex long term conditions. The utilisation of Population Health
analytics has formed the basis of our work within the ICS which has commenced during 2017/18, aiming to transform
care for people with multiple Long Term Conditions. Analysis of data within the Adjusted Clinical Groups (ACG)
system ACG Tool (University (Johns Hopkins Adjusted Clinical Groups® (ACG®) System) has been utilised to support
benchmarking and subsequent identification of resource requirements. Using profiling and risk stratification resources
we are able to stratify populations to ensure resources are targeted more effectively and efficiently. It is recognised
that there needs to be a fundamental shift from more traditional reactive, compartmental and unplanned approaches
to one which is truly patient centred, proactive and anticipatory, enabling patients and carers to access services at or

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 22

46



as close to home as possible and which aligns specialist, primary and community care in one coherent package. This
will also take into consideration, along a continuum of care, any palliative and end of life care needs. We plan to move
towards a model which reduces fragmentation, and underpins care and support planning (C &SP). The Long Term
Conditions Programme approach aims to identify effective and sustainable approaches to underpin the prevention of
an avoidable increase in health need that may lead to a loss of independence and an increase in demand on services.

Prevention and self-management: Prevention and self-management sits at the core of our methodology to
improving the health and wellbeing of the population in Berkshire West, consistent with a population health
management approach. The increased prevalence of chronic diseases occurring in all Western economies requires a
strong reorientation away from the reliance on acute and episodic based care, towards prevention, self-care, more
consistent standards of primary care, and care that is well co-ordinated, integrated and anticipates and
avoids/minimises deteriorations and complications.

Seeing systematic population level change in the health and wellbeing of the Berkshire West population will require a
preventative approach, delivered from the community, which will address modifiable risk factors to ensure better
health.

In embedding a focus on prevention and self-management, the ICS will:

e Ensure technology such as information provision and decision support is rolled out to assist patients to
manage their own conditions

. Improve patient knowledge and education, particularly in relation to long term conditions, to empower patients
to take control of their conditions and understand how to manage them effectively

e Focus on lifestyle factors such as a reduction in smoking and obesity and an increase in exercise to prevent
the onset of disease

e Ensure that every contact with a health or social care professional counts, taking the opportunity to deliver
health promotion messages at each opportunity where the setting of care enables this interaction to occur.

3.5 Domain 5 - Governance and leadership

The ICS has been in place since 2015 with a ‘programme governance’ structure that has been refreshed
in 2017 to reflect both leadership and delivery within the ICS. The structure that has been set up
enables us to monitor progress against delivery of the MoU objectives which drives the measures of

[ success for Berkshire West. This is governed by a monthly programme dashboard which tracks this
progress.

This approach has been founded on a number of principles, most importantly that of reaching joint consensus prior to
any further decision which may be required at an organisation level. Other principles include:

. Maintaining strong clinical leadership through a clinically led process to ensure that decision makers can be
confident that changes are being made in the best interests of patients

e  Clear points of accountability for projects and deliverables

e Using business as usual / standard governance procedures as widely as possible to take decisions

e A commitment to wider integration with Local Government and other strategic partnerships which add value
for the taxpayer
Remaining transparent and open to scrutiny from patients and the public
Providing assurance in a coherent manners to our regulators

e  Ensuring Healthwatch are involved at ICS Programme Board level ICS and patient champions are involved
with individual projects wherever possible.

Figure 7: Berkshire West ICS Governance structure

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 23

47



Berkshire West Governing Body RBFT Board and Finance Sub- BHFT Board and Finance Sub-

and Finance Committee committee committee
T N N
p- ~ / Chair of IB invited to ICS /~ CFO Led Projects ™\
BW10 |ntegrat® Leadership Team

rTTTmmom3 Leadership Team
Contract &
finance

Integration
Board

Unified Executive

Team
Delivery Group
CFO Group
Finance Sub
Group

o /

Back Office
Project Group

Shared Estates
Project Group

Clinical Delivery
Group

[T

=
\

ICS programme boards ICS Clinical Priority Project Groups Enablers

Joint Outpatients
Prescribing Transformation
Group Project Group
MSK Project
Group ) .
ighlinicnsity Bed Modelling Workforce

Primary Care MH Strate Long Term
Commissioning Group & Conditions
Committee Board

Maternity A&E Delivery Planned Care
Steering group Board Board

Users Project .
Group Project Group

NB: The configuration of these meetings will change
following the review of CCG Programme Boards

Escalation and scrutiny is provided by the ICS Unified Executive with clinical oversight, support and guidance is
provided by the ICS Clinical Delivery Group. The latter also performs a critical function in ensuring that opportunities
for cross-programme board working and the elimination of duplication are realised.

3.5.1 Integration of the ICS into the wider health and social care system

The Berkshire West ICS and partners have been working together as the Berkshire West 10 (BW10). This comprises
of the CCG, three local authorities, RBFT, BHFT and SCAS since 2013 within a shared governance structure. The
chair of the BW10 Integration Board is also a key member of the ICS leadership group, as well as a number of key
clinical and managerial leads, which ensures there is strong collaboration between BW10 and the ICS. Social Care is
recognised as an important part of our overall health and social care delivery system and working effectively together
with further strengthen our ability to improve outcomes for residents.

The BW10 Integration Programme is an ambitious transformation programme involving fourteen projects/ programmes
across these ten organisations. These operate both at locality level and Berkshire West wide to deliver the intended
benefits. The collective objective is focused on improving outcomes for users and patients, and achieving long term
financial sustainability.

Overseen by an Integration Board and with project implementation supported by a joint Delivery Group, the BW10
focuses specifically on improvements for:
Frail Elderly population

Mental Health care

Children’s services
Prevention

Much of our Better Care Fund investment is managed through this integration structure and follows national guidance
with a focus on:
e  Avoiding unnecessary non-elective admissions (NEA)

e Reducing delayed transfers of care (DTOC)

These feature as a key part of delivering the five year forward view around urgent and emergency care. The work of
the BW10 on this links closely with the A&E delivery board to ensure a consistent and joined up approach across the
system.

One of main achievements in 2017/18 has been the significant reduction in the number of bed days lost due to
patients waiting in hospital longer than they needed to be there. Much of this success can be attributed to the focused
work we have undertaken through the BW10 Integration Programme and we will seek to build on this in 2018/19 so
that each of localities has a realistic aspiration to meet the national target in this area.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 24

48



Building on the success of recent years, 2018/19 will be an important year for us to move our collective aspiration on
to greater integration achievements.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 25

49



4 ENABLERS

4.1 Back office

There is a potential opportunity to integrate and implement a new delivery model for back office services across the
ICS which enables the continuation of high quality delivery but at a reduced cost. The providers and CCG have been
working together over the past year to review the options available, the phasing of the development of any shared
capability and the potential savings. Phase 1 of the programme focusses on transactional services with a target
saving of 15%. There is also a significant linked piece of work around re-procurement of core financial systems and
the opportunity to move to a single system for providers.

During this 2017/18 the CCG have brought services in-house from CSU in a preparatory phase with further in-housing
to occur in 2018/19 at a saving of approximately 20% in year 1 and a further 20% in year 2.

4.2 Estates

A high quality, modern, accessible and welcoming estate is critical to our ability to serve our patients. Our estate
presents us with a number of challenges. Like many health and care systems our estate is a patchwork of bespoke
buildings built in a range of different eras across multiple sites.

Within the RBFT portfolio, the Royal Berkshire Hospital (RBH) site comprises buildings that range from relatively new,
supporting the effective delivery of services, through buildings built in the 1960s and 70s that require investment or
replacement, to listed buildings that are expensive to maintain and run services from and no longer support the
delivery of care in the 21 Century. . Equally a number of these facilities (including the emergency department) were
commissioned prior to the increase in local population. With population set to expand again we face the prospect that
these facilities will struggle to deal with the demands placed on them. There are significant infrastructure challenges
which impacts upon the experience of patients, visitors and staff. Likewise progress should be made on reducing the
impact of heating and powering the building on the environment and reducing the carbon footprint of our services and
our buildings. RBFT are seeking to utilise estate away from RBH site, alongside evolving digital and technological
solutions, reducing the requirement for patients to attend the acute hospital site.— delivering care at or closer to
people’s homes. RBFT is developing the estate masterplan to reduce the running costs, reduce backlog maintenance
and ongoing maintenance costs and ensure that, where services need to be delivered from an acute hospital site, they
can be delivered from premises that are fit for the delivery of 21% century hospital care We also have a range of
opportunities notably the facilities BHFT already operates from across the county. Many of these buildings have the
potential to provide more care — and are closer to people’s homes.

Within the BHFT estate portfolio, a number of actions have already been taken to rationalise the number of smaller
service locations within the Reading area, dispose of older buildings no longer fit for purpose and integrate services
into a smaller number of modern well places locations that better serve the community.

There are a number of factors which have prompted the ICS to commit to further development of the Primary Care
Estates Strategy in 2018/19. These include demographic change and growth as a result of significant housing
development; new ways of working including the use of different workforce models and IT solutions; and the
requirement to future proof new developments to enable potential new care models that shift work from hospital
settings to primary care.

Together, the ICS participants also have an opportunity to review administrative estate linked to the Shared Back
Office programme.

The aim of this work is to maximise effective utilisation (clinical and non-clinical) of our NHS estate portfolio and
identify opportunities to deliver cash receipts through disposals and reduced annual revenue costs across the system.
This will support and be shaped by the emerging estates requirements of the new care model and system changes
identified via the ICS change programmes and ensure the estate portfolio is fit for the delivery of modern healthcare
services that meets the expectations of patients/service users. For more information please see Annex 12.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 26

50



4.3 Shared Bed Modelling

This project was established to ensure our ‘bed base’ across the ICS health economy is fit to meet our current and
anticipated demographic and that it supports the new care model and system changes as they are identified via the
ICS programmes. The context for this work is that whilst maximising opportunities for patients to have care outside
hospital and reduce time in hospital overall we want to ensure that bedded care is optimised across the system for
patients whose clinical needs require it. By this we mean that bedded care is provided in the correct volume at the
Acute Trust, and in other settings, with the underlying principle that time in hospital should be minimised to avoid the
well evidenced risk of decompensation for patients as a result of prolonged hospital stays.

The project is mapping capacity and patient flow across provider organisations, sites and bed types. A key output will
be a move to manage all bedded care across the system ‘as one’ supported by a system wide bed management
system based on real time data. In addition, a work stream to improve the functional processes ‘on the day’ whereby
available beds are identified, patients matched to those beds and transfers take place earlier in the day to settle
patients into their onward care in a more timely manner.

At its heart is a redesign across the system of bedded care to deliver provision that can care for the right patient in the
right setting as part of care pathways that provide alternatives to bedded care where appropriate. Current state for
acute and community bedded care is complete, the next stages will pull in mapping of domiciliary, nursing and
residential home care and include in the future state design alternatives to bedded care.

For more information please see Annex 13.

4.4 Workforce planning

A major part of our ICS ambition focuses on making improvements for staff across the area. As well as specific aims
to improve workplace wellbeing there are ambitions to enhance leadership capability, up skill the workforce and create
a shared workforce plan to increase opportunities for rotation across organisations — giving staff greater experience
and enabling them to deliver better care.

Our aim is to develop a network which will facilitate partnerships between service providers and the education and
training providers within the ICS footprint that will accelerate the development of a sustainable and highly skilled
health and care workforce in Berkshire West. By working together we will develop the infrastructure and stakeholder
relationships necessary to effectively identify workforce needs and secure the investment and innovative approaches
required to address these. Please see Annex 14 for more information.

Figure 8: ICS Workforce Group Structure and current work streams

BOB LWAB

- Inform the development of the BOB LWAB workforce strategy
* Receive information, funding and support to deliver the BW ACS workforce strategy

ACS WORKFORCE GROUP
Incorporating the CEPN

Urgent and

Workforce Operational Groups
Emergency

‘Workforce Pri M |
rima enta BW ACS
Modeling and || ACS OD 7 Cancer . y
Transformation Care care Health Hotspots
/"~ Work streams ./ Workstreams  , Workstreams ~ ,~ Workstreams Work streams .~ Work streams

* Engagement « Development * GP/GPN « Developmental X - Development « District
with BOB of Berkshire Recruitment rotational © Al of workforce Nursing
Workforce West ACS OD it R Paramedics and plansto
Modelling Plan to : ‘T‘:’a’i’;ie""g“::“"’ Roles “’,;;P"a“‘e achieve MHFV
Project complement « ED Streamin; wil

« Development organisation . f‘:ﬁ’guamy « NHS 111 e ‘l;lvaﬂzrfval
of ACS OD strategies [ « Other work Gl CLE]

Workforce o iyt streams as DDiecH
Associate agreed

* Pharmacists in
Primary Care

* MH workers

+ International
recruitment

N N\ VAN 7\ 7\ 7\ ~

/” Work streams "\ [~

Plan

4.5 Digital Transformation

The role of digital and technology will be a key enabler to support the vision, objective and transformational change
required to truly deliver improved patient outcomes, organisational financial health and maintain high quality services
for the ICS.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 27

51



Our Digital transformation is overseen by the Digital transformation Programme Board which has representation from
health and social care organisations from Berkshire West. The Board coordinate the Local Digital Roadmap and
digital aspirations to harnessing technology for the Integrated Care System.

Berkshire West is well on track toward joining up and digitalising our health systems. We can provide clinicians with
more timely access to accurate information, support service change to help improve health for all and provide patients
with better access to their records and support service change which will improve health for all.

With BHFT and SCAS recognised as NHSE Global Digital Examplel, and RBFT part of the Fast Follower programme,
our ICS is in a strong position to further improve patient care and strategic planning through innovative digital
solutions.

Berkshire West collectively submitted a Local Digital Roadmap (LDR) in 2016 and the detail on the implementation
continues to develop, encompassing 7 key themes —

Records sharing for cross-organisational care - Enable health and care professionals to have immediate and
appropriate access to all relevant information about a person’s care, treatment, diagnostics and previous history. This
includes care plans and all necessary transfers of care information.

Citizen facing technology - Support and enable people to be actively involved in managing and making decisions
about their care. This provides a strong basis for well-being and prevention.

Whole system intelligence - Health and care professionals across communities, geographic and clinical, have the
data, analytics, decision support, information and insights they require to run an efficient and effective service. This
includes risk stratification, care delivery, planning, targeting, monitoring, auditing, and research.

Infrastructure and network connectivity - A fast, reliable infrastructure, with shared connectivity, at a lower cost.
Common ways of working support access to ‘home’ systems across localities and the ICS/STP regions.

Information Governance - A common set of processes to appropriately and effectively use information, in line with
the expectations of patients and citizens. Information Governance becomes an enabler, not a barrier, to care planning,
targeting and research.

Digital training and education - Delivering education and training to public, patients and staff as efficiently and
effectively as possible to drive improvements in the effectiveness and quality of services.

Quality improvement and quality assurance — Regular analysis and feedback to individual clinicians, teams and
services on their performance and quality to measure the effect of service changes and education and training.

! an internationally recognised NHS provider delivering exceptional care, efficiently, through the use of world-class digital technology and
information

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 28

52



5 PATIENT AND PUBLIC ENGAGMENT

The ICS exists to serve the health needs of its population. The ICS will deliver the NHS Constitution by uniting
patients and staff in a shared ambition for high quality care by putting these values at the heart of everything we do:

e  Working together for patients.
e  Respect and dignity

e  Commitment to quality of care
e  Compassion

. Improving lives

. Everyone counts.

The ICS consider working in partnership with patients and the public to be central to the way that we work. We are
committed to ensuring that public and patient voices are involved as we develop and design services and monitor
provider performance. We are also committed to effective communication with patients and the public, including a ‘you
said, we did’ approach.

Our Objectives

e To develop a compelling and coherent narrative that illustrates the ICS’s overarching vision and how it is
working to improve health and care for Berkshire West localities.

e To build a network of ICS patient representatives/champions who will be key partners in the ICS to create and
deliver the core narrative to engage and build commitment with internal audiences whilst communicating
benefits and change implications to staff, patients and the wider public.

e To disseminate, promote and publicise the vision and objectives of the BW ICS and its benefits for patients
and healthcare across the localities to external influential organisations and stakeholder groups

e  To build trust and commitment amongst patients and the public in general for the aims and vision of the ICS in
their localities.

We are adopting a phased approach to communications and engagement which clearly defines the aim and objectives
for each stakeholder group, both internal and external. (N.B. A phased approach does not necessarily mean that one
phase will follow another and phases are interdependent on timescale for mobilisation) Phases for the ICS
communications and engagement strategy for 2018/19 are:

Phase One — Producing a compelling narrative. To develop a compelling and coherent narrative that illustrates the
ICS’s overarching vision and how it is working to improve health and care for Berkshire West localities

Phase Two — Building commitment — internally. To build a network of ICS champions who can deliver the core ICS
narrative with enthusiasm across all partners and internal audiences and build commitment throughout staffing
groups.

Phase Three — Building commitment with external stakeholder groups such as patient forums.

To build commitment by delivering consistent key messages and compelling narrative to all our stakeholder groups.
The communication of such messages and narrative should be accompanied by external engagement in a variety of
formats including but not limited to:

e  Speaker opportunities
e  Event collaboration
e Media engagement
Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 29

53



e Events/meetings

Phase Four — Building commitment with public and patients

To build commitment from patients and the public, we will involve them in our work and develop a programme of
communication, engagement and involvement that will reassure them and build confidence in our partnership. We
have three local authority HealthWatch officers who each have a crucial role to play in the development of the ICS and
the reshaping of services. To enable local HealthWatch officers to be effective partners we have developed a new
and innovative approach which is embedding HealthWatch within the ICS governance framework

What we have done so far

The approach outlined above has been adopted in the IMSK work stream. During the initial scoping of the project,
patient workshops were held to understand what worked well and what didn’t work well for our population. This
feedback was then presented to clinical and management leads in further scoping workshops to prove the need for
change.

Before the programme started, 4 patient leads were recruited by advertising through our local networks, patient
groups and BW10 partners. These 4 patients became a central part of the redesign process, and attended a number
of workshops throughout 2017. These workshops were attended by clinical and management leads from across the
ICS and wider health system and designed the new IMSK service. The patients were fundamental partners during this
redesign and their views and questions often led to innovation and new ways of thinking during the workshops. As the
IMSK programme developed, the collaborative had to submit gateways to enable the programme to continue. The
patient leads reviewed these gateways independently of the service providers, and their feedback was central to the
board papers which the CCG used to decide if the project should continue.

Finally, one of the patient leads volunteered to sit on the IMSK oversight group (which is the central management and
leadership group of the service) and during the first meeting it was proposed and agreed that he should be the chair of
the oversight group going forward. This ensures patient voice is central to this new service going forward.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 30

54



6 DELIVERING AND IMPROVING QUALITY

This ICS Quality Framework sets out how the ICS will use a strength base approach to ‘System Wide Quality
Improvement’ adapting the ‘signs of success’ framework developed in Ontario, to deliver the quality objectives. We will
move away from a traditional quality assurance approach, to a more collaborative system wide approach to quality,
with shared responsibility and accountability across the system. We will ensure patient feedback is at the heart of our
quality assurance approach.

As a successful ICS we are working together with a shared vision to achieve agreed quality goals and an openness
and willingness to challenge and scrutinise each other; to ensure examples of best practice, as well as learning from
when things go wrong is shared across the system to achieve best outcomes.

There are nationally set improvement targets that are mandated for all Integrated Care Systems to deliver from the
respective five year forward view e.g. achievement of key cancer standards and clearly mandated mental health
standards. An ICS Quality Dashboard is therefore under development and will allow for close monitoring by all
partners across all of the required standards and most importantly, shared understanding of the issues when
improvements are required and a system wide approach to making these improvements. In addition, locally agreed
priorities will be included and monitored to ensure focus on agreed priority areas and subsequent delivery, so that the
focus is on delivering and improving care.

The ICS will follow the signs of success approach which develops profile areas instead of collecting vast amounts of
abstract data which is often inter-related but rarely connected. The profile development allows for the
interconnectedness of abstract information to build a story that can make a difference. For example, taking a particular
disease pathway and gathering information on what it’s like from the patient’s perspective, the family or carer, the staff
delivering the service and the clinical outcomes for that disease. A full profile will then be built and used to make
improvements where they are needed across the system to improve the patient experience and achieve best clinical
outcome.

Our indicators of success will be that:

e  The four dimensions of quality (and their congruence and balance) are discussed and recorded before major
decisions.

e  The whole ICS improves together (not one organisation failing and another succeeding)

e Voices from the grassroots are systematically heard across the system

e All organisations within the ICS demonstrate a culture that incorporates reflection, appreciation and shared
learning

e The ICS will be delivering high quality services that best meet the needs of our population by engaging and
listening to our local populations health needs.

e The ICS will move towards a joint ICS Quality Committee which will replace the individual Clinical Quality
Review Meetings currently held with each provider. The ICS Quality committee will review the ICS Quality
Dashboard to monitor progress against the key agreed indicators for quality and performance, but will focus
on how as a system we can make improvements required, rather than using contractual levers, utilising signs
of success approaches.

e Partners will contribute to the agenda setting, with opportunity to share examples of innovation and
improvements made, to share learning across the whole system.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 31

55



e A combined monthly ‘Serious Incident Panel’ will be established, to scrutinise root cause analysis and best
benefit from a system wide approach to learning. The ICS Quality Committee will delegate safeguarding
children and adult assurance to the already established ICS Safeguarding Committee, which will report to the
ICS Quality Committee through a chairs report . A clear objective of the committee will be to reduce reporting
and not duplicate.

e  To further develop the established system wide infection prevention committee to encompass plans to reduce
gram negative infections.
e  To develop systems to ensure system wide learning from deaths.

The ICS Quality Committee will form an alliance of providers that collaborate to meet the needs of a defined
population. The Committee will monitor, discuss and collectively take action to drive quality improvement as specified
within the NHS Standard Contract between Berkshire West CCG, RBFT, and BHFT.

6.1 BHFT Quality Improvement programme

Berkshire Healthcare’s Quality improvement Programme was introduced in 2017 to create a culture focused on
continuous improvement and sustainability. It empowers and enables staff to make improvements, equipping them
with the tools and techniques they need while aligning all teams on achieving the Trust’s strategic objectives (“True
North”). These are:

1. To provide safe services, prevent self-harm and harm to others

2. To strengthen our highly skilled and engaged workforce, and provide a safe working environment

3. To provide good outcomes from treatment and care

4. To deliver services which are efficient and financially sustainable
The Trust is being supported for an initial 18 months, by external partners with worldwide experience of implementing
Quality Improvement programmes in healthcare organisations. At the end of this period, staff across the organisation
will be fully trained and able to maintain and continue the work, with QI methodology being fully embedded.

Berkshire Healthcare has a robust internal process for identifying, investigating and learning from deaths of patients
who are under the care of the Trust’s learning disability, mental health and community services.

The Trust contributes to a system-wide approach to learning from deaths by:

¢  Engaging with the local Learning Disability Mortality Review (LeDeR) process (referring cases, nominating
staff to support the LeDeR review process)

e  Actively participating with the system- wide mortality review and assurance process, led by the Berkshire
West CCG

e In cases where the Trust's mortality review process identifies multi-agency concerns, case are referred to the
local adult safeguarding board and learning brought back to the Trust

e In cases where the Trust mortality review process identifies potential concern about the care provided to the
patient by another healthcare provider, it is raised directly with the provider (acute hospital or primary care),
to include in their own internal mortality review.

6.2 RBFT Quality Improvement programme

Ensuring safety and quality of care for every patient is RBFT’s top priority. The Trust wants all its services to be
outstanding every day of the week and to maintain its position as a top performer in delivering NHS access
standards. RBFT also strives to be the one of the safest and most caring NHS organisations in the country. In 2018
the Trust refreshed its Quality Strategy (2018-2023) which provides the framework for the quality improvement work
taking place across the Trust, based around the 5 CQC domains of safe, effective, caring, responsive, and well-led.

The Trust develops an annual Clinical Audit & Quality Improvement programme every year which consists of all
mandatory national audit projects as well as locally agreed priority quality improvement projects, including those for
the annual Quality Accounts. These priorities are developed through:

e Review of progress against last year’s priorities, carrying forward any work streams which have scope for on-
going improvement;

¢ Analysis of themes arising from internal quality indicators (complaints, incidents, clinical audits, mortality
reviews, outcomes data);

e Patient engagement;

e  Staff engagement;

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 32

56



o Key stakeholder engagement — seeking the views of our governors, regulators, Healthwatch and other
community partners.

As a result, the Trust is confident that the priorities we have selected are those which are meaningful and important to
our community.

In 2018-19 the Trust will be participating in all applicable National Clinical Audit Patient Outcomes Programme and
Quality Account reportable national audits and all applicable national CQUIN projects. The Quality Account priorities
have been agreed as:

Reduction of avoidable falls with harm

Reduction of avoidable pressure ulcers

Reduction of mortality due to sepsis

Improving recognition of the deteriorating patient

Improving patient experience of car parking

Improved effectiveness of transition from admission to treatment and discharge for complex patients
Improving involvement of patients and carers in managing their own care

The Trust has a robust process of mortality surveillance and learning form deaths, and this is shared system wide

A RBFT consultation has taken place to identify any additional local priorities for clinical audit and quality improvement
which have also been included on the 2018-19 Clinical Audit & Quality Improvement Programme. Progress against all
of these projects will be monitored through the Clinical Outcomes & Effectiveness Committee chaired by the Medical
Director.

This reports to the Quality Assurance & Learning Committee and up to the Quality Committee, chaired by a Non-
Executive Director. There are additional monitoring mechanisms for the CQUINS and the Quality Account
priorities. This allows appropriate scrutiny against the progress being made with these quality improvement initiatives,
and also provides an opportunity for escalation of issues. This will ensure that improvement against each priority
remains a focus for the year and will give the Trust the best chance of achievement.

In addition, clinical audit & quality improvement is promoted across the Trust through bi-monthly training sessions
available to all staff; participation in promotional events through “Clinical Audit Awareness Week” held in November;
and an annual Clinical Audit & Quality Improvement competition open to all staff to promote and celebrate best
practice.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 33

57



7/ SUPPORTING APPENDICES

7.1 Annex 1 - Cancer

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG and Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

The approach to commissioning and delivering cancer services in Berkshire West in 2018/2019 continues to be
delivered through the jointly agreed Berkshire West Cancer Framework developed by the Berkshire West Cancer
Steering Group. This group is comprised of clinical and non-clinical representatives from Berkshire West CCG
(including GP lead), Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust, Thames Valley Cancer Alliance, Cancer Research UK, and
Macmillan. We have reviewed our progress against our objectives and agreed our local and Cancer Alliance priorities
for 2018/2019 to continue the momentum of implementing the six priorities in the National Cancer Strategy, the Five
Year Forward View and the Thames Valley Cancer Alliance key ambitions by 2021.

Progress in 2017/2018

e Our STP prevention work stream focuses on joint working
across the footprint and launched the ‘making every contact
count’ work stream and are working with our local Public
Health teams to improve targets for smoking cessation,
alcohol and obesity.

e Our teachable moment pilot went live in two GP practices in
September 2017 and we will continue to review the uptake
and impact of this pilot in 2018/2019.

e Focusing on South Reading to reduce the proportion of
cancers which present as an emergency and improve
cancer screening uptake we have worked with Macmillan to
commission Rushmoor healthy living (a Hampshire based
charity) to raise awareness of sighs and symptoms of
cancer particularly in hard to reach populations. To date 40
cancer champions have been recruited and they have
engaged with over 1000 people.

o The majority of our 2 week referral proformas have been
aligned to NICE guidance and jointly agreed with primary
and secondary care clinicians.

o As per NICE Guidance we have ensured there is Direct
Access for non-obstetrics ultrasound and chest x-rays.

e A focus on increasing the recording of staging data has
meant that this has significantly improved (our overall
baseline of 30% has increased to 70% - beyond the
national target).

e For patients living with and beyond cancer we continue to
assess the Macmillan funded Cancer rehabilitation service
to ensure it is aligned with the requirements of the recovery
package and we have also increased the number of
electronic holistic needs assessments (HNAs) as 6/11
tumour sites are completing HNAs.

e We are working in partnership with FHFT to deliver the goal
of developing and deploying a Cancer Health Information
Exchange (HIE) to enable both improvements to the flow of
information between provider sites and increase the
visibility of relevant information to the patient themselves.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 34

Deliverables for 2018/2019

e We will continue progress with the work streams
outlined in 2017/2018 on prevention, teachable
moments, South Reading project, staging data and
living with and beyond cancer. We also plan to
deliver the following objectives:

e Our Integrated Care System is currently meeting all
eight waiting time standards for cancer; however we
do have outliers in the far West of the area where
patients are accessing other acute providers. We
are seeing an improvement in this performance and
will continue to work with all our providers to
maintain and improve standards. We will also start
to explore how we can work towards the 2020 target
of a definitive diagnosis within 28 days.

e Working with the cancer alliance we plan to review
the four main cancer pathways to ensure timely
access for patients and we are exploring the pilot of
multi-disciplinary diagnostics for vague or unclear
symptoms.

e We are further developing our engagement with
patients and working to utilise different modalities for
follow ups.

e We will continue to work with PHE through our STP
prevention work stream to increase the uptake of all
screening programmes, including the roll out of FIT
bowel cancer screening and considering the benefits
of lung cancer screening.

e We plan to deliver risk stratified pathways as
business cases for breast and urology have been
developed and are currently in the sign off process.

e Through the Thames Valley Cancer Alliance we are
working with partners to support the implementation
of new radiotherapy services and upgrading
machines.

58



Risks and issues associated with the delivery of this How does the ICS intends to work together to

plan: mitigate these risks and issues?

o Engagement with local partners for improvement of targets | « We work very closely with our public health partners
of screening, smoking cessation, obesity and alcohol. through our Health and Wellbeing Boards and

« Workforce capacity and/or provision of diagnostics may put | through the BOB STP prevention group to ensure
at risk the provision of services, meeting national standards delivery of these targets.
and delivery of transformational work streams. e We work jointly within our ICS to ensure we will

« Engagement with clinicians e.g. delivery of the living with maintain the cancer national standards. Working
and beyond cancer recovery package and risk stratified with through our local steering group and the
pathways. alliance groups we would ensure our workforce is

maintained or increased to support delivery of all
elements. We would also work with our partners to
ensure we plan ahead for the diagnostic provision.

e Working with our ICS partners and the cancer
alliance we would understand the barriers to clinical
delivery (primary or secondary care) and work jointly
to overcome the issues.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e The Berkshire West Cancer Steering Group priorities for 2018/2019 have been defined into local and Cancer
Alliance work streams. As the emerging Cancer Alliance work stream objectives are confirmed we plan to obtain a
local resource to implement the deliverables. Our local work streams have been identified as:

¢ Prevention — continue working locally with Public Health teams and through the STP prevention work stream to
promote healthy lifestyle changes and improve the uptake of screening

e South Reading prevention — continue with our community engagement and education with a harder to reach
demographic

 Living With and Beyond Cancer — aligning cancer rehabilitation with the requirements of the recovery package and
delivery of risk stratified pathways

o Patient Experience — focusing on service user engagement and exploring different modalities of follow ups
e Cancer Staging — continue to improve the recording of staging information

o 2 week proformas — complete updating all our 2 week proformas

o Direct Access — tracking progress and exploring further options for Direct Access

e End of Life - Ensure that CCG commission appropriate integrated services for palliative and end of life care, in line
with the NICE Quiality Standard.

7.2 Annex 2 — Mental Health

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

Improving mental health is a fundamental part of our ICS operating plan. The Five Year Forward View for Mental
Health (2016) sets out a clear direction for the NHS to improve mental health and wellbeing, highlighting why change is
required and what good will look like. Some of what is needed can be brought about by the NHS itself. Other actions
require partnerships with local organisations including local government, housing, education, employment and the
voluntary sector.

Progress in 2017/18 Deliverables for 2018/19

Increasing Access to Psychological Therapies
(IAPT)
e Our performance against the national IAPT

access, recovery and waiting time standards
has been consistently strong, and includes

e The focus for 2018-19 will be to have a fully integrated service
that is cost effective while continuing to meet national access

. X X and waiting times and recovery standards with better access by

innovative approaches to the use of online

, : " « BME communities.
service delivery. Our service is an “early . ) .
implementer” of enhanced access and services | ® We Will also be using the results of our Long Term Conditions

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 35

59



for people with long term physical health
conditions (LTC), which is showing very
encouraging results in terms of reduced GP
and A&E attendances by people receiving the
service.

e In 2017-18 there has been a focus on recruiting
additional trained staff and trainees to be PWPs
(psychological well-being practitioners) and
high intensity therapists.

Physical Health Check and Care co-ordination

e We have made good progress in meeting
Physical Health Checks target for people with
severe mental illness in secondary care, and
are achieving screening rates of 83% and 94%
of those who required interventions as a result
of screening.

Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP)

e Our EIP service is NICE compliant and is
meeting the national standards for access and
treatment. We have been meeting the new
waiting time standards which require 50% of
patients experiencing a first episode of
psychosis to commence treatment within two
weeks of referral.

Psychiatric Liaison service

o We have a well-established service based in
the local acute hospital (Royal Berkshire
Foundation Trust), which has had a positive
impact on the quality and responsiveness to
people who attend the Emergency Department.
Good levels of performance have been
achieved in identifying people with previously
un-diagnosed dementia, and enabling them to
access appropriate help and reduce risk of
delayed transfer of care.

e The service model mirrors the ‘RAID’ (Rapid
Assessment Intervention Discharge) model,
and is supported by the Community Crisis
Response teams and the Community
Psychological Medicine Service working with
high intensity service users and those with
medically unexplained symptoms.

Individual Placement and Support services
(IPS)

e We have established a local service which is
achieving good results in supporting people into
employment — however, expansion and
recurrent funding is needed to ensure that Five
Year Forward View targets are met. A bid for
NHSE funds is being submitted to expand the
current model, which has “fidelity” status in
terms of national guidance.

Reducing suicide rates

o A partnership Berkshire Wide Suicide
prevention strategy has been developed and
approved by all six Berkshire Health and

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

pilot to inform financial and activity modelling to support medium
to longer term planning for use of resources across the system

e We will continue to develop partnership work across Primary
Care and Secondary Care, maximising the opportunity
presented by our GP Cluster teams, to enhance physical health
screening and interventions

e Work is in progress to project future need and associated
staffing requirements in order to maintain high levels of
performance. This work will be overseen by our Mental Health
Delivery Group and a review of progress will be undertaken at
the end of the second quarter of the year.

e We plan to develop the service to enable a timely response to
people of all ages, and continue to support understanding and
awareness of mental health within the acute hospital setting. A
detailed plan for this work will be in place by the end of the first
quarter of the year.

e The Berkshire West element of the BOB STP bid has been

successful in achieving funding in wave 1, and we will continue
to support partners in work to secure wave 2 funding. A plan will
be developed by the end of quarter one to guide this work,
building on the outline provided in the NHSE bid.

e Over the next 2 years we will continue to work closely with

Public Health and GPs to help more GPs recognise and manage
those patients in high risk groups.

36

60



Wellbeing boards. In addition, Berkshire
Healthcare has established a Zero Suicide
initiative, which embraces the belief that suicide
is preventable, and has achieved significant
progress in provision of training, development
of risk assessment and safety planning.

Perinatal Mental Health

e Our local service has secured “wave one”
funding to develop access to evidence based
services for local women. Over the next three
years this funding will be utilised to ensure all
elements of the perinatal targets are met and
our aim is to ensure women are offered the full
range of NICE compliant interventions.

e We have developed an online service which
provides a secure, anonymous and moderated
Facebook type site for women during the
perinatal period across the range of emotional
disorders and distress. There are more than
260 activated users of this service and five peer
moderators recruited from the users to support
the clinical moderating team. A birth trauma
pilot has been live for nine months and offers
both individual and group work - referral
numbers have exceeded those anticipated.
Work is in progress to train perinatal clinicians
in therapeutic techniques and integrate this with
current provision to achieve a sustainable
pathway.

e We are on target to meet the increased access
target trajectory of 450 patients for 2017/18,
and plan to continue to develop training and
recruitment of peer supporters during the next
year to support sustainability.

Eliminating out of area placements for non-
specialist acute care

* We are committed to ensuring that by 2020/21
no service users requiring non-specialist acute
care receive their treatment in an out of area
placement (OAP) setting . We recognise the
challenges inherent in achieving this goal, as
our inpatient service benchmarks as lower than
average bed numbers for the local population.
We have established a trajectory to enable us
to plan improvements required each year. Our
baseline has been established at 476 bed days
for 2017/18 and we aim to reduce this by
33.3% in 2018-19.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

e Our service will continue to meet access targets, prioritising the
implementation of a sustainable approach to online and face to
face provision. The plan for this work will be reviewed in quarter
one, enabling any significant risks to delivery to be highlighted
and mitigated.

o We are committed to achieving the FYFV target to eliminate
acute out of area inpatient placements by 2021, and to achieve
a 33% reduction in baseline activity in 18/19. This is a key
priority for the ICS in 2018/19.

¢ A bed optimisation programme is in place to reduce avoidable
admissions, reduce length of stay and out of area placements
for non-specialist acute care:

e Bed flow and bed management
e dedicated resource, enhanced gatekeeping

e Spring to Green aims to reduce occupancy of
acute beds from 112% to 85%

e Reducing delayed discharge:
e System escalation calls routinely available

e Swift agreement to social care packages with
delegated authority to joint heads of community
MH teams

e Swift resolution of s117 aftercare funding with
commissioners

e Reducing inappropriate admissions to hospitals

o Effective Psychiatric Liaison team at Royal
Berkshire Hospital

e End to end Personality Disorder clinical pathway

37

61



Dementia

e Delivery of our dementia action plan across
Berkshire West to ensure we continue to meet
the National Dementia Diagnosis Standard is a
priority for us: our current performance is 63%
against a target of 66.7%. A number of
initiatives are being put in place to ensure this
target is reached by March 2018 and work will
continue with GP practices to provide dedicated
support to those practices that are
underperforming, and also share good practice
between practices.

e Our local memory services are nationally
accredited and achieving the national standard
of six week waits. Through the Academic
Health Science Network (AHSN) this best
practice model of delivery has been shared and
adopted across the Thames Valley. We have
an award winning local service for young
people with Dementia which is highly valued by
local service users and staff. Although our
memory clinic service delivery is very strong,
we are aware that we need to plan for
increased need, while maintaining high levels
of performance.

Children and Young People

e Our Local Transformation Plan has been
developed collaboratively and co-produced with
local stakeholders including children and young
people and outlining the need to transform care
and support on a whole system basis. It was
refreshed in 2017, and includes 3 inter-related
programmes of work:

¢ Building the infrastructure, enabling the
workforce to respond to young people’s mental
health and promoting anti-stigma

e Promoting prevention, early intervention,
resilience and promoting mental health and
wellbeing

e Targeting resources to those most at risk -
those in crisis, Looked After Children and those
known to youth offending services.

¢ Local Child and Adolescent Mental Health
services continue to experience high numbers
of referrals which mean that meeting access
and waiting time targets presents a significant
challenge.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

reviewed and agreed, rolling out in 2018/19

Exploring options for bed and non bed based
alternatives for both admission avoidance and on-
going recovery and rehabilitation

We have commissioned an independent review of

bed numbers required for the population of
Berkshire, for completion at the end of Q1

e Review of 18/19 plan to meet diagnosis standard to take place in
guarter one, with progress of targeted approach assessed and
reported through both mental health delivery and primary care
transformation groups to ensure engagement and ownership of
continued progress.

e Demand and capacity review to take place in quarter two to
enable medium — long term planning of response to growth in
demand.

e We will need to work together with Local Authority
commissioners to align commissioning and provision of services
across the whole pathway in order to meet the national target of
at least 32% of children with a diagnosable condition are able to
access evidence-based services by April 2019.

¢ In 2018/19 we will make further progress towards delivering the
2020/21 waiting time standards for children and young people’s
eating disorder services of 95% of patient receiving first
definitive treatment within four weeks for routine cases and
within one week for urgent cases.

38

62



Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS)

e In 2017-18 the Berkshire West projected
expenditure on mental health related care is
£67,863,000.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery
of this plan:

e Demand growth is significant in some service
areas and capacity has been constrained as a
result of reduced funding available to Local
Authorities

o Workforce supply is a key risk — this is a
national issue but compounded locally by high
housing costs and high employment

e |APT LTC is showing evidence of reduced
activity in A&E and Primary Care — but shifting
recurrent resource to support continued
development is challenging given demand
pressures in those areas

e The CCG plans to increase this expenditure in 2018-19 by at
least 2% in order to meet our obligations under the Mental
Health Investment Standard. The mental health related
expenditure in 2018-19 is planned to be at least £69,342,000

e The ICS will support the use of these resources to enable
delivery of Five Year Forward View targets — we have a strong
foundation to build on, as well as the opportunity to shift
resources to support further progress — which will be facilitated
by our plans for integrated strategic planning for mental health
as part of our ICS.

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

¢ Specific Initiatives are supporting the collaborative management
of demand pressures ( see below)

e Governance and joint planning structures are in place to enable
risks and mitigation to be understood and agreed between
partners:

e Mental Health Delivery Group
o |APT Steering Group
e |ICS Unified Executive

e Development of joint strategic
planning/transformation team across
commissioner and provider functions is currently
in progress— this will be done on a Berkshire-wide
basis, incorporating commissioners and partner
providers in the Frimley ICS to develop a
collaborative approach to strategic planning and
effective use of resources.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e Out of Area Placements

e Common Point of Entry

o |IAPT Increased Access/LTC
High Intensity Users

Mental Health Workforce Planning

7.3 Annex 3 - Primary Care

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Future in Mind

The Berkshire West General Practice Forward View (GPFV) Local Implementation Plan sets out a vision for a
sustainable primary care sector working at-scale and as an integral component of the Berkshire West ICS. To achieve
this vision, our practices have come together into Primary Care Provider Alliances, with all practices within them
working in geographically-contiguous clusters which will interface with other services to meet the health needs of
groups of 30-50,000 patients (Primary Care Networks). At a system-level, the alliances are working together in an
‘Alliance of Alliances’ which will look to maximise their impact within the Berkshire West ICS. The GPFV programme
describes how the CCG will support the Primary Care Provider Alliances to work to address sustainability challenges
and build an expanded and integrated primary care sector which meets same day demand in the most appropriate way
and works proactively to support patients in the community.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

39

63



Progress in 2017/18
Primary Care Networks

e Primary Care Provider Alliances made up of
clusters (networks) of practices serving 30-
50,000 cover all but two of our practices (which
are engaged in discussions).

e The four locality alliances are working together
in an ‘Alliance of Alliances’ which will look to
maximise their impact within the Berkshire
West ICS.

e Process and criteria in place for making the
remainder of the £3 per head primary care
transformation monies (£2 per head in 2018-19
as we invested £1 per head in 2017-18)
available to alliances to support delivery of
business plans which are aligned with key
system priorities (e.g. delivery of extended
access to primary care, engagement with
pathway redesign and further development of
integrated teams at a cluster level) and
demonstrate how alliances will move towards
being self-sustaining from 2019-20.

e Integrated cluster working implemented in the
Wokingham locality where the Community
Health and Social Care (CHASC) teams have
been working with GP practices and others to
support proactive care planning and multi-
disciplinary team (MDT) review for complex
patients linked to our Anticipatory Care CES.

Access

o Across Berkshire West 89.2% of patients
currently have access to evening appointments
on some weekdays, 92.53% to weekend
(Saturday) appointments and 84.52% to both.
Practices are currently delivering 36.6 minutes
of extended hours’ capacity per 1000
population.

e Practices in South Reading are considering
how best they can work together to meet same
day access demands building on a baseline
mapping of demand, capacity and staffing.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

Deliverables for 2018/19

o Further development of alliance business plans to underpin
allocation of £2/head. Funding allocation and progress to be
overseen by Primary Care Commissioning Committee.
Appointment of management lead for Alliance of Alliances and
further OD input at all levels.

e Development of cluster/network ‘visions’ for primary care aligned
with GPFV programme/estates strategy.

¢ Roll-out of Insights Population Analytics (IPA) to be used this
year to support delivery of Anticipatory Care CES. Further
development of ongoing approach to use of population health
management in primary care through Connected Care.

o Further development of CHASC model in Wokingham and roll-
out of integrated health and social care team approach to other
clusters/networks with Anticipatory Care CES as an initial focus.

e Further develop role of integrated care teams in meeting acute
care needs, building on GP Consultant and ECP pilots and
exploring opportunities to integrate these more closely with
existing rapid response teams

¢ Going forward the alliances and associated clusters will serve as
a vehicle for delivery of an extended range of services in primary
care and new ways of interfacing with other services (e.g.
through the MSK and Outpatients transformation and care and
support planning work described elsewhere in this document).

Enhanced Access

¢ |In accordance with the planning guidance we intend that 100%
of patients will have full access to evening and weekend
appointments by 1% October 2018. Our planning trajectories
show a phased implementation process over the next six
months which should achieve full compliance with the seven
core requirements by October 2018. Arrangements will include
some same day appointments as well as slots bookable in
advance (in this way primary care will form part of our broader
urgent care offer and we will look to ensure NHS 111 can book
into these slots at the earliest opportunity) and will ensure that
appointments are available on days when practices are usually
closed e.g. bank holidays.

¢ As individual practices will not be able to deliver the level of
capacity required, each of the alliances is working with their
member practices to develop a plan for delivery of the additional
capacity within clusters with potential wider collaboration through
hubs at weekends. Our existing Enhanced Access CES allows
for collaborative provision to expand hours of availability and
sub-contracting where practices do not want to provide capacity
themselves and in the first instance we will look to vary this CES
to incorporate the requirements above.

e The Enhanced Access CES was previously deemed to only be
capable of provision by existing primary care contractors; we will
review this position during 2018-19 and agree a procurement
approach as appropriate.

e The CCG will work with providers to put in place appropriate
operational arrangements e.g. for access to patient records.
The CCG will also ensure that services are appropriately
advertised and that an equalities impact assessment is
undertaken and any findings acted upon. We will test out

40
64



Workforce

e Working proactively to address current and
future workforce constraints in a key tenet of
our GPFV programme. We have established a
Primary Care Workforce Group involving the
CCG, NHSE and HETYV colleague and working
as part of our overall ICS workforce
workstream.

o We are working in partnership with the
University of Reading to deliver a Physicians’
Associate (PA) programme with a significant
level of primary care training placements. Eight
students from the university programme were
placed in primary care settings as part of the
course in 2017/18 and two practices employ a
PA.

o Clinical pharmacists working a number of
practices.

e We have a number of practices using
Emergency Care Practitioners (ECPs) for home
visiting and have funded a pilot service in
Wokingham.

e Berkshire West has bid for 18 international GPs
as part of the national programme.

e Two of our GPs have already attended General
Practice Improvement Leaders’ Programme
and a further ten GPs and others have
expressed an interest in future cohorts. Each
of our alliances has also engaged
organisational development support to develop
a stronger understanding of roles and
opportunities within these new provider
organisations and ensure clinical leaders work
together effectively to maximise their impact.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

staffing models to ensure that these are robust and that any
risks to other services have been mitigated; we anticipate a
more skill-mixed model will be used than for existing extended
hours provision. Practices across Berkshire West are also
implementing Footfall and we envisage that this will be one of
means of accessing services outside of core hours as well as a
source of advice on self-care.

Same day access

New models of delivering same day care in-hours to be
developed further in South Reading with the Walk-in Centre
acting as a first hub. This work will inform future commissioning
intentions around the current Walk-in Centre as well as the
development of same-day access models across Berkshire
West.

Primary care workforce modelling — gathering intelligence
around current and future pressures and interfacing with
emerging primary care demand and capacity tools to model
modelling the impact of potential solutions. The information we
have received to date from NHSE does not clearly indicate what
proportion of the additional staffing resource set out in the GPFV
we would expect to employ within Berkshire West, however we
would look to progress these discussions as a matter of urgency
in order to inform our future workforce planning.

Supporting skill-mix - We are actively promoting Physicians’
Associates via the CCG and students will once again be placed
within practices this year as part of the programme. For 2018-19
we will look to increase the number of qualifying PAs who
choose to remain in primary care in Berkshire West and are
working with a local PA Ambassador to achieve this. We hope
that the Berkshire West joint alliance bid for national clinical
pharmacist funding will significantly increase the impact that
pharmacists can have in primary care. We are also now
exploring the recently-announced national scheme for clinical
pharmacist in care homes and would look to submit an ICS-level
bid. During 2018-19 the CCG and alliances will continue to work
with SCAS and others to consider the ongoing role of ECPs in
primary care and how best to resource this. We will also be
looking to further develop the role of mental health therapists in
primary care, interfacing with the IAPT service as further clarity
emerges around the GPFV investment in this area.

GP recruitment and retention — Over the coming months we
will be working with NHSE leads to progress our international
GP recruitment bid. We also continue to encourage GPs and
practices to utilise the returner and retainer schemes. We
currently have an over-supply of training practices but over the
coming year intend to work with the Deanery to explore more
diversified training models whereby registrars would spend time
in practices that have not traditionally provided training
opportunities. We also intend to develop an ‘offer’ aimed at
retaining more GPs from the local programme than is currently
the case based on a combination of additional support and
development opportunities. Finally we are keen to explore the
potential of rotational and portfolio posts across the ICS to
attract and retain GPs.

Continued Professional Development — we are committed to
providing excellent development opportunities for all primary
care staff both in terms of formal learning, practical experience
and portfolio posts and intend to use Community Provider
Education Network funding to better align education and training

41

65



Workload

e Practices have been working through alliances
to undertake training on and implement
workflow optimisation processes using GPFV
funding. Newbury practices have taken a
slightly different route and are further
establishing a GP administrative assistant role
to be funded through national apprenticeship
monies.

¢ Following a successful Time for Care showcase

event in November 2017, alliances are also
working with national facilitators to implement
active signposting. Some will also be
implementing group consultations

e We have adopted a three-stage approach to
implementing online consultation, starting with
practice engagement to identify a preferred
solution and moving onto procurement and
adding functionality. We are in the process of
procuring Footfall for all practices with CSU
support for implementation thereby ensuring
opportunities to maximise impact and interface
with extended hours and other integrated
services are fully utilised.

Estates

e Four of our Estates and Technology
Transformation Fund (ETTF) premises
development schemes have been completed.

e The first tranche of development of our primary
care estates strategy focussed on assessing
additional capacity required to meet the future
considerable housing growth forecast in
Berkshire West; this is being continually
updated as new proposals for development
come forward.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

provision with new models of primary care delivery.

e Development of clinical leadership in primary care — we will

work with NAPC and others to build the ‘primary care voice’
within our ICS. We will continue to take up national offers
around leadership development in primary care.

e Practice Manager Development - we are using GPFV funding

to develop a locally-bespoke development offer for practice
managers working as part of alliances and clusters. We are also
encouraging practice managers to take up national development
offers around primary care at scale.

o Staffing approaches — we will support our alliances to further

explore joint approaches to recruitment, shared posts and locum
banks.

e Time for Care / Workflow Optimisation / Online Consultation

work to be completed during 2018-19.

e It is intended to commission the Time for Care team to run a

quality improvement programme for practice staff in 2018-19 in
addition to sessions on active signposting and group
consultations. Whilst the exact mix of initiatives will vary, we can
be confident that all practices will be implementing at least two
of the Time for Care High Impact Actions by the end of 2018-19.

e During 2018-19 we will look to build upon Footfall through add-

on functionality and by exploring an alternative app-based
solution such as Sensley. We will also be working to consider
how we link online access to practices with the implementation
of NHS 111 online and direct booking.

During 2018-19 we will work to maximise the impact of social
prescribing, building on existing arrangements and ensuring
these are a potential disposition from active signposting and
Footfall.

We will also undertake a number of projects aimed at supporting
self-care e.g. our wearable technologies project, roll-out of
health pods in surgeries and selection and promotion of
appropriate apps.

A further eight ETTF schemes are on-track and scheduled to
complete in 2018-19 and we have one remaining scheme for
which we are working to agree a start date. Revenue
implications have been assessed and accepted by the CCG.

We have also provided in principle support for a further premises
development in South Reading which will replace outdated
premises and provide capacity for population growth.

During 2018-19 we intend to commission an updated six-facet
survey and actual/potential capacity review of existing primary
care premises and to undertake further opportunity location
around sites which may lend themselves to joint development
with ICS and other local partners. In so doing we intend to
better align our approach to primary care estates with our
broader ICS estates strategy therefore ensuring that we have
the estates infrastructure required to underpin delivery of new
models of care.

e Our Connected Care programme is described in more detalil

42

66



Sustainability and resilience funding

o All GPFV sustainability and resilience funding

received to date has been invested in
supporting vulnerable practices in Berkshire
West.

Delegated commissioning

e The CCG will continue to discharge delegated

commissioning functions relating to primary
care services in accordance with the
Delegation Agreement in place with NHSE. All
activities will continue to be overseen by the
Primary Care Commissioning Committee to
which NHSE is invited.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery
of this plan:

Recruitment and retention of primary care clinical
workforce

Lack of GP engagement in delivery of the plan
Implementation of the primary care estates strategy
— availability of sites and funding and need to align
plans to new clinical models.

Delivery of technical solutions e.g. online
consultations

Lack of patient engagement/awareness of new
models of care

below. Priorities for primary care in 2018-19 will include the roll-
out of the Health Information Exchange to GP practices and
further development of the role of population health
management in delivering proactive care.

e Further funding to be allocated in accordance with guidance to
support future sustainability of primary care sector.

e Terms of Reference have been updated for 2018-19 to reflect
the CCG merger. The committee and its associated functions
were the subject of internal audits during 2016-17 and 2017-18.
Completion of resulting actions is overseen by the CCG’s Audit
Committee.

e During 2018-19 we will review and develop our approach to
quality improvement in primary care, aligning this to the key
principles of the ICS Quality Framework.

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

o Workforce planning and development strategy being developed across
BW.

« Engagement with the local Alliances and where appropriate with the
Alliance of Alliances.

e Engagement with the One Public Estate initiative locally and with local
councils around population growth and estates opportunities.

¢ IM&T infrastructure development being delivered as part of broader ICS
Digital Strategy.

o New ways of working in primary care to form part of ICS narrative and
engagement plan.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

Further development of Alliances/Networks/Alliance of Alliances to ensure sustainability and expand range of service provision in

primary care through ICS workstreams

Delivery of Anticipatory Care CES using IPA and through integrated health and social care teams
Review of ECP pilot and opportunities for integration to meet acute care needs

Enhanced Access — to be delivered by October 2018
Same day access hubs (in hours) — piloting approaches

Primary care workforce modelling

Skill-mix in primary care — ECPs, clinical pharmacists, physicians’ associates.

Recruitment and retention in primary care (GPs and others)

Continued professional development for primary care workforce and clinical leadership development
Time for Care — active signposting, group consultations and quality improvement

Workflow optimisation implementation
Supporting self-care
Online consultation

Further development of primary care estates strategy

Delivery of ETTF premises schemes and further work-up of non-ETTF schemes
Roll-out of access to Connected Care HIE and development of population health management approach in primary care

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

43

67



7.4 Annex 4 — Urgent Care
Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG and Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

The ICS and A&E Delivery Board are committed to delivering the next steps in the 5YFV for urgent & emergency care
to support a return to achievement of the 95% standard. The system will continue to build on existing improvements to
patient flow through the system with a focus on increasing the number of patients treated on ambulatory care
pathways, a partnership model for bedded care across the system and front door streaming on arrival at ED. The ICS
will continue to work closely with ASC colleagues to minimise delays for medically fit patients moving to onward care
with a firm focus on the “home first” principle supported by trusted assessment processes reducing duplication.
Integrated Urgent Care will move closer to a “consult and complete” model with 50% of calls being transferred to a
clinician and direct booking into a greater number of services. NHS 111 online will be implemented by Jul-18. The MIU
at West Berkshire Community Hospital provided by BHFT, will become a fully designated UTC with interoperability to
support direct booking in place by Q2. The system will continue to support SCAS on implementing the
recommendations of the Ambulance Response programme putting an end to long waits.

Progress in 2017/18 Deliverables for 2018/19

Integrated Urgent Care

o The Berkshire West urgent care system e The ICS will continue to work with SCAS in 2018/19 to reduce

achieved over 90% performance for 2017-18

Data from Nov-17 shows that the percentage of
calls closed within the service increased by
4.4% (compared to Nov-16), ambulance
dispatches reduced by 1.4% and ED
attendances reduced by 1.5%. Direct booking
is in place for GP out of hours and there are
plans to pilot direct booking in two Practices in
Berkshire West.

Commissioners and the Alliance have agreed a
robust Service Development Plan to enhance
and monitor delivery of this service. This will
allow the service to respond to local and
national needs and priorities.

Primary Care streaming

e Primary Care streaming at the RBFT
emergency department (ED) was launched in
October 2017 in response to the requirements
in the Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery
Plan (NHS England, 2017). The service is
provided by BHFT and operates daily between
0800 and 2300.

The service, which is being run as a six month
pilot, is based on the GP streaming model at
Luton & Dunstable Hospital and is co-located
with ED. A senior nurse assesses all
ambulatory care patients arriving at ED and
identifies those appropriate for further triage or
treatment by a Primary Care physician or nurse

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

the number of people conveyed to hospital

e As lead Provider for IUC SCAS will enhance their clinical co-

ordination and IUC approach by;

Increasing the range of specialist providers in the CAS to include
midwives, AHPs and the third sector (including palliative care
and social care)

Developing closer integration with Single Points of Access for
out of hospital services

Rolling out direct booking to Urgent Treatment Centres (UTCs)
Piloting direct booking into GP Practices in-hours
Supporting Health Information advice with text messaging

Increasing capability and number of care home using Skype
technology building on an existing 999 pilot.

Work actively with NHS England to look at opportunities to pilot
software for new online symptom checkers and shape the future
design of on-line services.

Pilot direct booking into ‘in hours’ GP Practices once the new
EMIS/Adastra links are established. A scoping exercise has
identified that a maximum of 5 appointments would need to be
booked per day and 2 Berkshire West practices will participate in
the pilot.

The Primary Care streaming service operating at the front door
of the RBFT ED has recently been evaluated against the key
deliverables set out in the Business Case. The A&E Delivery
Board considered the outcomes of the review at its Mar-18
meeting. A briefing paper was presented to the ICS Unified
Executive on 12th April and it was agreed that a Task and Finish
group will be convened to rapidly review the operating model for
the service and redesign the service to ensure greater patient
throughput at lower cost whilst retaining patient satisfaction with
the service.

44

68



whilst those requiring clinically greater
assessment of care are directly booked into
ED.

e The service is currently being evaluated and a
recommendation will be made to the A&E
Delivery Board in March 2018. Initial indications
are that the current model is not financially
sustainable and that the numbers being
streamed to the service are lower than planned.

Integrated Discharge service (Getting Home)

e In 2017 the RBFT Service Navigation Team
and the BHFT Integrated Discharge Team were
combined to form a new Integrated Discharge
service (Getting Home) under a single
manager. The new team provides a single point
of contact for all complex discharges operating
with a new e-referral system. The team are
working closely with Adult Social Care
colleagues to support a seamless discharge
flow to out of hospital services.

¢ Also under the Getting Home programme a
Trusted Assessment pilot has been operating
with positive results and excellent feedback
from Adult Social Care on the standard of
assessments and care plans provided by RBFT
Occupational Therapists (OTs).

Minor Injuries Unit (MIU)

o Current service provision at the Minor Injuries
Unit (MIU) at the West Berkshire Community
Hospital has been reviewed in light of the
guidance on designation of Urgent Care
Treatment Centres (UTC). The existing service
already meets many of the conditions of a UTC
but developments required include; upskilling
the workforce in minor illness, establishing
additional premises requirements,
interoperability and introducing an appointment
booking system. Additionally the extent of GP
presence at the UTC is yet to be determined
but opportunities presented by the more
integrated approach to on the day management
of urgent need are being explored.

Delayed Transfers of Care

¢ In 17-18 Commissioners, Providers and Local
Authority partners focused closely on delivery
and robust monitoring of BCF schemes with
DToC numbers remaining at some of their
lowest levels during Dec-17 and Jan-18.

e The new Integrated Discharge Service
launched their new operating model, working
with medically fit patients on a case
management approach and liaising closely with

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

In 18-19 the Integrated Discharge Service will move to “business
as usual” within the Trust although this does not mean that the
service will not continue to develop and evolve. The team will
fully roll out the new e-referral system across the Trust and hold
an official launch on 17" April which will showcase best practice
in discharge and have Liz Sergeant as a guest speaker. The
team will continue to work on the discharge pathways with the
aim of simplifying the pathways and having increased
consistency across Berkshire West. The team will also work with
ASC colleagues on the best model for integrating social workers
into the team. This is aimed at supporting achievement of the
3.5% target for DToC and reducing the number of stranded
patients in the Trust through a focus on simplifying pathways,
hone as the default discharge destination and community
services pulling patients out of bedded care.

The Trusted Assessment pilot continues and in 18-19 with the
aim of reducing the current duplication is assessment for
patients. In 18-19 the focus will shift to Care Homes and how
the use of the Trusted Assessment approach could reduce the
delays experienced waiting for Care Home assessment.

The next stage of the Discharge to Assess pilot is the use of a
single “home visit” assessment form” with a duplicate being left
in the patient’s home.

The unit will be in a position to achieve full UTC designation by
December 2019.

Full interoperability will be in place by g2 to support direct
booking

Agreed set of PGD (Patient Group Directives) in place

In 2018-19 the ICS will work with Adult Social Care colleagues
to implement the recommendations from the Local Government
Association (LGA) review completed in February 2018
including:

e Focus on home first and discharge to assess

e Joint H&SC commissioning, demand and capacity
planning and workforce strategy across all
authorities

45

69



ASC on complex discharges.

e The Trusted Assessment pilot went live on
Hurley ward with a new Berkshire West
Standard Operating Procedure, single referral
form and OTs acting as Trusted Assessors for
care needs post discharge.

e The Specialist Support to Discharge team
(CHS) provided individualised support to self
funding patients and their families to facilitate
timely discharge and materially decreased the
number of days delayed for this cohort of
patients.

e There was continued focus on discharge to
assess and full use of D2A capacity and on

flow through Community Hospitals with ongoing
work on the time taken to transfer patients from

acute to community beds.

Continuing Healthcare (CHC) service

e The Continuing Healthcare (CHC) service has
continued to try to increase the number of
patients who are interim funded pending a full
CHC assessment, a process which began in
September 2017. However the complex needs
of some patients have meant we have not
always been able to do this in a timely way. In
Q4 N&W Reading met the percentage
projected in the Improvements Plans (9%).
North and West Reading achieved 20%, 5%
over the Improvement Plan target. Newbury
and District CCG’s percentage increased to
33% from 14% in Q3. Wokingham’s
percentage remained at 25%. due to an
inability to place patients identified for interim
funding and assessment then needing to take
place in hospital

e Providing social work service and community
support seven days a week

e Simplifying and clarifying access to care pathways

e Successful implementation of the High Impact
Changes.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery

of this plan:

o Actions are not sufficient to deliver the
submitted A&E trajectories

e Anticipated impact of bed modelling project not
realised

¢ |UC service does not deliver the expected
channel shift impact on downstream services

e DToC rates will remain above the 3.5%
threshold target across acute and community
beds

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

e The A&E Delivery Board will continue to take oversight of the
transformational programme of work for UEC. The Board has a
clear remit in holding partners to account for delivery and
addressing risks and issues to support achievement of the A&E
4 hour target.

o External support is being commissioned to support the bed
modelling work and ensure achievement of key deliverables

e The CCG will work closely with the IUC Alliance of Providers to
support achievement of the Business Case deliverables

e The BW 10 Partnership Board will also continue to have an
important role on oversight of delivery of key BCF schemes
recognising that not all Local Authority partners are currently
part of the ICS.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e High Intensity Users

e Bed modelling and flow

e Streaming at the front door of ED
e Ambulatory Care

e Specialist support to discharge

o Suite of BCF schemes including Discharge to Assess, Falls and Frailty, Mental Health Street Triage

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

46

70




e Implementation of the LGA Peer Challenge on Delayed Transfers of Care

7.5 Annex 5 — Maternity
Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

A Local Maternity System (LMS) was established across the BOB STP in March 2017 as recommended by the Better
Births Report: National Maternity Review published in June 2016. As a result of the capacity issues across Thames
Valley maternity services is one of the main priorities for the BOB STP. The Senior Responsible Officer for Maternity
is Chief Executive of Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust who nominated the Chair responsibility to Director of
Nursing for Berkshire West CCG. The membership of the LMS Board includes representatives as recommended in
the NHS E LMS Resource pack. The LMS Board meets quarterly with working groups set up to address the 5 main
priorities.

There are 3 acute Trusts in the BOB LMS, all providing maternity services. There are 4 main types of care settings
for women giving birth: home, freestanding midwifery units (FMU), alongside midwifery units (AMU) and Consultant
led Obstetric units. Within BOB LMS every Trust provides a home birth service, there are five FMUs, three AMUs and

three Obstetric Units.

Progress in 2017/18

e The Implementation plan for the BOB LMS
provides the detail to date of the 3 year
maternity transformation programme. The BOB
LMS has agreed the 5 main priorities; this
requires each Locality to have a Local
Maternity steering group and a Maternity
Voices Partnership that will be represented on
the LMS board in order to understand how
each local maternity steering group is
implementing all aspects of Better Births.

e The BOB LMS plan concentrates on workforce,
capacity and safer care. The need to develop
the digital agenda is highlighted as this is
pivotal to accurately record outcomes using
robust data.

e LMS Board 5 main priorities are:

e Improving the safety of maternity care by
2020/21

¢ Increasing Choice and Personalisation
e Transforming the workforce

e Improve access to Perinatal Mental Health
Services

e Improving Prevention

Risks and issues associated with the delivery
of this plan:

e Inability to recruit to midwife vacancies

Deliverables for 2018/19

o Achieve 20% of all deliveries within the Alongside Midwifery
Unit

¢ Increase Home Births to 3% by end of 2017/18 and 4% by Q4
2018/19

e Continue progress towards 20% reduction in stillbirths,
neonatal death and maternal death and brain injury during birth
by 2020

e Ensure Diversion policy is activated less than 1-3 time per
month and for as short a time as possible

e High HMU to be open and caring for postnatal mothers
requiring additional support, unblocking delivery rooms and
freeing up midwives.

o Every woman being cared for by small midwifery teams of 4-6
midwives, with a named lead obstetrician per team

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these

risks and issues?

e Participate in BOB LMS workforce day to develop plan for
2018/19 and beyond and monitored at LMS

¢ Local Berkshire West action plan in place and monitored at
local Maternity Steering group

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e BOB LMS
e STP Governing Body

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

47

71



7.6 Annex 6 — Learning Disabilities

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG and Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

The Transforming Care Partnership (TCP) Board comprises 14 Health and Social Care partners across the county
who hold a shared vision and commitment to support the implementation of the national service model for children,
young people and adults with learning disabilities and/or autism, who have behaviour that challenges and may or
may not have mental health issues and have come into contact with the criminal justice system. The model requires
integration and collaboration by commissioners, providers and other sectors to enable this cohort of people to lead
meaningful lives through tailored care plans that meet individual needs.

This reflects the national Transforming Care Partnerships (TCPs) that CCGs and STPs are expected to deliver. We
have achieved the following in line with the national programme.

Progress in 2017/18

Berkshire Transforming Care Plan

e The Berkshire Transforming Care Plan has 4
key aims:

e More care in the community, with personalised
support provided by multi-disciplinary health
and care teams

e More innovative services to give people a
range of care options, with personal budgets,
so that care meets individuals needs

o Early, more intensive support for those who
need it, so that people can stay in the
community, close to home

o Inpatient care, but only as long as is needed
and is necessary

e To achieve those aims the TCP Board has
established a programme and governance
structure built around a number of work
streams, with children and young people and
those in transition being a core component of
each.

Reduce inappropriate hospitalisation

e We have continued to reduce inappropriate
hospitalisation of people with a learning
disability, autism or both, so that the number in
hospital reduces at a national aggregate level
by 35% to 50% from March 2015 by March
20109.

e There are continuous efforts to move people
out of long stay hospitals into appropriate
community settings. Berkshire CCG and

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

Deliverables for 2018/19

e There are seven work streams in place that support these aims
and form our priority actions for 2018/19:

1.

Joint commissioning and integration —
aligning financial processes, explore joint
commissioning, jointly managing the market
Communication and engagement —
stakeholder identification, creation of
communications plan, effective communication
and engagement

Workforce development and culture — cultural
audit, workforce development programmes for
staff, creating a cultural change programme
Children and young people — engaging
services, developing new joint ways of working
and person led plans

Autism — engaging with service users, including
people in developments, enhancing support
Service reconfiguration — deliver intensive
support team service, reducing reliance on bed
based care, growing housing and support
services, developing meaningful day
accommodation and employment opportunities,
enhance services to meet needs of children and
young people in transition, further support for
people with autism

Risk management — shared financial, quality,
relational risk plan, mitigate risks through a
programme management approach.

e The TCP Board has set a plan to reduce Berkshire East CCG
and Berkshire West CCG commissioned in-patient beds to 10-
15 beds per million population by the end of 2018/19.

48

72



BHFT, working with the NHS England
Specialist Commissioning Team, are on track to
reduce CCG and NHS England commissioned
bed capacity from 44 to 28 within the time line.
Working with the best of local experience, skills
and knowledge a new service model has been
created that incorporates Positive Behavioural
Support and increased level of community
based provision resulting in a reduction in beds.

Improve access to healthcare

e We have continued to improve access to
healthcare for people with a learning disability,
so that the number of people receiving an
annual health check from their GP is 64%
which is higher than in 2016/17. The TCP
Board is working in partnership with GP
practices to ensure that reasonable
adjustments are made to enhance access for
annual health checks. GP practices are
encouraged to ensure that the right coding is
used to ensure that people have timely access
to annual health checks. We are presently on
track to meet this target.

Avoiding hospitalisation

o We have made further investment in ¢ To continue funding the intensive support team for the financial
community teams to avoid year 2018/19
hospitalisation. Berkshire West has developed | . To develop a protocol working with NHSE for Tier 4 cohort
an intensive support team, the remit of this clinical treatment reviews

team has been developed to ensure that
people are supported in the community to
manage risks and avoid hospital

admissions. Berkshire West CCG and BHFT
are working closely together to continue the
development of this team.

e We have ensured more children with a learning
disability, autism or both get a Community care,
Education and Treatment Review (CETR) to
consider other options before they are admitted
to hospital. We are continuing to work with our
partners on this to ensure that the earliest
intervention point is realised to gain better
outcomes for our children. We are also
working with NHS England on developing joint
CETR for cohorts that are currently in tier 4
provision.

Premature mortality

e We continue to develop the work on tackling e To continue to routinely review deaths of patients with learning
premature mortality by supporting the review of disabilities, linking in with BHFT Quality Improvement
deaths of patients with learning disabilities, as Programme

outlined in the National Quality Board 2017
guidance. Berkshire West CCG has
implemented the LeDeR programme that
oversees the review of all deaths and have
appointed reviewers.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery | How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these

of this plan: risks and issues?

e The risks and issues associated with this plan e This is a national programme of work dedicated to people with
are mitigated through our risk register, board learning disabilities. We are proud of the work undertaken so

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 49

73



meetings and operational group meetings. By far and for the support of partners. We look forward to a
working together as a system we can identify continued positive relationship with our partners through our
and minimise the risks ICS.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e Transforming care board

o Berkshire West CCG Governing Body

o East Berkshire CCG Governing Body

o West Berkshire, Reading and Wokingham Local Authorities

7.7 Annex 7 — Outpatients

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG, Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust, Berkshire Healthcare
Foundation Trust,

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

The vision for the outpatients transformation programme is to redesign outpatient services provided to Berkshire
West patients in ways that every contact for patients counts by:

Developing alternative options to complement current practice

Optimising technology advances

Truly integrating working across pathways

Developing care closer to home to reduce inconvenience for patients who may need to travel significant
distances

PN E

The overall aim is to provide the optimum patient experience and best value for money for the Berkshire West
pound.

This transformation programme is a strategic change programme delivered as a collaborative approach through the
ICS with RBFT, BHFT, Berkshire West CCG and the emerging GP Alliances working together to achieve the
changes. It builds upon an internal RBFT three year outpatients modernisation programme that started early in
April 2017 and takes advantage of the ICS development to give the programme a wider perspective and gain

greater benefits.

Progress for 2017/18

Programme Overview

e Develop a vision and direction to scope all
outpatient services.

e Good engagement between the three

organisations and the GP alliances to identify

early specialties for inclusion in Phase 1
specialties.

¢ Engaged meds management across the
organisations to support the areas of change
where meds management has a key role.

« |dentified the need for advanced advice and
guidance to support secondary expertise in
primary care.

e Explored the role of digital technology and
support management

o Developed business cases to implement a new

way of working with an advice and guidance
solution.

o Developed a business case to implement
DAWN for multi-specialties to support the

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

Deliverables for 2018/19

e During Q1/2 2018/19 implement the pilot for a new Advice and
Guidance (A&G) solution between primary, secondary care
and mental health teams.

¢ Go live with the implementation of consultant-led telephony
triage of Rapid Access Chest Pain Clinic (RACPC) referrals in
Q3 2018/19 following the implementation of the A&G solution

e During Q2 2018/19 will see the introduction of a streamlined
ambulatory care pathway for RACP patients

¢ A chronic cough pathway using an integrated approach to the
management of patients with a cough lasting =8 weeks will be
implemented in Q1 2018/19.

e In Q3 2018/19 a primary care led sleep apnoea service to
manage patients within primary care and streamline referrals
to secondary care where further intervention is required.

e Introduction of virtual management of renal patients and their
long term care planning.

¢ Following technical enablement during Q2 2018/19 the use of
electronic monitoring of patients results and telephone
consultations for patients requiring long term disease

50

74



remote monitoring of patients bloods in
response to management of their long term
care.

« |dentified three areas of mental health to
improve communication and streamline patient
care.

¢ In all areas where there will be changes to
patient pathways workgroups have been
developed with representation from operational
teams, clinical teams from secondary care
(RBFT or BHFT), GP and CCG.

e Q4 2017/18 commence a pilot for virtual
discharge planning between GP and Mental
Health Team MDT for mental health inpatients
to ensure primary care are part of discharge
plans for patients and minimising the risk of
patients going back into crisis management,
readmission or re-referral.

e Q4 2017/18 workshop and planning
commences to explore the potential of a
primary care based service to care for patients
who have mental health and physical health
problems.

Project development

e During 2017/18 a significant benchmarking
exercise was undertaken across all RBFT
outpatient departments, reviewing the detailed
workings of the hospital outpatient departments
within the main acute site and its satellite sites.
A key priority is to reduce the variation ensuring
patients receive a standard and equitable
service for their outpatient care. The
standardisation will support the elimination of
any processes that are unnecessary and do not
add value to the patients. Through working as
an ICS primary care and secondary care
clinicians will develop pathways, protocols and
guidelines for referrals which will support this
reduction in variation.

Optimising Clinic Space

¢ In tandem with reviewing clinical pathways
RBFT have developed on line room booking
provision across all sites to ensure clinic space
is maximised and used flexibly to support
patient access. In line with the seven day
working focus from NHSI/E providing clinics out
of hours will be scoped and the general
outpatient’s management structure and skill mix
reviewed. With workforce skills, needs and
training underpinning any changes to service
provision.

Using Technology to enable new ways of
working

e Focus has been placed on moving away from
traditional models of outpatient services being
held by consultants within a hospital outpatient
setting and exploring the role of digital
technology and new ways of working to provide
more cost effective and timely ways of

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

modifying drugs in Gastroenterology, Respiratory,
Dermatology and Neurology.

End of Q1 2018/19 an improved and streamlined dementia
pathway and memory clinic working towards the delivery of the
6 week of diagnosing dementia.

Q1 2018/19 phase 2 of acute specialty reviews will commence
and a rolling programme of specialty and outpatient services
reviews continuing throughout 2018/19 and implementation of
approved changes.

Q1&2 relocate the first cohort of outpatient services from the
main RBH site to satellite clinics.

This transformation is currently being developed across all
RBFT specialties with planning already underway with Phase 1
specialties including: Cardiology, Respiratory, Renal, ENT,
Gastroenterology, Rheumatology and Neurology. The careful
phasing of changes and clinic moves starts on a small scale to
ensure that patients are not compromised and learning from
changes and innovation can be embedded before further
rollout. During the course of the transformation programme, it
is expected that every specialty and outpatient service will
undergo a review with clinicians and management alike across
primary and secondary care and patients co-designing the
changes.

Finalise outpatient data by patient postcode to determine the
level of clinic appointments required per hospital location.

Commence a phased approach to moving specialties across
the hospital outpatient sites. outpatient sites .

Develop the clinic utilisation tool to accurately record clinic
booking.

Complete a skills review required to manage outpatients and
new ways of working.

In parallel the clinical and operational teams of BHFT have
been scoping changes for mental health services with an ICS
focus starting with the Dementia/Memory service, virtual
consultation between GPs and Psychiatrists as well as
exploring a different model to support mental health patients

51

75



delivering outpatient care for example using with physical health needs, with further RBFT and
remote monitoring, telephone and video BHFT/Primary Care services following in 2018/19.
conference appointments. The changes and

New Models of Care have taken into account

the release in clinician’s timetables which could

be used in more effective ways to modernise

and adapt services to meet the emerging

patient needs and expectations.

Putting patients at the centre

o A key driver for the outpatients transformation e Introduce new ways of communicating with patients:
programme is putting patients at the centre of | o \WWhen exploring changes at specialty level, we will be engaging

the change. The different ways patients will patients to ensure they understand the change, have the
communicate with the clinical teams managing opportunity to influence the process, be involved in patient
their care and treatment will vary and put the comms.

patient as an active and informed participant of

the management of their outpatient journey. e Undertake before and after patients surveys before changes

This will require robust and continued focused are made and 6 months post implementation of change in all
communications with the community, voluntary specialties offering new ways of engaging with patients.
sectors and targeted communication strategies | * Engage with the ICS comms teams to engage with and

to patients and carers. They will be kept influence the communications matrix to ensure patients are
informed of the changes being explored as well aware of the changes and have an opportunity to be involved.
as having a voice in the shape of the future of e Use existing patient groups as a forum to inform, engage, gain
outpatient services. It is a vital element of the feedback and involve patients.

change programme that patients are
empowered to make informed choices as well
as supporting them to embrace change and not
be fearful of the New Models of Care as the
health economy move forward with the change
in delivery. Engagement has commenced with
one of the local Patient Engagement Group as
well as planned patient representatives being
included in the project workstreams.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery | How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these

of this plan: risks and issues?

e Capacity to incorporate new ways of working e Ensure workstreams have representation from each area to
within clinical areas. ensure the workload changes are managed accordingly.

¢ No reduction in activity realised despite various | e Ensure pace of change is manageable through phasing of
intervention. rollout and close monitoring to minimise risk of failure of the

project workstreams.

¢ Close monitoring of all KPIs — activity PODs, staffing and
quality benefits will be monitored to readily identify issues and
analyse accordingly.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e Long Term Conditions Programme Board
Planned Care Programme Board
Outpatient transformation steering group
DTB Clinical Delivery Group

Medicines Optimisation Group

GP Alliances working group

Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust outpatient group
Mental Health Programme Board
Dementia work stream

Virtual Mental Health work stream

Mental Health/Physical Health work stream

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 52

76



7.8 Annex 8 - Integrated Respiratory Service

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG, Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust, Berkshire Healthcare

Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

Work is under way to develop an integrated approach to managing patients with respiratory conditions. This builds on
a previous case for change to increase access to specialist consultant skills across community and secondary care
implementing an appropriate outcome based approach to meet local population needs.

The aim being to reduce unplanned hospital admissions and demand for specialist outpatient services, with the

following aims:

e To provide a fully integrated service for primary, secondary and community care through virtual clinics and an MDT
approach to respiratory provision in a community setting

e To promote early identification of COPD and Asthma self-management and intervention to improve the well-being

of patients with respiratory disease

e To reduce reliance on specialist skills where alternative approaches can be adopted.
o To upskill primary and community to ensure the potential to support the patient population is maximised.

Progress in 2017/18

e There are a number of current work-streams
which form part of the Outpatient
Transformation Programme and are focussing
on revised pathways for managing both Sleep
Apnoea and chronic cough. In addition work is
in progress to review existing patients with
COPD/Asthma, mainly in relation to current
medication. This will continue to support
discussions regarding most effective ways to
meet the needs of the local population.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery
of this plan:

e There is a need to identify a sustainable
approach to reducing reliance on specialist
skills and developing integrated pathways. A
number of approaches have been identified
over an extended period of time, which have
not come to fruition, and therefore a re-fresh of
outcomes, opportunities and skills and
functions required to meet these is required.

e There are a number of inter-dependent
approaches which are highly reliant on co-
ordination to avoid duplication and overlap.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

Deliverables for 2018/19

¢ Reduction in non-elective admissions for defined respiratory

conditions

Refresh of RightCare approach, and validation of
opportunities, with agreed priorities and outcomes to reduce
variation.

Increased numbers of patients reviewed annually and
assessment of breathlessness undertaken using validated
approach

Increased number of patients prescribed cost effective inhalers
Implementation of sleep apnoea pathway
Implementation of chronic cough pathway

Development of community hub, to support diagnostic
assessment and optimises prescribing costs

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

e The Long Term Conditions Programme Board has

membership from ICS partners and has responsibility for
delivery

The respiratory work-streams are overseen by the Long Term
Conditions Programme Board (LTCPB) which has membership
from all ICS partners (both clinical and managerial), as is the
case for the Respiratory Steering Group, which is a sub group
of the LTCPB. This enables risks to delivery of the
transformation plans to be identified, and mitigations
developed through the Steering Group, with clear escalation
plans to LTCPB. The LTCBP formally reports to the Clinical
Commissioning Committee, and has reporting to the ICS
Clinical Strategy Group (CSG) , with escalation to the ICS
Unified Executive

Equally the respiratory Outpatient Transformation work-
streams are overseen by the LTCPB and also reports its
overarching programme into the ICS Clinical Delivery Group.
This ensures there is mitigation of the risk of duplication or
overlap with other projects.

There are identified clinical leads from each ICS partner
organisation which significantly contributes to co-production of
integrated pathways.

53

77



What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e The Long Term Conditions Programme has a number of inter-dependent work-streams which will contribute to the
transformation and integrated management of respiratory conditions. This includes consideration of other
conditions which impact on both physical and mental health, and are often reviewed in isolation of the respiratory
condition/s.

e Qutpatients Transformation Programme — including Chronic cough and Sleep Apnoea pathways

e Care and Support Planning (this is being extended to focus on patients with respiratory and other long term
conditions) to support increased confidence and self-management, and reduction in duplication of approach.

e Improving Access to Psychological Therapies for patients with Long Term Conditions (IAPT-LTC) work stream
focusing on improving confidence and self-management for people living with long term conditions, ensuring that
both physical and mental health needs are addressed.

7.9 Annex 9 — High Intensity Users
Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

A substantial proportion of the healthcare budget is accounted for by relatively few patients. This indicates significant
potential for reducing workload on urgent care services and the wider health economy via a targeted and proactive
intervention. Learning from Blackpool has demonstrated that an approach of empathy and coaching rather than
enforcement has the potential to reduce the volume of urgent care activity for this cohort and indeed improve
outcomes for patients.

This model of support has been replicated locally through the implementation of a High Intensity User (HIU) service
working across RBFT, BHFT, SCAS and primary care. The approach offers a robust way of working across the ICS
to reduce activity to 999, NHS 111, A&E, GP contacts and hospital admissions, freeing up front line resources to
focus on more clients and reduce costs. It uses a health coaching approach, targeting high users of services and
supports the most vulnerable clients within the community to flourish, whilst making the best use of available
resources.

The service will measure the impact directly on 999 call outs, A&E attendances and associated admissions as well as
gualitative outcomes for clients. However, through the Connected Care technology the project will also have the
visibility of how the work of the coaches impacts on the wider health system, for example primary care and mental
health services.

Progress in 2017/18 Deliverables for 2018/19

e The ICS service started in October 2017 initially | e In 2018/19 the focus will continue to be building the caseload
for a period of 8 months to establish if the same of patients who are most likely to benefit from this different

results can be replicated locally. Two coaches approach to support, undertaking a robust evaluation of the
are working with up to 40 people in this impact of the work to date including how the approach might
timeframe after which an initial evaluation will be utilised in other areas of healthcare.

take place to establish if there is a business
case for a full roll out. Achievements to date
include:

o Marked reduction in ED attendances for those
patients on the HIU caseload (47%).

e Reduction in the volume of 999 calls

e Detox completed for a number of patients who
remain free from the use of drugs and alcohol.

o Excellent links made with the local community,
particular charitable and voluntary sector
organisations who are providing vital support to
patients

e The service is working directly with key
stakeholders in the acute hospital, ambulance
service and the police to ensure there is a

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 54

/8



joined up approach to delivery of this support to
patients. In addition it is likely that the initial
phase will draw out gaps in our current service
provision, not only within statutory health and
social care services but also the voluntary
sector services. It may also indicate where
existing services need extra capacity to provide
the relevant support. The latter will also be
included as a key part of the evaluation.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery | How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these

of this plan: risks and issues?

e Continuing requirement to ensure that our ¢ In 18/19 we will experiment with embedding our health
interoperability systems (e.g. Connected Care) coaches directly into provider services (e.g. A&E) so that
enable our health coaches to access patient information systems can be accessed directly and health
data in different care settings coaches can build networks with other care practitioners who

« |G requirements make it challenging for the also regularly treat these patients
CCG / ICS to have visibility on a specific cohort | ¢ Working with ICS partners to ensure robust data and
of patients thus raising a difficulty in creating a information is being collected which is both useful and
baseline of activity and measuring changes compliant with statutory IG requirements
against this to evaluate the success of the
intervention

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

¢ High Intensity users is a project in its own right but has dependencies with Connected Care and the A&E Delivery
Board

7.10 Annex 10 — Integrated MSK

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG, Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust, Berkshire Healthcare
Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

Musculoskeletal conditions (MSK) are one of the areas of greatest spend for Berkshire West with care currently split
across primary care, intermediate services and acute provision. With an ageing population there are increasing levels
of demand and variation in referrals and management of MSK conditions which supports an overall case for change.
Further work is required to improve the service to patients through developing and implementing a more integrated
and coordinated programme.

People with MSK conditions need to be able to access high quality support and a wide range of treatments. Needs
range from simple behavioural or exercise advice to highly technical, specialised medical and surgical treatments.
Multidisciplinary, integrated services are essential and need to incorporate rapid assessment and diagnosis

Progress in 2017/18 Deliverables for 2018/19

e Through a fundamental re-design of the MSK e The overall vision is to provide an integrated system of MSK
pathway (completed in 2017/18) patients will be care taking a holistic approach that will deliver high value care
able to have greater control over their treatment using hospital facilities only when necessary, empowering

and pathway. The CCG will be able to primary care, improving patient experience and enabling better

accurately predict annual spend on MSK and self-management.

providers will be incentivised to improve quality | « The new MSK integrated service model (due in October 2018)

of clinical care, identify and eliminate waste will be based on a contract with a single point of responsibility

from within the MSK supply chain and deliver a (Prime Provider), for the identified cohort of patients, with the

seamless integrated experience of care to the associated budget and responsibility for clinical quality, patient

patient. safety and the efficient management of the patient pathway of
e To support a change in direction for MSK, it care for MSK services for any patients registered with a GP in

requires moving away from the traditional view Berkshire West.

of a single disease under the medical model, « The new integrated service aims to deliver the following

moving towards a holistic approach, seeing the
Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 55

79




patient as a whole rather than the condition
they seek help for. With the right changes, right
partnerships, and right investments Berkshire
West will be able to achieve the holistic
approach as set out in the Five Year Forward
View. Through embedding shared decision
making and adopting evidence based practice
looks to break down professional boundaries
ensuring the patient is on the right pathway
receiving right care at the right place and at the
right time.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery

of this plan:

o Agreeing the cost envelope for the service that
is within CCG budget and provider cost

e Getting to contract sign

* Mobilisation of new service

outcomes:

1. An end to end pathway that encompasses de-
medicalising MSK, promote self-care and
healthy living such as exercise and healthy
eating as enablers to have a positive impact on
MSK issues;

2. A community provision where primary and
community care providers work closely with
physiotherapists to provide direct access for
patients with MSK conditions to physiotherapists
and ensuring all aspects of self-management
are explored to manage the condition and there
in guaranteeing appropriate referrals to
secondary care in line with clinical need,;

3. Patients to participate in a shared decision
making process before referral for a procedure
to secondary care;

4. Reducing clinical variation and duplication
through pathway coherence;

5. Ensuring that every MSK practitioner is
consistent in their approach;

6. Addressing the issues and concerns identified
by patients and improving the quality of patient
experience;

7. Patients should be given choices for treatments
and the providers must have regard to the NHS
Constitution Patient Choice;

8. Providers will identify and eliminate waste from
within the MSK pathway and supply chain (as
outlined in the Getting it Right The First Time
report) therefore delivering commercial
efficiency for the Berkshire West system moving
toward a whole-system approach;

9. Utilisation of IT solutions to provide integrated
care

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

e Work together to design the optimum MSK service for patients

e Ensure the ICS Exec working Group to kept up to date on the
project progress and risks are escalated to this group

What are the programmes we expect to contribute?

¢ Planned Care Programme Board

¢ |CS Management, Finance and Clinical committees

7.11 Annex 11 — Diabetes

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire West CCG, Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust, Berkshire Healthcare

Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

The overarching BOB STP plan for Diabetes Transformation focuses on improving the efficiency of the BOB area
while bringing care closer to home and improving access to more appropriate and timely healthcare for their
population. This plan shows the commitment of all the constituent CCGs to move towards a common goal of reducing

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

56

80



variation in care across the whole STP area.

Our vision for better management of Diabetes is based around the NHS Year of Care process enabling genuine
person centred care for people with long term conditions (LTCs) including diabetes. Our three areas of focus are
centred on improved structured Education, 7 day access to specialist diabetes nurses within secondary care and
reduced variation in the achievement of the three national treatment targets. Services are provided by both RBFT

and BHFT working collaboratively with the CCG.

Progress in 2017/18

Diabetes Education

e The uptake of structured education by patients
varies across Berkshire West. A wide range of
issues are known to influence the uptake and
reasons for low attendance. There is a need to

get people involved in their care in a way that is

relevant to them, be that level 1, 2 or 3 of
education. This can be both at and post
diagnosis when there are other ‘teachable
moments’ such as a change in medication or
onset of a complication.

o We have recognised locally that the current
capacity within the Diabetes Specialist Nurse
team was insufficient to effectively meet the
needs of in-patients with diabetes. The
enhanced service introduced during 2017/18
enables more targeted approaches to identify
patients “at risk” earlier, and aims to reduce
complications; improve patient reported
outcomes and experience, reduce the level of
medication errors and ensure people only stay
in hospital when they need to. The team also
provide on-going ward based training for staff

aimed at improving knowledge. In the Maternity

Unit, the team aim to identify and identify and

reduce the risk of complications associated with

diabetes. Additionally, the nurses manage
those women attending clinic with diabetes

providing specialist care including screening for

gestational diabetes.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery

of this plan:

e The national transformation funding is time
limited, and has only recently been confirmed
for 2018/19. This has impacted on the pace of
delivery of the planned outcomes.

¢ A sustainable approach to funding of each
work-stream beyond this is required. This
poses risks where longer time scales are
required to demonstrate behaviour change and
clinical outcomes to support return on
investment.

e Developing a sustainable approach to meeting
the needs for specialist skills and ensuring
optimal use of scarce resources e.g. dietician,
consultant, diabetes specialist nurses.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

Deliverables for 2018/19

e The ICS is therefore committed to improving referrals and
uptake to increase attendance over the next 3 years. Year one
funding has allowed the CCG to commission a new
“Carbaware” course for our population alongside additional
training course for people with type | Diabetes. During this
second year we will continue to develop a programme of work,
which includes a “suite of education modules” that provides a
variety of options for education based on individual learning
needs. Each option is designed to move people towards
structured education at the pace that is most appropriate for
them. Each option will also be evaluated as an integral part of
the process to ensure value for money and long term return on
investment.

¢ |n addition to improved use of existing technology, for example
Eclipse software, we have also recently commenced a
programme of care support, specifically targeted at those with
“complex diabetes” involving the use of specialist staff to
support a multi-disciplinary approach to targeting and
managing these complex patients in order to achieve better
control and avoid repeat admissions and attendances at A&E
for Hypoglycaemia or other manifestations of poor control. This
will be further expanded and assessed during 2018/19 to
better understand the impact on patient outcomes.

How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

e The Diabetes work-streams are overseen by the Long Term
Conditions Programme Board (LTCPB) which has membership
from all ICS partners (both clinical and managerial), as is the
case for the Diabetes Steering Group, which is a sub group of
the LTCPB. This enables risks to delivery of the transformation
plans to be identified, and mitigations developed through the
Steering Group, with clear escalation plans to LTCPB. The
LTCBP formally reports to the CCG Governing Body and also
reporting to the ICS Clinical Delivery Group (CDG) , with
escalation to the ICS Unified Executive

A task and finish approach is in place to progress the work
streams, which is driven by ICS membership.

The diabetes transformation proposals were co-produced by
ICS partners with agreement at executive level from each
respective organisation, a clear process is in place for review
of progress on a quarterly basis, this is equally reported to
NHSE.

57

81



What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e The Long Term Conditions Programme has a number of inter-dependent work-streams which will contribute to the
transformation of the management of diabetes; this includes

o Community clinics for people with complex needs as a result of their diabetes

e Care and support planning approach (this is being extended to focus on patients with diabetes and other long term
conditions) to support increased confidence and self-management, and reduction in duplication of approach.

o Development of the Diabetes specialist nurse roles, and integrated pathways to optimise skills across primary,
community and secondary care.

e Development of a suite of options to support increased knowledge and confidence self manage diabetes, this
includes exploration of digital approaches and technology.

e IAPT-LTC work stream focusing on improving confidence and self-management for people living with long term
conditions, ensuring that both physical and mental health needs are addressed.

¢ National Diabetes Prevention Programme (NDPP)

¢ National Diabetes Eye Screening Programme

7.12 Annex 12 — Estates

Responsible ICS partner: Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust and Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

An efficient, effective, high quality, modern, accessible and welcoming estate is critical to our ability to serve our
patients and contribute to the recovery and healing process. Our estate presents us with a number of challenges.
Like many health and care systems our estate is a patchwork of bespoke buildings built in a range of different eras
across multiple sites and with challenges associated with aging and expensive infrastructure, both in terms of
replacement and on-going running costs

The aim of this work is to maximise effective utilisation (clinical and Non-Clinical) of NHS Estate portfolio and identify
opportunities to deliver cash receipts through disposals and reduced annual revenue costs across the system. This
will support and be shaped by the emerging estates requirements of the new care model and system changes
identified via the ICS change programmes and ensure the estate portfolio is fit for the delivery of modern healthcare
services that meets the expectations of patients/service users

Progress in 2017/18 Deliverables for 2018/19

o Initial scoping and planning of the project e Taking the next step along the outpatient transformation
journey RBFT are leading on the further development of
Bracknell Healthspace atBrants Bridge as an Integrated
Ambulatory and Community Health care centre with services
provided by RBFT, BHFT and 3" sector providers for patients
in Bracknell and the surrounding area in 2018/19 and beyond.
Alongside this RBFT will be increasing the amount of
ambulatory care provided away from the acute hospital site for
patients in other parts of the county from locations in Henley
and Thatcham, making better use of and developing the
premises in those locations with system partners as
appropriate.

e BHFT is leading on the development of a clinical services hub
at the University of Reading Whiteknights campus for BHFT
and RBFT Children, Young Peoples and Families Services and
Adult Mental Health services from February 2018 with a 2 year
roll out.

e BHFT are nearing completion of a new 2- storey building at
their Community Hospital which will house a Renal Dialysis
Unit on the ground floor for occupation by RBFT and a Cancer
Care Unit on the first floor will be occupied by Sue Ryder,
RBFT, BHFT and the Cancer Care Trust. Opening in May
2018 to services will support patients in Newbury who

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 58

82



Risks and issues associated with the delivery
of this plan:

o Alignment with other ICS schemes — consider
using space differently before disposing.
Programmes such as shared bed modelling
must help inform what to do with the estate.

o Access to redevelopment funding

» Alignment with STP and OPE
agendas/stakeholders

previously had to travel to Reading for treatment. The unit has
been fully funded by charitable donations through the support
of the Newbury & Thatcham Hospital Building Trust and the
Cancer Care Trust.

« RBFT will be developing the masterplan for the acute hospital
site, supporting new models of care and potentially the shared
back office agenda, during 2018/19

How does the ICS intend to work together to mitigate these
risks and issues?

o Established working groups for key programme deliverables
with appropriate estates management and clinical
representation from across the ICS.

o A formal programme management structure that identifies and
manages risk and dependencies with regular highlight
reporting to CFO Group. Monthly scrutiny and oversight by ICS
unified executive.

« ICS finance directors and estates colleagues working with
NHSPS to complete the STP (BOB) estates strategy
workbook. Draft ICS estates strategy document to be ready for
May for inclusion at STP level to align for STP level capital bid
prioritisation.

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e Other ICS clinical programmes - in particular outpatients, integrated MSK and bed modelling — as they explore
options for care delivery in community / non acute settings.

e Other ICS ‘new business’ work programmes - in particular back office and any estates requirements in relation to

shared / co-located functions.
e Primary Care estates / ETTF
« BOB STP estates strategy

7.13 Annex 13 — Shared Bed Modelling

Responsible ICS partner: Royal Berkshire Hospital Foundation Trust

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

This project was established to ensure our ‘bed base’ across the ICS health economy is fit to meet our current and
anticipated demographic and that it supports the new care model and system changes as they are identified via the
ICS programmes. The project is mapping capacity and patient flow across provider organisations, sites and bed
types. A key output will be a move to manage all bedded care across the system ‘as one’ supported by a system
wide bed management system based on real time data. At its heart is a redesign across the system of bedded care
to deliver provision that can care for the right patient in the right setting as part of care pathways that provide

alternatives to bedded care where appropriate.

Progress in 2017/18

e Current state for acute and community bedded
care is complete, the next stages will pull in
mapping of domiciliary, nursing and residential
home care and include in the future state
design alternatives to bedded care.

o This will help inform the feasibility of different
models of care delivery and identify
opportunities and areas for improvement for the
long term care requirements of the population.
In addition, the project will look to deliver
shared ‘live’ bed capacity visibility to support
patient flow and bed management. The work

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19

Deliverables for 2018/19

e Phase 4 - the final phase of the programme will deliver 3 key
outputs:

¢ A synthesis of the outputs of the work completed to date

e Benchmarking of these outputs with international comparators
to create an assessment of Berkshire West’s bed base,
including the ratios of beds between different settings of care

o A fully designed set of costed interventions which are likely to
mitigate the financial effects of any projected growth in beds.

59

83



has been divided into a number of phases, with
the final element due by the summer of 2018.
Work completed to date includes:

e Phase 1 — An assessment of the current acute
& community physical health beds in the
Berkshire West system

e Phase 2 — An indicative model of likely growth
in demand for these beds and therefore future
requirements

e Phase 3 — An assessment of local mental
health inpatient bed requirements for the next
10 - 20 years

Risks and issues associated with the delivery | How does the ICS intend to work together to mitigate these

of this plan: risks and issues?

o Established dedicated project group with appropriate
representation from across the ICS.

e Formal programme management structure, including risk
identification / mitigation and escalation, with regular highlight
reporting to A&E Programme Board. Monthly oversight by
dedicated ICS clinical and senior executive groups.

e The Berkshire West Digital Transformation board, that brings
together senior ICT representation from across the ICS, will
support the development of MI systems.

e Capacity of existing Ml systems to support ‘real
time’ bed management & patient flow reporting

o Availability of community alternatives to bedded
care — particularly domiciliary

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

o A&E Delivery Board and the Berkshire West 10 Integration Programme- oversee the delivery of a range of
initiatives focused on reducing avoidable hospital admission and promoting more timely discharge. These initiatives
will impact on future capacity and patient flow requirements.

o Other ICS clinical programmes that identify alterative care models and different delivery methods / locations.

o Estates programme - mutual dependency to consider using space differently before disposing. Shared bed
modelling programme must help inform what to do with the estate and vice versa.

o |CS Workforce strategy — mutual dependency as alternative care models and bed provision may require a different
roles.

7.14 Annex 14 — Workforce planning
Responsible ICS partner: Facilitated by Berkshire West CCG working in collaboration with all ICS partners

Overall Goals for 2017-2019

A major part of our ICS ambition focuses on making improvements for staff across the area. As well as specific aims
to improve workplace wellbeing there are ambitions to enhance leadership capability, up skill the workforce and
create a shared workforce plan to increase opportunities for rotation across organisations — giving staff greater
experience and enabling them to deliver better care and ensuring that we have the workforce we need to deliver the
New Models of Care while maintaining the current service in the transformation period.

Our aim is to develop a network which will facilitate partnerships between service providers and the education and
training providers within the ICS footprint that will accelerate the development of a sustainable and highly skilled
health and care workforce in Berkshire West. By working together we will develop the infrastructure and stakeholder
relationships necessary to effectively identify workforce needs and secure the investment and innovative approaches
required to address these.

Deliverables to date 2017/18 include:
e Formation of the ICS Workforce structure as detailed below.

e Engagement with NHSE/HEETV HEE Leadership Academy for
funding and professional guidance. Scoping of all workforce
initiatives and teams within the ICS footprint.

Progress in 2017/18

e To deliver on our aims we have established an
ICS Workforce Group to support workforce
development and transformation across the
Five Year Forward View priorities areas. This

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 60

84



group’s function is to enable the Berkshire e Development and engagement with a draft BOB STP

West workforce agenda to be delivered within workforce plan.

the ICS model of collaborative partnership « In 2018/19 it is expected that a whole system analysis of our
between organisations in Berkshire West, short, medium and longer term workforce requirements will be
ensuring our services meet the health and care | papped out in order to form the basis of our action plan for
needs of the local population. To enable the Berkshire West.

group function and support the workforce aims
and function of the providers within the ICS, the
group membership includes Health Education
Thames Valley (HEETV) NHS England (NHSE)
The Health Education England Leadership
Academy (HEELA) and the Health Education
Regional Workforce Team.

e The group will inform the STP Workforce
programme, which is delivered by HEETV via
the Berkshire Local Workforce Action Boards
(LWAB). The ICS group will also facilitate the
delivery of the Local Workforce Advisory Board
and national objectives.

Aims and Objectives of the ICS Workforce

Group:

o Identify the workforce requirement across the
ICS

e Develop an ICS Workforce Plan

¢ In line with NHSE policy, secure the Berkshire
West capitated share of all national funding to
support delivery of the workforce plan

e Provide assurance to funding parties e.g.
HEE/NHS England (NHSE) that funding is
appropriately deployed

e Set strategic direction and oversee the work of
the workforce sub groups

o Develop innovative and transformational
approaches to role design

o Ensure mobility of the workforce around the
ACS system to retain staff within Berkshire
West and optimise the deployment of key skill
sets

e Commission appropriate levels of pre-
registration and CPD training

o Establish or access the HETV workforce
intelligence function to provide accurate
workforce data and workforce modelling
capability.

e The ICS Workforce Group has within its
structure underpinning operational groups
whose function is to bring together the key
stakeholders for the various work streams. In
its current incarnation the work streams are
based on the key priorities areas as laid out in
the NHS England (NHSE) and HEETYV plans.

Risks and issues associated with the delivery | How does the ICS intends to work together to mitigate these

of this plan: risks and issues?

e Without the collaborative partnerships between | e Via the ICs Workforce model there will be full ICs partner and
service providers facilitated by the ICS model stakeholder engagement in the plans and strategic level sign
allowing collective workforce planning and off for all workforce planning and development moving forward.
development, we would be instead be in a » The ICS workforce model enables transformation and
competitive workforce market driving providers innovative workforce planning to be piloted and modelled
to compete against each other for dwindling system wide within the ICS health and social care arena.
workforce resource.

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 61

85



e There must be strategic level sign up from all
partner organisations to the ICS Workforce
model to enable a system wide approach
to workforce planning and development

What are the projects programmes we expect to contribute?

e A/E Board. Newly set up UEC Task and Finish operational group which will report into A/E board
Long Term Condition Programme Board and Long Term Condition Steering Group

ICS Provider Stakeholder Workforce Function. BHFT, RBHFT, BW10 providers

ICS Outpatient Transformation Group Meeting

ICS Workforce Operational Groups. Cancer/MH/Primary Care/UEC

Berkshire West ICS Operating Plan 2018/19 62

86




TITLE

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

WARD

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER

Health and Wellbeing
Strategy priority/priorities
most progressed through
the report

Agenda Iltem 25.

Better Care Fund Quarter 1 Submission

Health and Wellbeing Board on Thursday, 9 August
2018

None Specific;

Katie Summers, Director of Operations, Wokingham
Locality, NHS Berkshire West CCG and Martin Sloan,
Interim Director of Adult Social Services, Wokingham
Borough Council

This report meets three of the four priorities of the HWB
Strategy

Priority 1 — Enabling and empowering resilient
communities;

Priority 3 — Reducing health inequalities in our Borough;
Priority 4 — Delivering person-centred integrated services

Key outcomes achieved
against the Strategy
priority/priorities

Reason for consideration
by Health and Wellbeing
Board

To provide assurance to the Board on the activities of
the Better Care Fund Programme, this focuses on
delivery of the Boards strategic priorities.

To provide an update of Wokingham’s Better Care Fund
(BCF) Programme performance for Quarter 1 2018/19

What (if any) public
engagement has been
carried out?

None required

State the financial
implications of the decision

Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That the board notes the performance of the Better Care Fund in Q1 2018/19.

SUMMARY OF REPORT

The Q1 BCF submission provides a summary of Wokingham’s BCF Programme
performance for Q1 of 2018/19, including progress of milestones, challenges,
performance metrics and delivery against the 8 High Impact Change Model to reduce
delayed transfers of care (DToC).

87




Background

As part of The Integration and Better Care Fund, Operating Guidance For 2017-19
(Published 18 July 2018) each BCF is required to submit quarterly reports to NHS
England and Ministry for Housing, Community and Local Government.

The primary purpose of the BCF quarterly reporting is to provide national partners with a
clear and accurate account of compliance with the key requirements and conditions of
the fund as set out in the Policy and the Planning Requirements. The secondary
purpose is to inform policy making and the national support offer by providing a fuller
insight, based on narrative feedback from systems, on local progress, issues and
highlights on implementation of the BCF plans.

It is expected that these reports are discussed and signed-off by Health and Wellbeing
Boards (or with appropriate delegation) as part of their responsibility for overseeing BCF
plans locally. In Wokingham we have agreed delegation from the HWB that the chair
signs off these submissions, but that the submission will be shared at the next HWB
convened.

Section 195 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 states that HWBs are expected to
continue to oversee the strategic direction of the BCF and the delivery of better
integrated care, as part of their statutory duty to encourage integrated working between
commissioners.

In order for the HWB to review performance of the BCF and consider future work, it
would need to have the appropriate information reported to it from a partnership board.
HWBSs can require CCGs that are represented on the HWB, and the LA that established
the HWB, to provide it with relevant information, for example the quarterly reports and
annual report.

Partner Implications

N/A

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2

N/A

List of Background Papers

Enc. 1 — Wokingham HWB Better Care Fund Q1 Submission 2018/19

Contact Rhian Warner Service Better Care Fund Programme

Telephone No 07989 346744 Email rhian.warner@wokingham.gov.uk

88




Better/Care FundTemplate'Q12018/19

Guidance

Overview

The Better Care Fund (BCF) quarterly reporting requirement is set out in the BCF Planning Requirements for 2017-19 which supports the aims of the
Integration and BCF Policy Framework and the BCF programme jointly led and developed by the national partners Department of Health (DHSC), Ministry
for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), NHS England (NHSE), Local Government Association (LGA), working with the Association of
Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS).

The key purposes of the BCF quarterly reporting are:
1) To confirm the status of continued compliance against the requirements of the fund (BCF)

2) To provide information from local areas on challenges, achievements and support needs in progressing integration and the delivery of BCF plans
3) To foster shared learning from local practice on integration and delivery of BCF plans
4) To enable the use of thisinformation for national partners to inform future direction and for local areas to informdelivery improvements

BCF quarterly reporting is likely to be used by local areas, alongside any other information to help inform HWBs on progress on integration and the BCF. It
is also intended to inform BCF national partners as well as those responsible for delivering the BCF plans at a local level (including clinical commissioning
groups, local authorities and service providers) for the purposes noted above.

BCF quarterly reports are submitted by local areas are required to be signed off by HWBs as the accountable governance body for the BCF locally and these
reports are therefore part of the official suite of HWB documents.

The BCF quarterly reports in aggregated form will be shared with local areas prior to publication in order to support the aforementioned purposes of BCF
reporting. In relation to this, the Better Care Support Team (BCST) will make the aggregated BCF quarterly reporting information in entirety available to
local areas in a closed forum on the Better Care Exchange (BCE) prior to publication.

For 2018-19, reporting on the additional iBCF Grant (from the funding announced in the 2017 Spring Budget) isincluded in the BCF quarterly reporting as a
combined template to streamline the reporting requirements placed on local systems. The BCST along with NHSE hosted information infrastructure will be
collecting and aggregating the iBCF information and providing it to MHCLG. Although collected together, BCF and iBCF information will be reported and
published separately. MHCLG aim to publish the additional iBCF information in 2018-19.

Note on entering information into this template

Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and those that are pre-populated have a grey background, as below:
Data needs inputting in the cell

Pre-populated cells

Note on viewing the sheets optimally

To more optimally view each of the sheets and in particular the drop down lists clearly on screen, please change the zoom level between 90% - 100%. Most
drop downs are also available to view as lists within the relevant sheet or in the guidance tab for readability if required.

The details of each sheet within the template are outlined below.

1. This sheet helps identify the data fields that have not been completed. All fields that appear as incomplete should be complete before sending to the

Better Care Support Team.
2. Itis sectioned out by sheet name and contains the description of the information required, cell reference for the question and the ‘checker’ column

which updates automatically as questions within each sheet are completed.

3. The checker column will appear “Red” and contain the word “No” if the information has not been completed. Clicking on the corresponding “Cell
Reference” column will link to the incomplete cell for completion. Once completed the checker column will change to “Green” and contain the word “Yes”
4.The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all ‘checker’ values for the sheet are green containing the word ‘Yes'.

5. Once the checker column contains all cells marked 'Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (below the title) will change to 'Complete Template'.

6. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist tab are green before submission.

1. Cover

1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being completed, contacts and sign off.

2. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all the questions in each section of the template have been
completed the cell will turn green. Only when all cells are green should the template be sent to england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net

89



22-National Conditions/& s75Pooled/Budget

This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the four national conditions detailed in the Integration and Better Care Fund
planning requirements for 2017-19 continue to be met through the delivery of your plan. Please confirm as at the time of completion.
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/integration-better-care-fund-planning-requirements.pdf

This sheet sets out the four conditions and requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm ‘Yes' or 'No' that these continue to be met. Should 'No' be
selected, please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the quarter and how this is being addressed. Please note that where a
National Condition is not being met, the HWB is expected to contact their Better Care Manager.

In summary, the four national conditions are as below:

National condition 1: A jointly agreed plan

Please note: This also includes confirming the continued agreement on the jointly agreed plan for DFG spending
National condition 2: NHS contribution to social care is maintained in line with inflation

National condition 3: Agreement to invest in NHS-commissioned out-of-hospital services

National condition 4: Implementation of the High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfers of Care
3. National Metrics

The BCF plan includes the following four metrics: Non-Elective Admissions, Delayed Transfers of Care, Residential Admissions and Reablement, As part of

the BCF plan for 2017-19, planned targets have been agreed for these metrics.

This section captures a cenfidence assessment on meeting these BCF planned targets for each of the BCF metrics.

A brief commentary is requested for each metric outlining the challenges faced in meeting the BCF targets, any achievements realised and an opportunity
to flag any Support Needs the local system may have recognised where assistance may be required to facilitate or accelerate the achievement of the BCF

targets.

As a reminder, if the BCF planned targets should be referenced as below:

- Residential Admissions and Reablement: BCF plan targets were set out on the BCF Planning Template

- Non Elective Admissions (NEA): The BCF plan mirrors the CCG (Clinical Commissioning Groups) Operating Plans for Non Elective Admissions except where
areas have put in additional reductions over and above these plans in the BCF planning template. Where areas have done so and require a confirmation of
their BCF NEA plan targets, please write into england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net

Please note that while NEA activity is not currently being reported against CCG Operating Plans (due to comparability issues relating to specialised
commissioning), HWBs can still use NEA activity to monitor progress for reducing NEAs,

- Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC): The BCF plan targets for DToC should be referenced against your current provisional trajectory. Further information on
DToC trajectories for 2018-19 will be published shortly.

The progress narrative should be reported against this provisional monthly trajectory as part of the HWB's plan.

This sheet seeks seeks a best estimate of confidence on progress against targets and the related narrative information and it is advised that:

- In making the confidence assessment on progress against targets, please utilise the available published metric data (which should be typically available for
2 of the 3 months) in conjunction with the interim/proxy metric information for the third month (which is eventually the source of the published data once
agreed and validated) to provide a directional estimate.

- In providing the narrative on Challenges, Achievements and Support need, most areas have a sufficiently good perspective on these themes by the end of
the quarter and the unavailability of published metric data for one of the three months of the quarter is not expected to hinder the ability to provide this
very useful information. Please also reflect on the metric performance trend when compared to the quarter from the previous year - emphasising any
improvement or deterioration observed or anticipated and any associated comments to explain.

Please note that the metrics themselves will be referenced (and reported as required) as per the standard national published datasets.
4. High Impact Change Model

The BCF National Condition 4 requires local areas to implement the High Impact Change Model (HICM) for Managing Transfers of Care. This section of the
template captures a self-assessment on the current level of implementation, and anticipated trajectory in future quarters, of each of the eight HICM
changes and the red-bag scheme along with the corresponding implementation challenges, achievements and support needs.

The maturity levels utilised on the self assessment dropdown selections are based on the guidance available on the published High Impact Changes Model
(link below). A distilled explanation of the levels for the purposes of this reporting is included in the key below:
Not yet established - The initiative has not been implemented within the HWB area

Planned - There is a viable plan to implement the initiative / has been partially implemented within some areas of the HWB geography
Established - The initiative has been established within the HWB area but has not yet provided proven benefits / outcomes

Mature - The initiative is well embedded within the HWB area and is meeting some of the objectives set for improvement

Exemplary - The initiative is fully functioning, sustainable and providing proven outcomes against the objectives set for improvement

https://www.local gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/systems-resilience/high-impact-change-model

In line with the intent of the published HICM model self assessment, the self assessment captured via BCF reporting aims to foster local conversations to
help identify actions and adjustments to progress implementation, to understand the area’s ambition for progress and, to indicate where implementation
progress across the eight changes in an area varies too widely which may constrain the extent of benefit derived from the implementation of the model. As
this is a self assessment, the approaches adopted may diverge considerably from area to area and therefore the application of this information as a
comparative indicator of progress between areas bears considerable limitations.

In making the self-assessment, please ensure that a representative range of stakeholders are involved to offer an assessment that is as near enough as
possible to the operational reality of the area. The recommended stakeholders include but are not limited to Better Care Managers, BCF leads from CCGs
and LAs, local Trusts, Care Sector Regional Leads, A&E Delivery Board representatives, CHIAs and regional ADASS representatives.

The HICM maturity assessment (particularly where there are multiple CCGs and A&E Delivery Boards (AEDBs)) may entail making a best judgment across
the AEDB and CCG lenses to indicatively reflect an implementation maturity for the HWB. The AEDB lens is a more representative operational lens to reflect
both health and social systems and where there are wide variations in implementation levels between them, making a conservative judgment is advised.
Where there are clear disparities in the stage of implementation within an area, the narrative section should be used to briefly indicate this, and the
rationale for the recorded assessment agreed by local partners.

Please use the ‘Challenges’ narrative section where your area would like to highlight a preferred approach proposed for making the HICM self-assessment,
which could be useful in informing future design considerations.




Where the selected maturity levels for the reported quarter are 'Mature' or 'Exemplary’, please provide supporting detail on the features of the initiatives
and the actions implemented that have led to this assessment.

For each of the HICM changes please outline the challenges and issues in implementation, the milestone achievements that have been met in the reported
quarter with any impact observed, and any support needs identified to facilitate or accelerate the implementation of the respective changes.

To better understand the spread and impact of Trusted Assessor schemes, when providing the narrative for “Milestones met during the quarter / Observed
impact” please consider including the proportion of care homes within the locality participating in Trusted Assessor schemes. Also, any evaluated impacts
noted from active Trusted Assessor schemes (e.g. reduced hospital discharge delays, reduced hospital Length of Stay for patients awaiting care home
placements, reduced care home vacancy rates) would be welcome.

Hospital Transfer Protocol (or the Red Bag Scheme):

- The template also collects updates on areas’ implementation of the optional ‘Red Bag' scheme. Delivery of this scheme is not a requirement of the Better
Care Fund, but we have agreed to collect information on its implementation locally via the BCF quarterly reporting template.

- Please report on implementation of a Hospital Transfer Protocol (also known as the ‘Red Bag scheme’) to enhance communication and information
sharing when residents move between care settings and hospital.

- Where there are no plans to implement such a scheme please provide a narrative on alternative mitigations in place to support improved
communications in hospital transfer arrangements for social care residents.

- Further information on the Red Bag / Hospital Transfer Protocol: A quick guide has been published:
https://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/keogh-review/Pages/quick-guides.aspx

Further guidance is available on the Kahootz system or on request from the NHS England Hospital to Home team through england.ohuc@nhs.net. The link
to the Sutton Homes of Care Vanguard — Hospital Transfer Pathway (Red Bag) scheme is as below:

https://www.youtube.com/watch ?v=XoYZPXmULHE
5. Narrative

This section captures information to provide the wider context around health and social integration.

Please tell us about the progress made locally to the area’s vision and plan for integration set out in your BCF narrative plan for 2017-19. This might include
significant milestones met, any agreed variations to the plan and any challenges.

Please tell us about an integration success story observed over reported quarter highlighting the nature of the service or scheme and the related impact.
6. Additionallimproved Better.Care Fund’~Part'1
For 2018-19 the additional iBCF monitoring has been incorporated into the BCF form. The additional iBCF section of this form are on tabs '6, iBCF Part1'
and '7. iBCF Part 2', please fill these sections out if you are responsible for the additional iBCF quarterly monitoring for your organisation, or geographic
area.

To reflect this change, and to align with the BCF, data must now be entered on a HWB level.

The iBCF section of the monitoring template covers reporting in relation to the additional iBCF funding announced at spring budget 2017 only.

More specific guidance on individual guestions is present on the relevant tabs.

Please find a list of your previous Quarter 4 2017/18 initiatives / projects on tab 'iBCF Q4 1718 Projects’.

Section A: Please ensure that the sum of the percentage figures entered does not exceed 100%. If you have not designated any funding for a particular
purpose, please enter 0% and do not leave a blank cell.

Section B: Please enter at least one initative / project, but no more than 10. If you are funding more than 10 initiatives / projects, you should list those with
the largest size of investment in 2018-19.
7./Additional improved Better.Care Fund- Part 2
Section C: The figures you provide should cover the whole of 2018-15. Please use whole numbers with no text,
enter 0 in the appropriate box.

Section D: Please enter at least one metric, but no more than 5.

if you have a nil entry please could you

91



Better Care Fund Template Q1 2018/19

1. Cover

[version 1.0 |

Please Note:

- The BCF quarterly reports are categorised as ‘Management Information’ and are planned for publishing in an aggregated form on the NHSE
website. Narrative sections of the reports will not be published. However as with all information collected and stored by public bodies, all BCF
information including any narrative is subject to Freedom of Information requests.

- As noted already, the BCF national partners intend to publish the aggregated nationol quarterly reporting information on a quarterly basis. Ata
local level it is for the HWB to decide what information it needs to publish as part of wider local government reporting and transparency
requirements. Until BCF information is published, recipients of BCF reporting information (including recipients who access any information placed
on the BCE) are prohibited from making this information available on any public domain or providing this information for the purposes of
Journalism or research without prior consent from the HWB (where it concerns a single HWB) or the BCF national partners for the aggregoted
information.

- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required
if this is breached.

[Health andWellbeingBoard: [y |
[complersaby: 1
_rhian.warner@wokingham.gov.uk |
rd Dolinski, Chair of Health and Wellbeing Board and Executi

Question Completion - when all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green you should send the template
to england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net saving the file as '"Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'

Complete

Pending Fields

1. Cover
2. National Conditions & s75 Pooled Budget
3. National Metrics
4. High Impact Change Model
5. Narrative
6. iBCF Part 1
7. iBCF Part 2
m "
of Heal ommuniti
Social Care Local Government AGs?o\c{SiEnnment Eng|and
] << Link to Guidance tab |
1. Cover
Cell Reference  |Checker
Health & Wellbeing Board Cc8
Completed by: C10
E-mail: C12
Contact number: C14
Who signed off the report on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board: C16
!Sheet Complete: Yes
2. National Conditions & s75 Pooled Budget AA Link Back to top
Cell Reference
1) Plans to be jointly agreed? 8
2) Social care from CCG minimum contribution agreed in line with Planning Requirements? 9
3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of hospital services? C10
4) Managing transfers of care? C11
1) Plans to be jointly agreed? If no please detail D8
2) Social care from CCG minimum contribution agreed in line with Planning Requirements? Detail D9
3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of hospital services? If no please detail D10
4) Managing transfers of care? If no please detail D11
Have the funds been pooled via a s.75 pooled budget? C15
Have the funds been pooled via a 5.75 pooled budget? If no, please detail D15
Have the funds been pooled via a 5.75 pooled budget? If no, please indicate when E15
[sheet Complete: Mes

92



3. Metrics A Link Back to top

Cell Reference  |Checker

NEA Target performance D11 Yes
Res Admissions Target performance D12 fes
Reablement Target performance D13 Xes
DToC Target performance D14 Yes
NEA Challenges E11l Yes
Res Admissions Challenges E12 Yes
Reablement Challenges E13 Yes
DToC Challenges E14

NEA Achievements F11

Res Admissions Achievements F12

Reablement Achievements F13

DToC Achievements F14

NEA Support Needs G11

Res Admissions Support Needs G12

Reablement Support Needs G13

DToC Support Needs G14
[Sheet Complete: Yes
4, High Impact Change Model An Link Back to top

Cell Reference

Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Q1 18/19 E12
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow Q1 18/19 E13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Q1 18/19 E14
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Q1 18/19 E15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Q1 18/19 El6
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Q1 18/19 E17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Q1 18/19 E18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Q1 18/19 E19
UEC - Red Bag scheme Q1 18/19 E23
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Q2 18/19 Plan F12
Chg 2 - Systems to manitor patient flow Q2 18/19 Plan F13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Q2 18/19 Plan F14
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Q2 18/19 Plan F15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Q2 18/19 Plan F16
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Q2 18/19 Plan F17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Q2 18/19 Plan F18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Q2 18/19 Plan F19
UEC - Red Bag scheme Q2 18/19 Plan F23
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Q3 18/19 Plan G12
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow Q3 18/19 Plan G13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Q3 18/19 Plan G14
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Q3 18/19 Plan G15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Q3 18/19 Plan G16
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Q3 18/19 Plan G17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Q3 18/19 Plan G18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Q3 18/19 Plan G19
UEC - Red Bag scheme Q3 18/19 Plan G23
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Q4 18/19 Plan H12
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow Q4 18/19 Plan H13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Q4 18/19 Plan H14
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Q4 18/19 Plan H15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Q4 18/19 Plan H16
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Q4 18/19 Plan H17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Q4 18/19 Plan H18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Q4 18/19 Plan H19
UEC - Red Bag scheme Q4 18/19 Plan H23
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 112
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 113
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/agency discharge teams, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 114
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 115
Chg 5 - Seven-day service, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 116
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 117
Chg 7 - Focus on choice, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 118
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 119
UEC - Red Bag scheme, if Mature or Exemplary please explain 123
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Challenges J12
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow Challenges J13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Challenges 114
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Challenges J15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Challenges J16
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Challenges J17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Challenges J18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Challenges J19
UEC - Red Bag Scheme Challenges )23
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Additional achievements K12
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow Additional achievements K13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Additional achievements K14
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Additional achievements ~ K15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Additional achievements Ud K16




5. Narrative AA Link Back to top
Cell Reference  |Checker
Progress against local plan for integration of health and social care B8
Integration success story highlight over the past quarter B12
[sheet Complete: ¥es
6. iBCF Part 1 A Link Back to top

Cell Reference IChecker

A) a) Meeting adult social care needs D11
A) b) Reducing pressures on the NHS E1l
A) c) Ensuring that the local social care provider market is supported F11
Initative 1 - B1: Individual title C18
Initative 1 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-197 C19
Initative 1 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. 21
Initative 1 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project' for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected ocutcomes. C22
Initative 1 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. C23
Initative 1 - B6: If "Other", please specify. C24
Initative 1 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. C25
Initative 1 - B8: Report on progress to date: C26
Initative 2 - B1: Individual title D18
Initative 2 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? D19
Initative 2 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. D21
Initative 2 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project' for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. D22
Initative 2 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. D23
Initative 2 - B6: If "Other", please specify. D24
Initative 2 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. D25
Initative 2 - B8: Report on progress to date: D26
Initative 3 - B1: Individual title E18
Initative 3 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? E19
Initative 3 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. E21
Initative 3 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project' for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. E22
Initative 3 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. E23
Initative 3 - B6: If "Other”, please specify. £24
Initative 3 - BY: Planned total duration. For centinuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. E25
Initative 3 - B8: Report on progress to date: E26
Initative 4 - B1: Individual title F18
Initative 4 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-197 F19
Initative 4 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. F21
Initative 4 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project’ for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes, F22
Initative 4 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. F23
Initative 4 - B6: If "Other", please specify. F24
Initative 4 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. F25
Initative 4 - B8: Report on progress to date: F26
Initative 5 - B1: Individual title G18
Initative 5 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? G19
Initative 5 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. G21
Initative 5 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project’ for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes, G22
Initative 5 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. G23
Initative 5 - B6: If "Other", please specify. G24
Initative 5 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. G25
Initative 5 - B8: Report on progress to date: G26
Initative 6 - B1: Individual title H18
Initative 6 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? H19
Initative 6 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. H21
Initative 6 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project’ for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. H22
Initative 6 - B5: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. H23
Initative 6 - B6: If "Other", please specify. H24
Initative 6 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. H25
Initative 6 - B8: Report on progress to date: H26
Initative 7 - B1: Individual title 118

Initative 7 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-197 119

Initative 7 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. 121

Initative 7 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project’ for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. 122

Initative 7 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. 123

Initative 7 - B6: If "Other", please specify. 124

Initative 7 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. 125

Initative 7 - B8: Report on progress to date: 126

Initative 8 - B1: Individual title J18

Initative 8 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? J19

Initative 8 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. J21

Initative 8 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project' for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. 122

Initative 8 - B5: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. J23

Initative 8 - B6: If "Other", please specify. 124

Initative 8 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, inciude running time before 2018/19. 125

Initative 8 - B8: Report on progress to date: 126

Initative 9 - B1: Individual title K18
Initative 9 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? K19
Initative 9 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. K21
Initative 9 - B4: If this is a 'New Initative / Project’ for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. K22
Initative 9 - BS: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls unQA K23
Initative 9 - B6: If "Other”, please specify, K24




Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Additional achievements

K17

Chg 7 - Focus on choice Additional achievements K18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Additional achievements K19
UEC - Red Bag Scheme Additional achievements K23
Chg 1 - Early discharge planning Support needs L12
Chg 2 - Systems to monitor patient flow Support needs L13
Chg 3 - Multi-disciplinary/multi-agency discharge teams Support needs L14
Chg 4 - Home first/discharge to assess Support needs L15
Chg 5 - Seven-day service Support needs L16
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Support needs L17:
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Support needs L18
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Support needs L19
UEC - Red Bag Scheme Support needs L23

!Sheet Complete:

95




Initative 9 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19, K25
Initative 9 - B8: Report on progress to date: K26
initative 10 - B1: Individual title L18
Initative 10 - B2: Is this a continuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or a new project for 2018-19? L19
Initative 10 - B3: 2017-18 Project names as provided in the 2017-18 returns. L21
Initative 10 - B4: if this is a ‘New Initative / Project’ for 2018/19, the key objectives / expected outcomes. L22
Initative 10 - B5: Which of the following categories the initiative / project primarily falls under. L23
Initative 10 - B6: If "Other", please specify. 124
Initative 10 - B7: Planned total duration. For continuing projects, include running time before 2018/19. 125
Initative 10 - B8: Report on progress to date: L26

|Sheet Complete:

96




6. iBCF Part 2

Cell Reference  |Checker
C) a) The number of home care packages provided for the whole of 2018-19 D11 |
C) b} The number of hours of home care provided for the whole of 2018-19 E11
C) ¢) The number of care home placements for the whole of 2018-19 F11
D) Metric 1 C18

I—Sheet Complete: _m

AA Link Back to top

97



Better.Care Funhd:Template/Q12018/19
National Conditions & s75 Pooled Budget

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: [wokingham ]

Confirmation of Nation Conditions

¥ the answer Is ¥No'please provide an explanation as 1o why the condition was not met within

National Condition Confirmation the qUarterand how this is being addressed

1) Plans to be'jointly agreed?
(Thes st
of Disabled Facilities Grant in twa tier are

2} Planned contribution to social care from the CCG
minimum contribution is agreed in line with the Planning’
Requirements?

3)'Agreement to invest in NHS commi

hosphtal services?

4) Managing transfers of care?

Confirmation of s75 Pooled Budget

Statement Response

Have the funds been peoled via a 5. 75 pooled budget?

i the answer to tha above fs
IT,the answer.is “No* please provide an explanation as te why the condition was not met within: | ‘No! please indicate when this
ithe quarterand how this is being addressed: will happen {DD/MM/YYYY})

98



Better/CarelFund Template/Q1:2018/1

Metrics

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board; [

‘Wokingham

Challenges
Achievements
Support Needs

ns

Please describe any challenges faced in meeting the planned target
Please describe any achievements, impact observed or fessons learnt when considering improvements being pursued for the respective metrics
Please highlight any support that may facilitate or ease the achievements of metric plans

Assessment of progress
@gainstthe planned
target for.the quarter

Not on track to meet target

Challenges

Only have month 1 data. Based on April
2018 actuals our NEAs for Qtil are
forecast to be 3,421 v Plan of 3,292 (3 9%
above plan), although the forecast for the
quarter may change when we have the
benefit of another month's actual figures.

Achievements

Looking at our results for our focus group
(>70 year of age and with one or more of
13 target conditions), the number of
admissions for April was 105 compared to
102 in the same period in 2017/18,
showing that admissions are stable.

SupportiNeeds

We still have an issue with our NEA target
as the CCG operating plan for NEAs for
17/18 and 18/19 was set following the NHS
planning rules and includes IHAM
{Indicative Hospital Activity Model) growih
including demographic growth and a QIPP
reduction with a net reduction of 1.8%
against 2016/17 out turn (Wokingham NEA
outurn for 2016/17 was a small reduction
on 15/16 actual NEAs). This proved to be a
real challenge in 17/18 with net reduction
target of 1.8%. A real challenge
considering that we are already one of the
highest performing system for NEAs in
England.

te.of permanent admissions to
ential careperd00,000
population (65t}

Res'Admissicns

On track to meet target

Nil

Permanent Admissions to Care Homes for
Qtrl 2018/19 in total were 18, which was
10 less than for the corresponding period in
2017/18 and within target of 33.

Nil

Proportion of older;people/(65 and
Jiwho! lllatthome 91 days
after/discharge fromhaspitallinto
reablement’/

o
Reablement !

1abilitationiservices

On track to meet target

At present the figure recorded only
includes social care reablement patients,
'which are small numbers per month {4 o 6
per month). Such small numbers does
significantly impact the overall percentage
achieved, which was shown in 17/18. We
are currently investigating the ability to
include all the health rebalment patients to
get a more accurate view 1n Q1 and Q2 and
double checking the allowable variation in
this criteria

91 Day target was 80% for June.

il

Delayed Transfers' Delayed TransferscfiCare{delayed

of Care days)

On track to meet target

DToC days for Qtr 1 were 933, compared to
the current Plan of 960 {2.8% below
target).

April month DToC days were high but we
are seeing a reducing trend in May and
June. In 2017/18 our DToC days were the
lowest for the three Berkshire West LAs
(Wokingham 3,689, compared to 6,579 for
Reading and 8,057 for West Berkshire].

The Wokinghar Integrated Partnership has

prepared evidence to present a case to

change the 2018/19 DToC ambiticn for

Wokingham. We understand that the
d-methodol

prop is di d to set
more ambitious targets and allow good
performers to hold their 2017/18
performance and agree that this seems
reasonable; however we feel that for
‘Wokingham this has produced an anomaly
and thrown up a perverse DToC target for
us.

99




Better,Care Fund Template Q112018/19

4, High Impact Change Model

selected Health and Wellbeing Board: [wokingham

]

Challenges
Miestones met during the quarter / Observed Impact

Please describe the key challenges faced by your system in the implementation of this change

Please describe the milestanes met in the implementation of the change or describe any observed impact of the implemented change

Support Needs Please indicate any support that may better facilitate or accelerate the implementation of this change
Maturity Assessment. Narrative
Qi || QUE1s - Hazisfion Dasiys | atis/io :Zzi:”:l I:;::::‘fl‘::m"i': f::::;nl Bt Milestanes met during the quarter /. e e Al
{current] {Planned) {Planned} (Planned] Observed impact
The Berkshire West system enaged the LGA
ta carry out a peer challenge into the issue of
Uelayed Transfers of Care i January 2018
The draft report published in March 2018
In crder to progress to "Plans in Place”, we | " '-2\ed that we may have oversiated our
e 10 ensure 252 system tht drchange. | PO51I9M BY 1udBing ourselves s ectablshed
plinning does ot strt 1n AGE. wie hope (o | 83175131 hanges and encoursged us o re-
resolve this by G2 via: completing actions fn | >o5* 91 ProgTess agansl the & Change Wokingham and ils Berkshire West partners
G Not yet the AMU recovery plan; renewing Arses During CH, we have otk harsmmh | s s callobatciie Soeriadd v R
Early discharge planning | (S ] Plans in place [Established | Mature g the LGA and our Berkshire Wast partners to .
established communicauon materials, PR & leaflets (using improving the system's DTOC results, with
the national example of “System Information |[ODUSHY re-as5ess our performance sgainst | Lol g’ on roided by the LGA.
2 the B change areas. and we are developing a
Leaflet”); focusing on avoiding evening
sdmissions and facihtating late-night JolSL pnam e action plan e tmprcing
horges hoth our DTOC performance and our progress.
against the HCIM implementation. This has
recawved considerable investment and
suppon from cur DASS's and the CCG's
Dwrectors, and will continue o be 2 pricrity
moving forward:
In arder to progress to "Plans in Place”, we
necd to ensure that we are consistently
meeting all S criteria for the rating While
further scoping 15 necessary 10 assess how this
5 e N might best be done, we believe that a system
RE :iu';:n ey Established :s::::shed blans in place |Plans in place |Established capacity policy may be required, which As above s above
includes any details of any necessary changes
in practice, identifies bottlenecks in the
system and details any changes required to
deal with these alengside an agreed sysiem
escalation of capacity.
I erder to progress to “Established”, we
need to ensure that we are meeting the 2nd
and 3rd crtern for that rating. To facilitate
It dhegl ary o ) this, in the first nstance we will focus on
e Established  |Plans in place | Plans in place securing voluntary sector invelvement in As above A above
discharge planning conversations, esiabisshing
weekly face (o face DTOC sign-off mewtings
betwaen COOs and DASS, and increasing
Sacial Warker presence during ward rounds
In order to progress to "Established”, we
noed to ensure thal we are meeting the 3rd
R Gl ctabihed  |plans in place |Plans n place [plans in place |Established b oy Tl WK | i Asgaie
assess plan 0 use our commissioning teams (o
develop a sirategic solution ta the tme 15
takes different homes to sssess patients.
In order 1o progress o “Flans in Place”, we
need to ensure that we are meating erttenia 3
for that rating. To faciitate this, we plan to
i ; Not yet % develop relationships with care proviters to
Sevenfay seryice Establshed | " |plans in place [Plans in place |Established et mwmz ol s above
with care agencies about 7 day working -
explaining what trying to achieve, and
building this into the retendaring of contracts
In ordet Lo progress to *Plans in Place”, we
it naed to ensure that wa are mesting criteria 3
Tristed pssessors Esiablshed ("0 0 | plans in place for that rating To faciiate this, we planta |4 above As above
reexamine our care provider and care home
tiusted assessor model
In order o progress to “Plans in Placs", we
need to ensure that we are meeling critena 1
Wiyee el and 3 for that rating. To faciltate this, we plan
Established Plans in place [Plans n place 1@ undertake 3 review of care navigator posts | As above As above
throughout the system_ and to ensure that
self funders are sufficiently supported (o
commissian their own services
In order o progress to "Mature”, we need to
Enhsrlflng health ensure that we are meeting eriteria 2 for that
i Establshed  [Established | Established [ Mature Mature raung To faciltate this. we plan to redo s above 4s above
clinical audits on patients attending haspiials
from care homes.

118/19

eetrlie || el

Red Bag scheme

nown as the “Red Bag Schame’] to enhance communication and informatio
If.there are no plags to implement sucha
s« rovide a nafrative on
afternative mitigations in place to sUpport
Improved communications in hespital

1 {al

o2 18/19
{Planned)

Q318/18
{Pianned)

QI1E/19
{Planned]
transfer arrangements for soclal care
yesldents.

aring when fesidents move between caresettings and hospital

Challenges Achievements [ Impact

All 52 eare homes have care home red bags
Full engagement fram all partners; care
homes, SCAS, acute and community hospitals.
Care home residents easily and quickly
identified and documentation available within
the bag to commence

Ensuring that all care home residents arrive at
hospial with the red bag and the rad bag
back returns with the resident (o the care
home. A process is in placs 10 address this.

teatment/management

100

Support heeds

Continue to reinforce the red bag schene
across all pariners/agencies




Better Care Fund Template/Q1'2018/19

5. Narrative

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

| Wokingham |

Remaining Characters: 13,6300

Progressiagainstilocal planifor/integrationof health'and social care
Our focal integration plan is based upon effectively developing and embedding our Integrated Hub, WISH Team and Time to Decide {Step Down) service,
CHASC team and Step Up service alongside the Berkshire West 10 schemes in order to meet the National Metrics and deliver integrated health and sacial
care services.

To support and build on this work, we have agreed that our governance move to a partnership with all 5 partners in the local system through a
Memorandum of Understanding between the CCG, WBC, BHFT, Royal Berkshire Hospital and Wokingham GP Alliance. Implementation commenced ina
shadow format from the 1st April 2018 and although in the early stages, appears to be working well. Partner Executive Boards are in the process of
reviewing the MoU, with our recommendation to agree and endorse the MoU and recognise that it is an important and significant step in the development
of a new collaborative partnership for health and social care in Wokingham.

Additionally work is underway to produce an integration position statement for adult health and social care in Wokingham; the overarching purpose is to
inform all Wokingham stakeholders where we stand with regards integration of health and social care services and is being developed in conjunction with
all our partners and services in the area.

Remaining/Characters:

Integration success/story highlight overithe pastiquarter
Our key success stories for April 2018 to June 2018 are:

» National Metric Performance — we have sustained or improved our performance in three out of the four National Metrics: DToCs, people remaining at
home 91 days after reablement and permanent admissions to care homes which has been evidenced in Tab 3.

* NEAs — Whilst our overall NEA performance is not on track in terms of the local versus national position on NEAs the 4 Berkshire West CCGs are in the top
10 out of 211 CCGs for lowest numbers of NEAs and Wokingham ranks 3rd in England for lowest numbers of NEAs. We have shown significant
improvement in our local NEA metric, which measures NEAs in the over 70s in 13 targeted conditions, where we have demonstrated zero growth in NEAs
in the last 2 years (16/17 and 17/18) whilst the ONS population growth in the same time period for this age group is 6%.

s New Governance Structure working in shadow format - The Mol was agreed in May and is currently going through all partner Executive Boards for
approval by July 2018. Our new partner boards have met 3 times and the Leader Partnership Board is being chaired by the Lead Member for Adult Social
Care

« WISH Benefits Realisation — During Q1 we reviewed the benefits planned from the original business case for WISH. The BC planned for payback in
2018/19 and the scheme achieved payback in 2017/18, a year ahead of plans. To date it has delivered benefit savings of Just over £2 millien and has cost
circa £1.7 million, therefore a net benefit in 2 years of £345k

+ Programme Plan/Roadmap to 2020 — Agreed in Q1 of 2018/19.

101

Please tell us about the
progress made locally to
the area’s vision and plan
for integration set out in
your BCF narrative plan for
2017-19. This might include
significant milestones met,
any agreed variations to
the planand any
challenges.

Please tell us about an
integration success story
observed over the past
quarter highlighting the
nature of the service or
scheme and the related
impact.



Better Care Fund Template/Q1,2018/19

Additional improved Better Care Fund - Part 1

112,780 |

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Wokingham
Additional improved Better Care Fund Allocation for 2018/19: £
Section A

Whatiproportioniof youradditionalliBEFfunding for2018:19/areyou allocating towardseachiofitheithreejpurposes ofithelfunding?
a)Meeting/adult socialicare’ |b)|Reducingipressuresion

needs

Pleaselenterthe amountyouhave designatediforeach purpose asia percentage of the total
additional iBCFifundingiyou have been allocatedifortheiwhole of 2018-19. fithe expenditure
coversmore than onelpurpose, pleaseicategoriselitiaccording to the|primary/purpose. Please
ensure that'the sumof the percentage figures entered does/not/exceed!100%. Ifiyou haveinot
designated any funding for a particular purpose, please enter 0% and do notleave a blank cell.

the NHS;including
supportingimore'peopleito
bedischarged from hospital
when they are ready

) Ensuring that thellocal
social'care provider market
is'supported

Section B

Whatinitiatives /iprojectsiwilliyouradditional[iBEEfundingbelused to supportiin 2018-197

Initiative/Project 1 Initiative/Project 2

B1)/Providelindividual titles/for noimoreithan 10initiative /

projects.lIfiyou are funding more than/10/initiatives’/ projects, BCF 02 WISH - Wokingham
youshould list those with thellargest sizeiofiinvestment'in 2018- MilsJs @ snlilti:ie1 )

19. Please/doinot use more'than 150 characters. Health and Social Care

Initiative/Project'3

Initiative/Project/d

Initiative/Project’s

Initiative/Project b

Initiative/Project 7

Initiative/Project 8

Initiative/Project9

Initiative/Project 10

B2)/Is this aicontinuation of an initiative / project from 2017-18 or
anew project for:2018-192 Use the drop-down menu, options
LT Continuation
Continuation
Newinitiative/project

Click here for a reminder of initative / project titles submitted in Quarter 4 2017/18

B3)/If you have/answered gquestion B2 with “Continuation® please’ [:eZexRW ;]
provide theiname of 'the project as provided inithe 2017-18
returns. See'the link above for aireminder of thelinitiative: /project
uilesisubmittediniQ4 2017-18: Pleaseldo notiselect the'same
—«ojectititle'moreithan once.

c4)iIf thisisia "New/Initative [ Project” for 2018/19, briefly
describethe key objectives' /‘expected outcomes. Please donot
usemore than 250 characters.

B5)/Use the drop-down menu provided or type in one of the
categories listed to indicate which of the following categories the
initiative / project primarily/fallsiunder. Hover overthisicellto
viewthelcommentbox for the listof categoriesifdrop-down
optionsiareinotisible.

7. Integration

B6) If you have answered question B5 with "Other”, please
specify. Please/do/not useimore'than's0 characters.

B7) Whatis'the planned total duration of eachlinitiative/project?

Usethe drop-down‘menu, options below. Eorcontinuing projects
ou shouldialsolinclude runningtimeibefore

1}illessithan'6imonths

2)Betweeniimonthsiand 1 year

3) Fromillyearup'to 2 years

4)2 years orlonger

4, 2 years or longer

B8) Useithe drop-down options provided or typeinione ofithe

following options toireport on'progressitoidate:

1) Planningistage 3. In progress: showing
2])/Iniprogress: nolresults yet results

3)lIniprogress: showing results

4)iCompleted




€0t

Better Care Fund Template Q1 2018/19
Additional improved Better Care Fund - Part 2

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Wokingham
Additional improved Better Fund Allocation for 2018/19: f 112,780
Section C

Whatlimpact doestheladditionaliBCE funding you have been allocated for'2018-19 have on the plans you have made for the following:
a) The'lnumber of home care  b) The number of hours of c) The number of care home
packages provided forithe home careiprovided for the placements for'the whole of
whole of2018-19: wholeiofi2018-19: 2018-19:

C1) Provideifiguresion'the planned numberioflhome care

packages; hours of home care and humberof care’home
placements you are purchasing/providing as a direct result of
your:additional iBCEfundingiallocationifor 2018-19. he
figuresiyouiprovide should coverithe:wholelof2018-10) Please
use whole numbersiwith'no text,if youthave anilientry please
couldiyoulenterOlinithe appropriate’box.

Section D

Indicate no more;than five key metricsyou will use to assess your performance.

Metricl Metric 2 Metric 3 Metricd iMetric'S

D1)Provide alistiofitipto's The iBCF continues not to metric to isolate and measure |[the 150 LAs to receive only methodology. The iBCF money |monies to further support
metrics'you areimeasuring affect decisions on the budget |the iBCF improvements as 10% of the iBCF money due of |allocated to Wokingham is existing projects to enable
yourselfiagainst. Pleaseldonot’ EllsRNeloNsleids]ET R (o) Wokingham is one of the very [the Relative Needs Formula £112k, at this level; we will use [higher success in meeting
useimore thani100icharacters.  Haligels =Rl few out of allocation the targets.




BetteriCare FundTemplate/Q12018/19

Additional iBCF Q4 2017/18 Project Titles

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: [wokingham |

<< Link to 6. iBCF Part 1

Quarter42017/18 Submitted Project Titles
Projectinformaticn/natisubmitted/in2017-18 reporting

PrejectTitlerdl ProjectiTitlel2 Projectilitle’3
BCF 01 Integrated Health and |BCFO2 WISH BCFO3 Step Up BCF08 CHASC — Community
Social Care Hub Health and Social Care

ProjectiTitle’15

Projectitle’14

ProjectiTitle13

ProjectTitle/12

ProjectTitle 11

ProjectTitlel10

Projectilitle d ProjectTitle’5 ProjectTitlels ProjectTitle 7 Projectitici8 ProjectiTitle’

BCFO3 Step Down

ProjectTitle 29

3 ProjectTitle27

3 ectilitle 24

BrojectTitle19

ProjectiTitle/ls

0T



Agenda ltem 26.

TITLE Community Safety Partnership Briefing
FOR CONSIDERATION BY Health & Wellbeing Board on 9 August 2018
WARD None Specific

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER Shaun Virtue, Graham Ebers (Joint Chairs of CSP)

Health and Wellbeing Enabling and empowering resilient communities
Strategy priority/priorities
most progressed through
the report

Key outcomes achieved Community safety and crime reduction priorities can
against the Strategy support the achievement of health improvement
priority/priorities outcomes and vice versa.

SUMMARY OF REPORT The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) continues to deliver
its work plan through the actions of the various subgroups which report into it. Health
partners including Public Health Officers, the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG), and
the Mental Health Trusts are actively engaged in each subgroup, supporting the
operational delivery of key projects.

The CSP have been reviewing its draft Strategy for 2018-21 and following discussions
with Public Health, Children and Young People’s Partnership and our colleagues in the
Police and Health, we have made the decision to amend Priority two of the Strategy.

Currently the priority is listed as, ‘Reducing Organised Crime including the impact of
County Lines Dealing’. Although it is noted, that the impact and effects of ‘County Lines
Dealing’ can be extremely detrimental on communities, families, adults and young people
and is a key focus in many areas across the country including our neighbours Bracknell
and Reading at present, it is not deemed a priority for Wokingham. That being said the
CSP do not wish to ignore ‘County Lines Dealing’ and have agreed to change the priority
to, ‘Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour, Harmful Substance Misuse and Organised Crime’.

As members of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be aware, instances of Anti-Social
Behaviour have been taking place across the Borough, as has the media coverage of this.
Thames Valley Police and the Community Safety Partnership Problem Solving Task
Group have identified tackling ASB a priority and acknowledge that these instances often
go hand in hand with substance misuse, as referenced in a previous report presented to
this board. The view is; if we can combat low level ASB and Substance Misuse at the
earliest possible stage this should help reduce the risk of vulnerable groups open to
exploitation and impact on escalation to organised crime.

Anti-Social Behaviour can have a detrimental effect on people’s physical and mental
health and the CSP are aware of the impact of fear of crime as well as being a victim of
crime. In previous years, the CSP have undertaken a ‘Fear of Crime Survey’ with all
residents of Wokingham, and this will take place again in late 2018/19 and the results will
be shared with all relevant partnership Boards.

Another way to help reduce Fear of Crime and anxiety in our residents is to direct the line
of conversation within the local media, both printed and Social media. The CSP and CSP

105




Problem Solving Task Group are planning a Campaign of Positivity to highlight the good
work that Wokingham Borough Council and partner agencies undertake on a daily basis,
and that isn’t often publicised. This could include official pieces or work, operations by
Thames Valley Police, voluntary work by members of staff, raising money for charity or
successes by our apprentices or young people. This will be a targeted approach across
all media platforms engaging all partners over a specific period of time. Wokingham is a
safe Borough in which to live and work with lots of things to celebrate, we need to ensure
this message is highlighted, and known to our residents.

Operation Orca continues to be successful in tackling Anti-Social Behaviour and is having
a positive impact, with arrests being made against some of the instigators of these
occurrences.

The Community Safety Fund Grant has been approved by the CSP and presented to the
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. The Grant will continue to support the
Youth Offending Service, our Domestic Abuse Services with Berkshire Women’s Aid, the
Reading FC Kicks Project, various productions and workshops in local schools around
domestic abuse and substance misuse and other projects to help deliver the priorities.

Partner Implications

Health partners are fully engaged in the CSP and its various subgroups, and are therefore
well placed to support the Police, Council and other partners to deliver the crime reduction
priorities.

Recommendations

e Once the Strategy has been agreed, the sub groups will be tasked with
recommending what measures will be implemented to monitor the work of the CSP
in line with their priorities. Itis requested that members of the Health and Wellbeing
Board review what measures and data they have access to and feed this into the
CSP subgroups.

e To support and engage in the upcoming media campaign.

e To continue to support the CSP subgroups to help reduce demand on health and
social care services.

List of Background Papers

None

106




L0T

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Forward Programme from June 2018

Please note that the forward programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at short notice.

The order in which items are listed at this stage may not reflect the order they subsequently appear on the agenda.

All Meetings start at 5pm in the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, unless otherwise stated.

/¢ Wal| epuaby



80T

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD FORWARD PROGRAMME 2018/19

RESPONSIBLE | CATEGORY
DATE OF ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR OFFICER /
MEETING CONSIDERATION CONTACT
OFFICER
11 October Health and To monitor performance To monitor performance | Director Performance
2018 Wellbeing Board Corporate
Refresh Services
Adult Social Care | For information For information Director of Adult | Organisation
Market Position Services and governance
Statement
Adult Social Care | Update Update Director of Adult | Integration
Strategy 2020 Services
Updates from To receive an update on the work | To update on the work Health and Organisation
Board members of Board members of Board members Wellbeing Board | and governance
Forward Standing item. Consider items for Democratic
Programme future consideration Services
RESPONSIBLE | CATEGORY
DATE OF ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR OFFICER /
MEETING CONSIDERATION CONTACT
OFFICER
13 December | Health and To monitor performance To monitor performance | Director Performance
2018 Wellbeing Board Corporate
Refresh Services
Updates from To receive an update on the work | To update on the work Health and Organisation
Board members of Board members of Board members Wellbeing Board | and governance
Forward Standing item. Consider items for Democratic
Programme future consideration Services




60T

RESPONSIBLE | CATEGORY
DATE OF ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR OFFICER /
MEETING CONSIDERATION CONTACT
OFFICER
14 February | Health and To monitor performance To monitor performance | Director Performance
2019 Wellbeing Board Corporate
Refresh Services
Updates from To receive an update on the work | To update on the work Health and Organisation
Board members of Board members of Board members Wellbeing Board | and governance
Forward Standing item. Consider items for Democratic
Programme future consideration Services
RESPONSIBLE | CATEGORY
DATE OF ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR OFFICER /
MEETING CONSIDERATION CONTACT
OFFICER
11 April 2019 | Health and To monitor performance To monitor performance | Director Performance
Wellbeing Board Corporate
Refresh Services
Updates from To receive an update on the work | To update on the work Health and Organisation
Board members of Board members of Board members Wellbeing Board | and governance
Forward Standing item. Consider items for Democratic
Programme future consideration Services




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	18. Minutes of Previous Meeting
	22. Get Active: Creating Physically Active Communities in Wokingham
	23. Health and Wellbeing Board Refresh
	24. Berkshire West Integrated Care System Operating Plan
	Berks West ICS Operating Plan 2018-19

	25. Better Care Fund Quarter 1 Submission
	HWB Q1 1819
	Pdf1
	Pdf2


	26. Update from Board members
	27. Forward Programme



